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Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
BREHREEBERAF

Stock Code BR34X5% : 1929

CHOW TAI FOOK )
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Corporate Profile
EEGN

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited (SEHK stock code: 1929) was listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong in December 2011.

Founded in 1929, the Group's iconic brand “Chow Tai Fook"” has been widely recognised
for its trustworthiness and authenticity, and is renowned for its product design, quality
and value. The success of the Group and its iconic brand is rooted in innovation,
craftsmanship and heritage. The Group also holds other jewellery brands including
CHOW TAI FOOK T MARK, Hearts On Fire, MONOLOGUE and SOINLOVE, which are
the first examples of a long term multi-brand strategy rollout.

The Group’s commitment to sustainable growth is anchored in its “Smart+" strategy,
which is in place to promote long term innovation in the business, in people and in culture.
Another asset underpinning sustainable growth is a sophisticated vertically integrated
business model. This supports the Group by fostering excellence and extending
opportunities along the entire value chain to communities and industry partners.

With an extensive retail network in Greater China, Korea, Japan, Singapore, Malaysia and
the United States, and a fast-growing e-commerce business, the Group is implementing
effective online-to-offline (“020") strategies to succeed in today’s omni-channel
retail environment.

ARABRESEERRR (FEBRMBRMMARE 1929) R20MF12AEETEHA
RGMERLE -

EEEmiE [ AARE]AIZIN1929F - HEERRAAEEREENRE  WER
axed‘ mEREEES - SEREEEEMEORIDERREIFT - TEERER o EE IR
%E%&yuuﬁ%ﬁé?& RES - T HEE EMIRE RIEBTEE AR T MARK « Hearts On Fire
MONOLOGUEESOINLOVES g #t AR KR EMmE -

SEE A REIE RAAGEIA [Smart+ | RIS RER - BUNRER - E TR RERN
BFTER - ERRANEERSEBRA/XEBEEEUHELERNS—ES £REEBE
ERXHEEREREY  URERERETREEMITESIERH

SEEERANTEME  EBRATE  BE - BA - K - SRADEIE - WKL
BFRARNEFRABEEY  LARHTR LG TRE ERSNERETERE TR
REMH ©
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Customer Experience

BERR

<X

Products and Brands (;tu;;ure
EmfimhE '

Retail Experience ... ) 4 Insights
TEER 22

Customisation -

5E il

Innovation Technology Sustainability
=1k B AHFEER

In order to deliver exceptional customer experiences that create long-term
differentiation and loyalty, we focus on five key areas of work, each of which is
underpinned by a firm commitment to innovation, technology and sustainability.

BTN A ARBRINE - ZF IR AR -
BRI AT RHE B RAGE RER - SERBOBIFUEMERE -
AR SRR B
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Vertically Integrated Business Model
EHESERKEN

Our evolving upstream, midstream and downstream capabilities
empower us to further our development to become

a more diversified and sustainable business.
WA E 3 L~ PREMTHRENEED
HEBERMEBEOEZ TEMAIFENERLERE -

* Upstream

L

Strengthening raw material procurement and
processing capabilities to meet different
requirements of our various products and brands
g R RHERIEFINIEE S - UmERMEZEE
o A R R Y[R 75 SR

Raw material procurement

REHREE

Procurement of rough diamonds is

in compliance with The Kimberley Process
Certification Scheme

e EAELNRBENE R AMNEZREE

e

Rough diamond
cutting and polishing ...

ERERYEIFITE

Processed 270,000+

carats of diamond in FY2018 which were all in
compliance with De Beers Best Practice Principles
2018 I FZ N T#2:i8 270,000 REA

& HEERFHHA De Beers HiEHETA

6 Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EABHREEE AR QA

Midstream
Investing in innovation and technology in areas from
product design and development, to manufacturing,

logistics and distribution so as to offer more personalised
experiences to our customers and other jewellery retailers

B S

Smart production

Smart £ &

We orchestrate our production and supply chain
around four key principles — standardisation,
automation, digitalisation and intelligence
BMEEONAEZERA —REL - 881 - BUR(E
ME et - HE EEHER




Vertically Integrated Business Model

FEHEAXBER

¥+ Downstream

i

Leveraging our strong global network and omni-channel
retailing capabilities to deliver unique shopping
experiences and value to our customers
BBREMRRNREEEN2RETE - RRMONETE
MBRNBYBRANEE

ST
B

Customisation

EERRETMFE - EEAERMD
HENDEEANRERAFAMBE - B
MMEE R EMAETERREE AN
femiein

| Products sold in FY2018
o3 =}
“D-ONE" jewellery customisation online 2018 MBI FEERHE
platforr'n engages our customers in 1 6+ million 5 2
designing their own jewellery : ieces of product
[D-ONE | KB T4|5 F AR ANBES p - p c Our multi-brand strategy
B ACHREED | fiE | spanning across
' ' B ZRERBEE
2,500+
POS ZEE,

70+

e-commerce platforms

BYEHTA
—
_S—

Customer behaviour analytics and ... E

Logistics and distribution business insights f

Wi % 53 6 BEETBMIREBRR :
: Qur Logistics énd Distribution C§ntre Information collected by our Smart Tray during N4
{n Shunde, W_h'Ch stérted operatlon§ customer shopping journey enables big data g ﬁl/l ~E Vv
in FY2017, will continue to expand its analytics and empowers useful business insights Vv

capacity in FY2019 and beyond RS ERRNERE B Ik EOE -
P 2017 B R 4F R B AR 4 IE A e 2 L B AT s 5
RS 6 20198 B R b 14
________________________________________ B
&
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For the year ended 31 March 2018

BZ201853A31 HILFEE

Revenue

EXHE

million BE&E& T

HK$59,156

Core operating profit!"
EEEERH O

million BE#& T

HK$5,606

Earnings per share

BkEH

HK cents 1l

40.9

Dividend per share
for the year?

BRkEERE?

HK cents 71l

57.0

Dividend payout ratio

(Special dividend excluded)
2ERBE(FEEEIKRS)

66.0%

Annual Results at a Glance

2018 I 59,156

2017 51,246
YoY change @& 1t 2016 56,592
2015 64,277

- 154% 2014 77,407

2018 I 5,606

2017 4,649
YoY change [REItb# 1t 20l 220
2015 6,691

A 206% 2014 9,500

2018 I 40.9

2017 30.6
YoY change BIEb 21t e 28
2015 54.6

- 34-0% 2014 72.7

Including special dividend As at 31 March 2018
per share 720183 A31H
BESRESHIRE

Net gearing ratio
FEAXBRELE
As at 31 March 2017

HK cents &l ®2017%3A31H

30.0 15.6% 6.4%

70

66.0% Net assets per share
54.4%  52.3% BREETFE
49.5% °1:3% As at 31 March 2017
M"201743H31H
BT BT

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 HK$3_4 HK$3.3

(1) Core operating profit, a non-IFRS measure, being the aggregate of gross profit and other income, less (1) FEEEEFWIFRABRABREEANFE - BEFREMBEHEST - HH
selling and distribution costs and general and administrative expenses and unrealised hedging loss/(gain) ERDERAAR —RBRETEMAZEZSESNRSRENER (W) » &
on gold loans, which the Company believes is useful in gaining a more complete understanding of its AFEEHBIEEADEEM T BALERARKLEBNERIBE

operational performance and the underlying trend of its core businesses

(2)  Being a total of full year dividend of HK270 cents per share and special dividend of HK30.0 cents per (2) BESRE2FERE27081LMTE RIS 30.0 4810 - #3558 RE RS
share. The proposed final and special dividends of HK45.0 cents per share which are subject to the BHABOBINEAFRREAAREERRBAFAS LHE
approval of shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EAEBHRELEEEGR AT



As at 31 March 2018
720183 A31H

Retail network and performance

TEEERRE

Hong Kong and Macau
EERIRAM

POS Z&£%

99

FY2018
2018 I B

SSSG E/EHEER
4 10.2%

/—/

Annual Results at a Glance

FEXEHRE
Mainland China FY2018
thE Py it 2018 BB EE
POS &% SSSG EESHELER

2,449 A 8.0%

E-commerce (Mainland China)
EFEE(FERL)

FY2018

2018 B EE

RSV Z&&

4 73.2% 4.8% 12.5%
YoY change of respective RSV of respective retail
Eil=4-414 LR BEE sales volume

1EHERSHE

Total number of employees
STHEE

29,200+

Number of employees by reportable segment

ZUE2HRSBEASHETHE

) 78.1%
21.9% Mainland China

Hong Kong, FE R
Macau and

other markets

B8 AR

Hitb 45

Chow Tai Fook membership programme
AXEEATE

Total number of members 2 £ 4%

2,117,000

FY2018
2018 I

Members’ repeat purchase as a % of respective RSV

EEFHEGHRATEEZENEL

Mainland China 7 B ity

30.7%

Hong Kong and Macau % & 5 & F9

32.8%

Annual Report 2018 “F %



Financial and Operational Highlights
MEREERE

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HKS$ million HK$ million
For the year ended 31 March BE3ANABLEE BEET HEET HEET BEET BHEET
Revenue = 77,407 64,277 56,592 51,246 59,156
Gross profit EF 21,152 19,072 15,641 14,963 16,213
Core operating profit FEELERNO 9,500 6,691 5,050 4,649 5,606
Profit for the year FRERF 7,449 5,636 2,979 3,151 4,203
Profit attributable to shareholders AN AR 4G T
of the Company 7,272 5,456 2,941 3,055 4,095
Earnings per share (HK cent) FRRZAF () 72.7 54.6 29.4 30.6 40.9
Dividend per share (HK cent) BRARE (L)
Full year dividend (HK cent) 2ERE (BIL) 36.0 28.0 16.0 16.0 27.0
Special dividend (HK cent) FERIRR 2 (L) - - 64.0 35.0 30.0
Gross profit margin ER =R 27.3% 29.7% 27.6% 29.2% 27.4%
Adjusted gross profit margin® IR IGHEFER @ 27.7% 29.2% 28.9% 28.5% 27.2%
Core operating profit margin FEKERERTRO 12.3% 10.4% 8.9% 9.1% 9.5%
Net profit margin i A = 9.6% 8.6% 5.3% 6.1% 7.1%
Full year dividend payout ratio® EFEREEKR 49.5% 51.3% 54.4% 52.3% 66.0%
(1) Core operating profit and the corresponding margin, a non-IFRS measure, being the aggregate of (1) FEEEEF AR R IFEERMBERELLE - BEREENER
adjusted gross profit and other income, less selling and distribution costs and general and REMEZAET  AEERDHEKAEAAR—BETEAY - AARMEERE
administrative expenses, which the Company believes is useful in gaining a more complete HEEHEEMTRALERARROEBNER B
understanding of its operational performance and the underlying trend of its core businesses
(2)  Adjusted gross profit margin, a non-IFRS measure, eliminates the effect of unrealised hedging loss/(gain) (2) AR ENEFEWIFRERGERELERGE  HBRTHSEENRZRY
on gold loans, which the Company believes is useful in gaining a more complete understanding of its R/ (M) NEE  ARREEHEEENEAN T MECERBRER
operational performance and the underlying trend of its businesses HERR B
(3)  Special dividend excluded (3) TBEFIIKRE
For the year ended 31 March BE3IAMBLEE 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
Mainland China o B iy 3th
SSSG F/EHEER 17.2% (15.6)% (9.6)% (5.2)% 8.0%
SSS volume growth FRIEHEER 33.1% (15.8)% (8.4)% (15.8)% 1.2%
Hong Kong and Macau BEEREAM
SSSG FA/EHEER 20.2% (32.8)% (21.7)% (12.4)% 10.2%
SSS volume growth FRIEHEER 40.3% (27.7)% (23.9)% (18.8)% 6.1%
Retail sales volume (unit) SHE (HFH)
Mainland China B A 14,556,000 13,637,000 13,280,000 12,004,000 13,416,000
Hong Kong, Macau and B RFIREM TS
other markets 6,109,000 4,907,000 3,971,000 3,152,000 3,169,000

10 Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EARBHKELEEEGR QT



As at 31 March

Non-current assets
Current assets
Current liabilities
Net current assets
Net assets

Total assets

Inventories

Bank deposits and cash equivalents®
Bank borrowings

Gold loans

Net debt®

Net assets per share (HK$)

Net gearing ratio®

Inventory turnover period (day)"”
Return on equity®

(4)  Bank balances and cash, pledged bank deposits and short-term bank deposits included

(5)  Aggregate of bank borrowings and gold loans, net of bank deposits and cash equivalents

R3A31H

FRBAE
MBARE
nBEE
B R
BEFR
BERR

T

ﬁ»(

\

RITEANREEEY

RITER

BEgfEE
REFERE
BREEFHECET)
FARAFEEO
FERASH RV
eNEEEY

2014

HK$ million
BEET
4,263
57,654
22,507
35,047
38,4562
61,817

42,544
9,972
6,300
10,787
7,115
3.8
18.5%
276

19.4%

(6)  Aggregate of bank borrowings and gold loans, net of bank deposits and cash equivalents, divided by

total equity

(7)  Being inventory balance, excluding packing materials, at the end of the year divided by cost of goods

sold for the year, multiplied by 365/366

(8)  Being profit for the year divided by total equity at the end of the year

Note: The percentages calculated are subject to minor rounding differences

For the year ended 31 March

Operating cash flows before
movements in working capital

Net cash from/(used in)
operating activities

Net cash from/(used in)
investing activities

Net cash from/(used in)
financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in
cash and cash equivalents

Capital expenditure

Pro forma free cash flows®

BE3IA3MBLEE

BEASEHAZ
eEBE/ ()
e FHE
REFBE/(FA)
e FHE
BMEFBE(FA)
e FEE
RAekASEHED
#m,/ ORd) Fe
BEARRX
BEERTDRC

2014
HK$ million
BEAT

9,465

(5,420)

(1,727)

8,221

1,074

(1,368)
(412)

(9)  Net cash from/(used in) operating activities less purchase of jewellery collectibles, capital expenditure

and net movements for gold loans

2015

HK$ million
HEET
7,038
54,083
19,880
34,203
40,541
61,121

39,798
8,478
6,751
8,338
6,611
4.1
16.3%
320

13.7%

g =

Financial and Operational Highlights
HBEREEME

2016

HK$ million
HEET
6,670
49,005
18,764
30,241
35,750
55,675

31,377
13,001
7,920
6,513
1,432
3.6
4.0%
279
8.3%

2017

HKS$ million
BEET
7,133
42,269
15,788
26,480
32,602
49,402

29,259
7,943
6,793
3,216
2,066

3.3
6.4%
294
9.7%

BERTEHERS  BEMRITERRERRITER
RITEFRECEHEZEE(HRRITFREREEEN)

2018

HK$ million
BHEET
8,258
49,312
20,719
28,593
34,098
57,570

34,929
7,944
7,923
5,335
5,314

3.4
15.6%
296
12.3%

(6) RITERREBLEEZLB(MBRITFRARRSEEY) BARSERE

(7) BERFEER(TLERREME) BRIAFNHERE - BRI 365/366

(8)  FAEMBRIAF RIERABE
M B ESRI A ER

2015
HK$ million
BEERT

7,288

7,568

(3,093)

(5,472)

(996)

(2,768)
2,764

(9) EBEBHME/ (FMA)RLTFEABERALRE EAHXERRSERFEY

2016
HK$ million
BEAETT

5,787

13,897

(1,045)

(8,008)

4,845

(1,046)
10,690

2017
HK$ million
AEERT

5,702

6,252

(1,147)

(9,771)

(4,667)

(862)
1,989

Annual Report 2018 F %

2018
HK$ million
BEATT

6,879

2,851

(1,577)

(1,753)

(479)

(1,084)
3,019

1"



Financial and Operational Highlights

HRREEME
As at 31 March MW3A31HE 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
POS network"? ZEH@KO
Mainland China AR A 1,965 2,124 2,179 2,246 2,449
Hong Kong aBH 86 93 89 83 80
Macau JERPY 16 19 20 19 19
Taiwan /& 8 16 23 22 22
Korea R - 1 4 5 7
Japan =N - - _ _ 2
Malaysia BRF R 1 1 1 2 2
Singapore FTAN 1 1 1 1 1
United States ESeil - 2 2 3 3
Total “aEt 2,077 2,257 2,319 2,381 2,585

(10) SIS and CIS excluded (10) TBIEEFERENEE

12 Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EAEBHRELEEEGR QT



Revenue lllustration
PR

FY2018 Revenue
2018 I FEE %5

Mainland China Hong Kong, Macau and other markets
REIA B RMREMTS

62.2% 37.8%

Retail Wholesale Retail Wholesale
EiAy

76.3%  23.7% 92.3% 7.7%

Physical E-commerce Franchisees Service Physical E-commerce Franchisees Retailers Jewellery
stores and others pIEELS] income from stores and others k=G bk ] trading
EEME BT franchisees BEME ETEK HE5
K E Al RE MEEEH K E Al
BRA WA

92.7% 7.3% 98.6% 1.4% 99.2%  0.8% 74%  26.0% 66.6%

Annual Report 2018 F %



Chairman’s Statement
FERSE

Chow Tai Fook is proudly approaching the

90t anniversary. We will, as always, continue to
uphold our leading edges to bring our business to
fruition by meticulously executing our “Smart+ 2020”
strategic framework. We believe that the customer-
centric approach fortified with our iconic and trusted
brand value would further solidify our status as the
industry leader.

RXRERRIMERXIOFF - RS —WBE - BFIEEES
FBEET [ Smart+ 2020 | KEFHELR » S| FERRHERBEFERR -

14

Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present FY2018 annual results of the Group. Over the

past decades, we have been striving for excellence and capturing
market opportunities through our well-established brand and industry
know-how.

FY2018 was a year of recovery with encouraging development. The
retail market in Greater China has regained its upward momentum,
leading to a vibrant performance for the Group.

Performance Review

The Group's revenue increased by 15.4% year-on-year to HK$59,156
million in FY2018 on the back of recovering market fundamentals.
Benefitting from the improvement in operations, profit attributable to
shareholders of the Company rose 34.0% to HK$4,095 million, with
earnings per share of HK40.9 cents. The Board has proposed a final
dividend of HK15.0 cents per share and a special dividend of
HK30.0 cents per share. Dividend per share for the year amounted to
HK57.0 cents. Excluding special dividend, full year payout ratio
approximated 66 %.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EXKEBHREEEGR A A

EPRE E/UERF | WHARBEEEET S5 EH AR
ZEENMDE  SEE-SEZEERMETENRRHN

AR -

EAMRARZINAREE2018H HFENEFEE - BEH
TH BMEHEEUOREMEENTENS - TEER
SKiE - RIS -

018 BFEEREEZF » BRMRS ATFE - AR E
ZEMSERD ) - EAKREBSHELHRE -

IR IR

RERTSHNERARRBENRS  KNEE2018HMBEE
B RRIRFIRR156.4% £ 59,156 A& BT - XL LXK
WEMWE  ARFBREEEN _EF34.0% £4,095 5
BT SRANRL098 - EFERZRERPKLE
5.0 M R R R B FA30.01L - 2 FRREFE -
BHGRE7.08 - MRS - 2FIREXHEER
66% °



Legacy ® Passing down with Passion

Having gone through the ups and downs over various economic
cycles, Chow Tai Fook is proudly approaching the 90" anniversary. We
are delighted to witness our relentless pursuit of excellence in
craftsmanship, innovation and heritage being passed along from
generation to generation.

The Group has consistently nurtured innovation and sets ourselves as
a pioneer in the industry. The introduction of 999.9 gold standard and
"Fixed Price Policy” are splendid exemplars of our ambition to the
best in breed in the past. The launch of CHOW TAI FOOK T MARK
brand, a disruptive and revolutionary innovation, signifies another
milestone of Chow Tai Fook. The artisanal spirit that always kindles
our undiminished passion and devotion to the creation of one-of-a-kind
high jewellery, has been manifested in a multitude of collectable
masterpieces and auction high jewellery, embodying the sublime of
bespoke design and service.

We value heritage and sustainable development and we try every
effort in promoting the cultural standard of general population. Through
collaborating with the Shaanxi Institute for Preservation of Cultural
Heritage, Art Museum of The Chinese University of Hong Kong and
Conservation Office of Leisure and Cultural Services Department of
Hong Kong on “Ancient Chinese Gold Techniques” Research Project
and “Golden Techniques: Art of the Chinese Goldsmiths” exhibition,
we bore fruitful achievement in the preservation and inheritance of
ancient Chinese gold techniques. Loupe, a design incubation space in
PMQ, Hong Kong is also a testimony that demonstrates our dedication
to inspiring creativity. Aiming to nurture budding young talents and
provide a creative environment for jewellery making and
craftsmanship, Loupe provides a platform for designers and artisans,
local and abroad, to connect with the public.

Outlook

Jewellery retail has gained in vitality with sanguine consumption
sentiment, industry jewellery retail sales in 2017 resumed to a growth
of 5.6%"" and 5.2%"% in Mainland China and Hong Kong, respectively.
The overall underlying trends remain promising with rising disposable
incomes, expanding middle-class population, and surging demand
from millennials. Such stabilising fundamentals bode well for the
consumption of affordable luxury and high-end luxury products.

(1) Source: National Bureau of Statistics of the People’s Republic of China

(2)  Source: Census and Statistics Department of the HKSAR Government

Chairman’s Statement
TERESE

BFEE BRER

FABAEES  BRCERBLD CESBBREER
DT EARTEBR  SEEBRDLIOAT - HE
SR RM-HEFPHERERE  BRTBBEDEDC
T AFRE - URAOBEREXL  RIEEFE B
BEDMKE -

REBERFHERLT - EWRAXELRE - EFER/99.95F%
SEM[—RE] K BREEETEBENEOAE -
HgHHRAAET MARK 62 » IR B B 58 145 B SR %
AR ERERABREBRRNS 21 - RAHE L
TEREY  BMEXTILEMAIERG - sl BRMEE
B-—E_WRHKRE  KRABRDEAENHED M-
BRSBEMONRGEEERT -

BMEFERERETIFELRR  KEHLIEFARRD
ALK o AP ERPRFG B X IREM TR - BEPXKE
XY BEREREEBENDEERERSE
AEAEIRESTIE ] MRAEE M(#EHES : F
hTRESIERER)ES  TREFEERPELEREST
B2HHE - BEEZ2EMAR - LN EB LA Loupe & — @R
FEEEEEM B ABRERMEERZAED
FEMEE o BRI Loupe W E MR BB EHERFF
AUPREERRERETENAEIIEER 52— @
BRI RERSHORETE  TEMBEHERNBIRM
Fa e

RREE

BEHEELILS  KETEENRERESN  2017FKE
TEHERRELER  FRAMAEESLIEER - 1518
DRIR5.6%" 5.2%? « EHAI ST RM AL - HEAD
TEHIER - ARRE TREANFRFEFER - E2AH
EEREMAE  HLERSER BEAENREREER
NEZMMEEEEMHEE -

(1) BEBER: PEARKNERRGN R
(2)  BUEHIR - BERBITHRRBUN R R
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Chairman’s Statement

S

We believe that the Chinese government will deploy increased
measures to vitalise domestic luxury consumption, and secure a
decisive victory in building a moderately prosperous society. The
underpinnings of the “new normal”
consumption growth. We are fully confident and optimistic about the
long-term prospects of Mainland China and Hong Kong and Macau to
continue reaping the fruits of economic benefits.

economy would also spur the

In Hong Kong and Macau, by leveraging the advantages on the well-
established infrastructure, tax-free shopping environment and
excellent customer service, these two cities remain vibrant and
dynamic despite of rapidly changing and evolving consumer landscape.
In addition, the “Greater Bay Area” development is set to benefit
Hong Kong, Macau and cities in the Pearl River Delta with increased
connectivity and economic integration in different areas including
innovation and technology, higher education, youth entrepreneurship
and cultural tourism, etc. We are confident that the retail market will
be on track towards a full-fledged recovery.

Nowadays, multiple disruptive changes on the overall market
landscape are taking place. Consumers are becoming more tech-
savvy, sophisticated and highly knowledgeable. To capitalise on these
evolving consumption changes, our “Smart+ 2020" strategic
framework focusing on innovation, technology and sustainability with
a goal of delivering exceptional customer experience is well in place.
We believe that the customer-centric approach fortified with our iconic
and trusted brand value would further solidify our status as the
industry leader.

In closing, | would like to express my heartfelt gratitude to my fellow
Board members for their strategic guidance, our shareholders,
business partners, customers and, not least, our staff who have
served us with dedication and commitment. As we move into a new
era, | hope all will join us and make Chow Tai Fook a company we are
all proud of.

Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry
Chairman
Hong Kong, 7 June 2018
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Being a distinguished jeweller in the
industry, we are dedicated to creating

a seamless and unique customer
experience through our commitment to
innovation, technology and sustainability.

ERERABEEENKER  ZMRF
REAF  BREFFEERE 2D
AEESBEBEFVETRER -

Driven by stable fundamentals and improving consumer sentiment, XERBENERARZMBEBRANNRE - KPETE
the retail market in Greater China has been picking up steadily over ~ M#H @A —F & B - Bt R - 225 1% 1) &) 5 6
the past year, and continues to be transformed by disruptive  BHEEFESTISEA - BRINEETEEE - A ERKEM
innovation and technology. Customers are also changing; with the rise FTEHRMNBEERRBLEREFE RESFKET
of middle class and millennials, increasing urbanisation leading to a #E - RNEREETIRRRSE -

stable demand growth, along with the rapid shift in their preferences.

In response to these dynamics, a step change in customer  E¥ FiliEEEHAE - NRHERTHNEEHE SEBITE
engagement is indispensable to the sustainable growth of the  HEMKENAIKEA c (FAXRRREEMNHRER + KM
industry. Being a distinguished jeweller in the industry, we are BRESEZAN  BEEMFEERE  RNAEEEZEEE
dedicated to creating a seamless and unique customer experience HEEES -

through our commitment to innovation, technology and sustainability.

18 Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited FEAXBHKEEEEGR A



Business Development
Mainland China

Majority of the net openings were located in shopping malls in
FY2018 so as to leverage the opportunities of their increasing
popularity and foot traffic.

A two-pronged strategy shall be adopted to further our business
development in different tiers of cities. While we would remain
selective in openings and focus on uplifting the ASP in Tier | and Il
cities, market penetration in lower tier cities will be the priority. The
pace of expansion will be accelerated in order to capitalise on the
rapid urbanisation and infrastructural development in these areas.

To further grow market share and diversify our product portfolio,
we have implemented a multi-brand strategy such as the rollout of
two new brands, MONOLOGUE and SOINLOVE, to target new
customer segments during FY2018.

Managing Director’s Strategic Report
EEAKERERE

KRR
hE Py it

R2018F BEFE - R HFREBUREDH LA
TEREEH & R M B EE AR - IR

BARMEGERER  ETRABETHRER -
E— ZHRBWERERRNE  EERATHEES:
EERBHTRABEATS2EREE - HAEE MR
HEHR - EEE L )T R E M A S R P 2R EY
i -

BRI Z 2R - STE M BEE - N20188 K
£ 2 HE R (B T ah B2 MONOLOGUE A1 SOINLOVE -
FEEMBEHAE-—TEBATISERER -

Mainland China
ch 5] A 3th
POS T &, Net openings jEBi5

As at 31 March 2018 FY2018
2018%F3H31H 20188 R

2,449 4203

Hong Kong and Macau
EERIRM

POS TE£E,; Net closings iEBE

As at 31 March 2018  FY2018
7R2018F3A31H 20188 R E

99 v3

Other markets

Hibmis

POS T&£E; Net openings %55

As at 31 March 2018 FY2018
7A2018F3H31H 20188 L &

37 -4
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Hong Kong, Macau and other markets

Hong Kong and Macau

L]

Closures were mainly located in touristic area in FY2018.

Five experience shops were opened in residential area in Hong
Kong to cater to the evolving expectations of local customers.

We will continue our effort to engage the relatively stable local
clientele through optimising our POS network and the delivery of
rejuvenated shopping experiences.

Other markets

Our openings covered Japan and Korea during the financial year.

Further extension of our footprint to other markets, such as
Southeast Asia, is in the pipeline to capitalise on the business
potential from the Chinese customers present in the region.

Wholesale business

By leveraging the inherent strength of our business model and
harnessing Hearts On Fire's strong retail network globally, we are
increasingly engaging the wholesale business community,
especially the jewellery retailers in the United States.

Through our products, retail experience and technology, we aim to
offer greater value to other retailers, and ultimately complement
the sustainable growth of our business.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EAEBHRELEEEGR QT

i RFIRHE TS

FERRM

* 2018 B E MBI T E R E B A IRER -

c RREBHRTARBRE MR HEETEEZ N
LI

o BRIBEEECTESE REAA—FTORDER
B SREIE R M A EE B R R T RIBEIR -

Hih S

o RABIREMA - BA7E A MBEEBIRLHE -

c RMESRARMSSEMTSERES LEEA
BB I I A SR B P M o

HEERZEFE

o BMEB B & EHKEX ) E B EZ M Hearts On Fire
AR TEMLE - MAMBRIEER - LHITEH
EERETERNEE -

e BMFEEBAGNER TELREMR  KEM
TEPRE LB RMEBOATFELER -
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“Smart+ 2020” Strategic Framework
[ Smart+ 2020 | SKEZHESE

Our “Smart+ 2020" strategic framework is a three-year strategic work plan supported by our dedicated
Smart working teams, which are tasked with the delivery of each strategy from conception through to execution.
HAPIE) [Smart+ 2020 KESIEZR R — B R BA=F R R TIETE
BEE Smart TIEEBHES) - BB ZHERKHOBEBIAZNT -

Products and Brands -

EmFRE

Smart Product working teams are
dedicated to the rollout of a multi-brand
strategy in order to target multiple
customer segments and expand
overall market share

Smart E& T{EERERES S MIFHERE -
HETREEMBEE  BAREBMSHEER

Retail Experience -

TERR

Smart Channel working teams are dedicated to
creating unigue experiences for customers across
all channels and seamlessly integrated 020
customer journeys

Smart RE TFEGEERIDEUMERENES
BERER  AEBRENGANS LR TEEBYZIK

Customisation -

E
Smart Production working teams are dedicated

to product customisation, which is supported by
an optimised data-driven manufacturing process

Smart £& TEGZAENE(COBEBEEIELE
BF - XIEMNEHE S

SMART +

2020

Customer Experience

BERR

<

Innovation Technology
Al B
Embedding in our culture Enabling great

to spearhead our product and customer experiences
brand development strategy RESEHERER
EARME S HEBER
7 b B R SR

g Culture

Xt

Smart Office working teams
are dedicated to enforcing
culture of innovation and
sustainable development

Smart PAE TIHEEBREE
HE BT R HEERE L

Insights
R

Smart Advisor working
teams are dedicated to data
analytics, customer and
market big data insights

Smart Bl T{FEIFSEX
BN ARBEEMH ISR
B

Sustainability
AFEERE

Driving our long-term economic
sustainability, social and environmental
impact and corporate governance
EBRMREOKCEFERRE -
HEEIRIRNTEREEER

Annual Report 2018 F %
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Smart Product Smart &
We are positioned to meet a wide spectrum of customer needs HPERZ REERE  mEEZHERENK -
through our multi-brand strategy.

House 1929
One-of-a-kind artistic
jewellery pieces
BE—E
BMKREY @

S

Hearts On Fire s 3
U.S. premium diamond ""HEART$ QN FIBE
brand with exquisite Nk T A e

craftsmanship

ERILIEMN
EE S AEA @R Jewelria
BAEER
International
jewellery
product offerings

BIPRERE an 8 4 2E

Chow Tai Fook EHOW TAI FOOK T MARK
Jewellery
BAREH®RE

Classic jewellery

product offerings

KAREERMES

CHOW TAI FOOK T MARK
FEX3® T MARK

Pursuit of true diamond
authenticity and traceability
BPEBEARER KR

- +

MONOLOGUE

Fashion jewellery for
trendsetting millennials
SRR E T2 —RE
IR 1) 5 A

SOINLOVE
Affordable luxury
bridal jewellery
WEZIBGKE

+

22 Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EAEBHRELEEEGR QT
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+

Jewelria retail network

AXEEETERS

As at 31 March 2018
7M2018%F3A31H

7

POS
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery and Jewelria AXEXERAXESE
e Our iconic brand, Chow Tai Fook Jewellery, contributes to o BFWEZMEREARNEHRE  UWKEHNEREA N
the majority of our business with classic product offerings at SEMNER  REMEBNEELRS -
reasonable prices.
e Targeting more sophisticated customer groups, we upgraded e HYABAERKMER BRMEZFHEBLZTED
some of our POS and introduced Jewelria last year which HEEBRRXKEERE UM EHNPEEERE®EE S

has a differentiated store layout with an increased gem-set KEZREMRY -
product offerings.

House 1929 House 1929

* House 1929, our official high jewellery brand was founded ¢ House 1929 2F {54 E Al K S iH BT RIS o
this year.

e The brand houses one-of-a-kind artistic jewellery pieces with o URBHEBMNEAMBLNIE  THEB £ _MEN
preeminent quality gemstones and superlative craftsmanship, REL R EAEHNBERENESNKESHEMRK
exclusively catered for VVIPs and invited jewellery enthusiasts.

* The first high jewellery collection under House 1929 “Mosaique de ° House 1929 EAmmHKE R [2 & ME ]| R 2018F 4

Réverie” was unveiled in an exclusive VIP Preview Show in Beijing ARIIREBETHEEETREBEREEeTRY  EXBH
in April 2018, where 13 sets were showcased to more than 700 13EUETFTESBBATIOMNERTTEE - KHTHLKBHR
guests at the event. Most of them will be available for auction in SEV AEFEAETHE  ER2ERABYEZEE
Hong Kong in November this year, two of which will be listed as HEEMRE -

museum pieces for exhibition only.

High jewellery “Mosaique de Réverie”
Collection exclusive preview
BMRE R [SLRE] BREES

Annual Report 2018 “F %
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+

CHOW TAI FOOK T MARK retail network
BAXiET MARKE &£ 484

As at 31 March 2018
7R2018F3A31H

Mainland China Hong Kong and Macau

FRE A it EEKEM

CIs CIs

JEREAE JEREE

ASP =

HK$13,100 HK$17,700
Mainland China Hong Kong and Macau
FRE A BEBREM

CHOW TAI FOOK T MARK

Our diamond brand launched in 2016 to fulfil customer demand and
expectations for true diamond authenticity and traceability.

As an assurance, each CHOW TAI FOOK T MARK diamond is
inscribed with a mark that carries a set of unique serial numbers,
which enable customers to trace the life journey of a diamond from
sourcing to production. The patented nano-inscription technology of
the mark was awarded a gold medal at the 46 International
Exhibition of Inventions of Geneva in April 2018.

We also collaborated with Gemological Institute of America (“GIA"),
the leading independent diamond grading authority in the industry
to apply blockchain technology in order to deliver secure and digital
diamond grading reports to our customers for the first time.
Customers will receive a permanent and immutable blockchain
record of their diamond'’s GIA grading information. This innovation
will first be piloted in selected POS in Hong Kong in 2018.

Our debut CHOW TAI FOOK T MARK diamond specialty store was
opened in Hong Kong in April this year, and we expect to further
roll out in both Mainland China and Hong Kong and Macau.

During the financial year, CHOW TAI FOOK T MARK products
accounted for 11.5% and 15.6% of the RSV of our diamond products
sold in Mainland China and Hong Kong and Macau, respectively.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EAREHRELEEEGR QA

BEX{& T MARK

2016 BREAMIE  MEBEETEEPELER

BRAABTMARKE A A E —HB R KRN
HRER/RE  BEFEVELNRBELEN LD
IRAZ - 201844 F > ZENRE 2 MK A F B R 2 4l 10 26
46 JE A WL BIFR B R h IS & 220K 4K -

B a7 BN B ENETHEXNEANER
(IGIADA&E - ERERERERNMETRHELEZN
BSEOETEE -BEHERENEBONGIAZEE
AERKA ~ DA E R R o ZIRAF R
2018 FEBRBHFETERKALAT -

BEXRARBTMARKE A EMERSFAAEETE
PR - HMITRAH S T B it A R 08 RO P A 38 R
=PE -

REBERER - FAXRE T MARKE @R MEFRBE A M
UEBEENAFCEEAERTEEIAA11.6%
}15.6% °

Celebrities and key opinion leaders (“KOL") were invited to
promote the brand, with their videos launched on various social
media platforms such as Facebook and WeChat in January 2018
20184F 1 A + JEEE A BT A B R IR HERE + 7E Facebook
EMESEEMRBET LR
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Hearts On Fire retail network
Hearts On Fire T &4

As at 31 March 2018
R201853831H

20 192 517

POS SIS and CIS Retailer locations
ZEH ERERENSE Pk )]

ASP 0
- rGB

HK$22,200 HK$22,900

Mainland China Hong Kong and Macau
HEIAit EEREM

Hearts On Fire Hearts On Fire

e A U.S. premium diamond brand acquired in 2014 which carries ¢ 2014FWHEHNERSREA R USSR TENER
design-oriented bridal and fashion jewellery with exquisite B MIRENBIO ISR -
craftsmanship.

e |n FY2018, Hearts On Fire products contributed 2.6% and 3.7% of ¢ 201881 B & & * Hearts On Fire & & b & 17 &
diamond product RSV in Mainland China and Hong Kong and AMALEAEALRMEEERERTEED T
Macau, respectively. #2.6% X%3.7% °

e RSV growth amounted to 21.5% and 16.8% in Mainland China and o AARBIRHIARES MRFINZEEEIERDHA21.5%
Hong Kong and Macau, respectively. 5 16.8% -

Viral marketing — Famous artist Fala Chen’s promotional video
“Shinier Than You Think” was posted on social media platforms
B E — HE R RAR IS [ Shinier Than You Think]
EfER  FHMERERTA

< | 2

i i Sponsorship of the 121" Asian Film Awards in March 2018 where
S celebrity guests were invited to showcase Hearts On Fire
jewellery in the event
201853 A  EPF 12 ETMERAE - BFEBAZEME
Hearts On Fire 2k & &

FILM AWARDS

Annual Report 2018 4 %}
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SOINLOVE retail network e
SOINLOVE T 4%

As at 31 March 2018
7A2018F3H31H

9

POS
TEH

Price range 2
s r@

HK$2,000 - HK$20,000

-

SOINLOVE SOINLOVE
Tapping Mainland China’s affordable luxury bridal jewellery market, o BB EIEAMBEZEGZRME  =F4A4HLE
we unveiled SOINLOVE in April last year with its products and store SOINLOVE g EERMMAEMEY AR EFHE
layouts enriched with romantic and sweet ambience. e

We will continue to explore the opportunities to further roll out the o RMeHEREEK  N2019VBFEEE—FHEZ
brand in FY2019. GhhE o

Store opening event in December
2017 in Chengdu, Mainland China
20175 B127 - hEKEPIE
FHEEE

2

A SOINLOVE POS with beauty

lounge decoration in Shanghai,

Mainland China

AR E L/ MSOINLOVER &
B UERERBRE LR

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EABHREEE AR QA
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MONOLOGUE retail network
MONOLOGUE T 448

As at 31 March 2018
72018F3A31H

11

POS
TEH

Price range -
el r€3

HK$500 - HK$5,000

MONOLOGUE MONOLOGUE

To address the trendsetting millennials’ demand in Mainland China, o HHHPBRAMENERRERSTE-—RBHER  BRAR
we introduced MONOLOGUE in 2016. 2016 F# EMONOLOGUE fhh# ©

Scaling up our efforts to raise brand awareness, we organised o BMBERFERELETBENMEASTEE HLE
themed exhibitions and sponsored reality shows in Mainland China, EMBRERZVESR  NRARERNE -
where featured collections were showcased by the contestants.

Sponsorship of the “Hot-Blood Dance
Crew" reality show

BE(RMEEE) BEAF

2

MONOLOGUE interactive exhibition in
Beijing, Mainland China
MONOLOGUER # 4L S E T )
EHFERE

Annual Report 2018 “F %
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Smart Channel

Evolving consumer expectation around how they wish to engage with
the retail brands are driving our continuous innovation in customer
experience, both online and in-store.

Smart Ei&
BEHNTZERBENEETHFERTENEHE  #EF
FAITETAIFT 4R EAPIER AR RS o

“Gift Box” themed

experience shop

[BYE | EERRE

: Yuen .1233 'S

z

S ;  Kouiloon Torig
EY TR

“Coffee Shop” themed experience shop

[ Uk s | 3 EERE AR IS

“Wave"” themed experience shop

[R#EW | 3 ERREE

“Artistry” themed experience shop

[ 855 | EEMRERE

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EABHREEE AR QA

“Treasure Vault” themed experience shop

[REREE | = EEREER S



New in-store experiences

Catering to different customer profiles and neighbourhoods in Hong
Kong, we opened five new experience shops. Each renovated in
different themes to deliver a rejuvenated shopping experience has
resonated with consumers in the neighbourhoods.

Following the rollout in Hong Kong, we expect experience shops
with similar or new themes to be gradually introduced in Mainland
China in FY2019 and beyond.

Omni-channel retailing

We deploy technology and collaborate with business partners to
create integrated sales channels as part of our ongoing effort to
offer more seamless omni-channel journeys to our customers.

Smartphone as sales channel

Riding on the sweeping trend towards online transactions through
smartphones, we leverage the power of instant sharing on social
media platforms to boost the sales of our collections.

For example, we engaged Zhao Liying, a famous Chinese actress
as our Brand Ambassador to promote our online exclusive jewellery
pendant for Valentine’s Day on social media platforms such as
WeChat. Followers could act on their desires immediately to buy
the pendants directly through the mini program under Chow Tai
Fook's official WeChat account in their smartphones.

Self-service experience corner

L]

To further enhance our customer experience, we are committed to
investing in technological innovation and successfully launched the
self-service experience corner for jewellery retail in Mainland China
in FY2018.

The corner extends the idea of “grab-and-go” to offer our
customers a faster check-out process and a more convenient

shopping experience.

The mobility of the corner also enables us to reach a vast base of
potential customers in various locations such as cinemas, shopping
malls and other public areas.

Managing Director’s Strategic Report
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gl

e BMEEEFTATIARERE URRTREZTK
HEMNEX B—FREBREHZTRNEBRLEER Bk
AENBRLEB E_NLEDES

. %%5%%%%%5%%?& C BAPITEET R 2019 T B E R A
B EPBEAMRFEARE T BN ENRERIE -

2RETE
o HRPmMEENME Eﬁ%ﬁ%%‘%ﬁt’\f’ﬁ RIFAHEE
RE BEREEITELZEEDREBYIFE -

BREFRIFREER
. ﬁz1FﬁJl\EFﬁ&$TT&.E’]?7&% BT - (HEE R
BN EEAF MRS RARIIERHHE -

o PlInRAIBFTFRAZBERETREREA - £ME
SHRXRBTEHEEBALR LBFRIKE R - HiD
HUBERBELBEBTFERABRKBMRER TIRKH
NEFEE DM -

BYERE
e ARMTEERR BRMBIRERMEKEN XV
2018ﬁﬁﬁiifﬁ¢lmtmﬁklijﬁﬁEﬁjﬁ%%’?@&“’“m

o HBNEEENEE —F¥IE [grab-and-gol WS BEE
R IRENMTBRELENEFNE DL -

° BBE %ﬁli—fb/{umibim?abEKETl—Juﬁ B BB
B BSSIRARME  EBEELEERE o

1,2

Promotion of online exclusive “Firefly” jewellery
pendant by Zhao Liying on WeChat
HEATMERER LBR R EARIKE DN

3
First self-service experience corner for jewellery
retail in Shenzhen, Mainland China

IR BRYIH B EE N REREERR
Annual Report 2018 F %
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Customer relationship management
Chow Tai Fook membership programme

e |n order to strengthen our membership base and retain the loyalty
of our customers, we have intensified collaboration with various
business partners to offer more lifestyle rewards and privileges to
our members especially in Mainland China.

EE
AXEREHE

BPRMCEREBBHENEIE  HRATERNL 288 -
REFZETEEMRERESR  UEEGBREMILR
BEOME -

Mainland China
oh [ Py ith

As at 31 March 2018
7A2018%F3A31H

Number of members
=

1,300,000 0%

FY2018
20188 L £

30.7%

Members’ repeat purchase
as a % of respective RSV

SEBHBARETEEZAESL

+

MAE RS TR

4

W

Hong Kong and Macau
FERRM

As at 31 March 2018
72018538 31H

817,000 0%

Number of members
=

FY2018
201881 N &

32.8%

Members’ repeat purchase
as a % of respective RSV

SEBHEBEGEBRTEEZEAL

Membership bonus points could be transferred to air
miles with China Southern Airlines
g RN KRR BT fERTER

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EAEBHRELEEEGR QT




Smart Production

We are adopting a more customer-driven approach in our production

and operations in order to drive excellence in customer experience.

Standardisation Automation
AL, B&1t
Smart
Production
Smart £ &
Digitalisation Intelligence
HEt Baelb

Customer-to-Manufactory (“C2M")

Our production framework enables us to move towards flexible
manufacturing and ultimately to the completion of our C2M
business model. This allows us to engage our customers along the
supply chain from design to manufacturing.

As a pilot, we introduced a jewellery customisation online platform
named “D-ONE” in Mainland China last year. It offers our
customers the unique experience of creating their own jewellery by
choosing the diamonds and settings according to their own
preferences.

In the future, we envision the customer experience to further
extend to our production hubs, so that customers would be able to
personally witness the craftsmanship of their customised jewellery
pieces. This will reinforce their personalised shopping journey from
design to manufacturing, packaging and delivery as a whole.

=5 E
=
EI.
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Smart £ &
BPRDRE A RS | AR REERS - B
SEBHETER -

[ [ ] \
—/

NN

7N

Customer-to-Manufactory
IICZMII

BEEHIRK

o B
S

BEHIK

o RAMAERER ERMNEEEAEN  KKEER
BEHTIHHEBEN  BEEAINSELRAEZLE
AR SEIRED

o BMEFNPENMEREHD [D-ONE] ZRE E 4 £
TR -BEEUBETE BEECHEHERDLMN
A BEEEMCENRESH  RETRMBEN

e o

o Sk BFBEE—SRIAERRR  ROMRGEE
i REESIARENRETE - hikst  82F 8%
EfWE - ZEABYERZSSEBMEEE -

"D-ONE" jewellery customisation online
platform with QR code access

R IS [D-ONE| SREEH4R L F &

Annual Report 2018 F %
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Production Framework HEEL
JEETENEZMISERE  RMSEASBERRMAEN
{EEMFEIRAER - Rt BOEEN KT HERE

EiEE

* In response to evolving market dynamics, we strive to deliver a °
personalised shopping journey to our customers. To achieve this,
we created our production framework characterised by four key
principles:

Standardisation {Z#{t

We consolidate, streamline and standardise relevant operations, procedures and specifications for better quality control and

efficiency.

HMES BEMRERAEEE -

Accreditations of intemational standards for
better production control and management
Accreditations from Integrated Management
Systems “IMS"” to standardise production
management and promote continuous
improvement.

Accreditations of precious metal testing
laboratories from China National Accreditation
Service "CNAS" also certified our attainment
of accuracy,
management system. All of our precious
metal testing laboratories in Mainland China
have received the same accreditations since
December 2017

consistency and level of

TR B - DAIRTH R BRI o

SIRBEREERGUBLEERE
fnER

RAEEEARE  EPRAEL
EEE  (RERENRE -

EBHEREZRIEZESESER
AERERE  BRARMEDIEEE
REERIE - IBEMEAMKF - BIE
TE R ATA &S BRI BT R
2017F 12 AE R EESIRE -

6

ISO 9001: Quality Management obtained
across all the production hubs

FA A EREIIGE &S 1SO 9001 ¢

mEEERE

G

ISO 14001: Environmental Management
obtained in the production hubs in Wuhan
and Shenzhen

% FORYI A EE I B #1S0 14001 ¢

BAEERE

OHSAS 18001: Occupational Health and
Safety Management obtained in the
production hubs in Wuhan and Shenzhen
% ORI A EEFR 3 B % OHSAS 18001
BELZTEREERE

Automation BEj{L

Upon standardisation, automated facilities can be operated efficiently to reduce lead time and enhance reliability.

TREELE  BEMCRBEERRE G SR - BREEREREAAEE -

Automated facilities and distribution system
Wuhan
deployed an automatic weighing system and
an automated guided vehicle in FY2018 to
realise unmanned logistics in production lines.

Production Centre successfully

In addition, Phase | of Logistics and Distribution
Centre in Shunde has started its operation
since FY2017 Phase |l is expected to
commence operation in FY2019 to further
uplift the distribution capacity.

BEtRERESRS
RERELEEPLR2018H K
FERYBAEHHERSGLED
ol AEGBRTEREAL
YIRBRAE »

lgeyin kB E PO E—HER
2017 R FE 2 E - IR FE =
HIiS 20198 IRFE R & @ &
AL ERE ST & — PRIt -

Logistics and Distribution Centre in Shunde

IEfE i K B A

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EAEBHRELEEEGR QT
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Digitalisation £t

Simultaneously, data analytics are widely deployed to strengthen the production planning and supply chain management.
R - RPRZEBEIBESNT - s EER B s EsEEe -

RFID application o FEFEARGTIAR B AT

Extensive application of RFID technology is REDEEERLEZEREGRY
deployed to monitor the production status in PR BT - ABSRAEARAE - 7T
our Wuhan Production Centre which reduced BRI A 4040% o

order tracking time by about 40%.

Data Intelligence Space o HIREREZTME

Data Intelligence Space at our Shenzhen L PRI B B AR B B S ﬁé ?
Research and Development Centre provides a M AEEERHEKGEIET
comprehensive data platform for management i ERARERNERRREE %( %F
to monitor production processes and analyse HETH *ﬁ

production data in real time.

Data Intelligence Space HUi% %5 425

—0- JR—

—0-

Intelligence &E#E{L

Following digitalisation and application of sophisticated mathematical algorithms, we can automate the business decision
making process to deliver more reliable and consistent production and operations.

BIEBBBLEMERMEEE  EREXEAKEBRADL  TELEEMZEANSE -

Plant simulation system o HEBHEHRE

We deployed a pilot plant simulation system 2018438 AEHHEEGHERZ o T
in one of our production lines in Wuhan EEAEPLEP A ERRE Illmh“l J l
Production Centre in March 2018. VESR B ETT © t = T
The system optimises layout of the production ARG R E RIS T — —mmmm llllﬂr
lines, predicts production process bottlenecks ERTERMEE - ﬁgﬁ*jﬁjuﬁﬁtgﬁ@ ll-l I'Ill h|||!

and estimates production capacity to improve FHRRER  BLEESNRE - « maDimmE « AnzHmRs
resource allocation and production efficiency. RAERAEERE Plant simulation system 4 Z= {5 & %4t

Annual Report 2018 F %
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Smart Advisor Smart E&[5

Technology and innovation not only drive the strategies in our BHLAIFT B #H) [ Smart+ 2020 {EZRHKRES - R ES
“Smart+ 2020" framework, but also empower us, with the aid of data BBEOMERR  EFRMELEWNREBUARERT - NIEMH
analytics and insights, to improve operating efficiency and to deliver an SA R ALE o

exceptional customer experience.

Data analytics and insights EHR 9 HTEL R R
* Following the successful deployment of our RFID-enabled Smart e BH-FRIKMEHEGIEEAANSHERERE KM
Tray three years ago, we continued our efforts to enhance the —EHBNR IR EDREFIREER

functionality and experience of the device.

* \We aim to not only further smoothen the customer sales process, o BT EFLEBMEMNHEREFEINIEL - &ATLAEM
but also to analyse customer preference in a more systematic and RGBT EADTERNE T KM °
scientific way.

¢ Data that passes through the analytic process empowers us with o HELKLBONERELAERNEWR  EPRMARSE
useful insights for spearheading various business strategies and LIRERRIZ M T E - AEHRRE RE -
making informed decisions.

Smart Tray smoothens our sales process and
enables us to analyse customer preference
BRETREHEREENIES - YEBBR
HMIDTMERNS I R MK
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Examples of applied data analytics:

F&E FABUR 5> HT R R ) -

<
Il

NN

Predictive analytics

Predictive analytics empowers business knowledge and
decision-making in a scientific way. A test would be designed
for a particular initiative such as a new collection launch or
marketing event. The performance of the test group would be
compared with those in a selected control group. Through
predictive analytics, we can identify the performance drivers
and assess the profitability impact effectively.

Inventory assortment and distribution

Inventory assortment and distribution to a particular store
could be more effective with insights into customer
preferences based on the analysis of information collected
such as product view times, frequency and stock-out ratio, etc.

Performance management

The collected data could also provide us with insights to
evaluate our salespersons’ performance, so that we could
develop targeted-trainings to improve their sales
technigues and strategies.

Managing Director’s Strategic Report
EEAKERERE

mR s

HPMEZEEBETEANN - URETE
EREBEANR  IFEHRE - EMHELITR
RONERSETHEEEDE  HMEREL
HERER - RRELLBSAR SR FENE
SRAARIEE R - MBI - BEIFKMA
R 38 B 40 4] Hf B 4B 2 B BT A H O B R R

=275
2

FEHERES

RIBE YR E R (BN E RBIEIRE - SR
RELERZ)NOAN - TRETET  #WEH
FEPIEEER RN FEAG KR -

EREE

W ERHB B BN T B E A B VR
RI - BULEL TR - SIRTSE LR IE -
1RTHE Tyt E R I B AREE
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Smart Office

We believe that culture is the key enabler behind continued

innovation and our ability to attract and retain the right talent to
contribute to the sustainable development of the Group and the
jewellery industry as a whole.

Internal innovation incubator

Sustainability and Innovation Centre (“Sl Centre”)

We are committed to uplifting our customer experience by
harnessing innovation and technology across our key operations.

To facilitate the more effective allocation of resources, and to
support our conventional jewellery retail business, we set up a new
S| Centre in April 2018, comprising three key areas of focus —
culture and art, craftsmanship and creativity.

A designated management team is responsible for the investment
in innovation, brand management, culture and art, craftsmanship,
technology and data applications to underpin the sustainable
growth of the Group.

External innovation incubator
Loupe at PMQ in Central, Hong Kong

A common design incubation space was established in December
last year to foster creativity and to provide an engagement platform
for local and international talent in the jewellery sector.

We aim to nurture young jewellery talent in engaging ways such as
offering co-working space where they can share design ideas,
acquire craftsmanship techniques and participate in workshops led
by industry professionals.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EAEBHRELEEEGR QT

Smart HAE

BHEE MLRFEAFNEZEH - hB RN
HEMRBAEBEAS  BAEEUZEZEEAKEBETEN
AEEEREEHER -

MBI RIHIEE

AEEERERAF DO

BN T BEBLERRNMABEFME - BAERE

I

B2 o

HMIR2018F4 AR ATFHEER RAF T L - & E
wt%m TEMABE=ZKEE  EREAMIED
BREFERURETERT -

BMPCZREEEEENK  BHEAF  REEE UL
By T8 MRHEIUBEEASEENKRE  AXHE
KENAFEER

IMERRIBIFTIE S
EEBTIRTEIS Loupe

EE12 AR HERIEE M BUKDAS T A
i R B SRR —EE B RNTES o

BMEENESN AN BEEFERIRBEAS  EMREMH
ﬁEIﬂEFﬁ EMARRRFES BEIEEBR
Q‘Eﬂ }I #ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁlﬂfﬁ °

//\

1
Loupe advertisement
Loupe EFES

2
Co-working space for designers

BERRETRDGE A Y I TERD



C* Creative Park in Wuhan, Mainland China

Echoing the spirit of innovation and entrepreneurship advocated
by the Chinese government, alongside our “Smart+ 2020" strategic
framework, we established the “C* Creative Park” in Chow Tai
Fook Jewellery Park in Wuhan, Mainland China. The aim is to
support talent in technological development, to promote our
entrepreneurial culture and to encourage the pursuit of various
long-term business opportunities.

Culture preservation and inheritance

As we are approaching 90 years of operating history, we have

always taken the lead in preserving, passing on and promoting culture
and craftsmanship.

Franco-Chinese Branding Forum

Following our participation in the third Franco-Chinese Branding
Forum in Paris, France last year to share our inspirations with
prominent designers from the West, we invited 6 French designers
to join us for a cultural exchange where we successfully
collaborated to launch the “Palace” Collection during FY2018.

To foster the exchange of inspirational designs, selected senior
management and designers across the Group have participated
in the Forum in May this year, where various activities such as
jewellery market seminars, craftsmanship workshops and museum
visits were offered.

Ancient Chinese gold techniques exhibition

We are dedicated to promoting sustainable development of the
jewellery industry and continued inheritance of traditional jewellery
craftsmanship techniques.

To preserve and inherit ancient Chinese goldsmith techniques, we
supported and sponsored a research project that spanned
three years, and concluded with an exhibition of ancient Chinese
gold and silver wares to showcase the beauty of these traditional

gold art work.

Managing Director’s Strategic Report
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PEINMHEEC AIZE]

BMEETERNEENAIMEAIZRES  BBE
[Smart+ 2020 KEEHESE - LR BN E 2R B REIR
E(tEZERRNZ[CAIEE] - BRENIFRIRE
BRAT - (REAIZEXL - URBESREERREE

AL REFLRER

BB ZET0F - —mMNARE - &

& XL &

TEACHE-

A R 1 S U R E

BEF2IEREREZERERM S ERE - BEDH
B 787 AT D SRR 1R 0 BAPIBES T 660 A B AR AT A
AT SRHEFT S 23+ S 2018 B B & B 1 & 1R HE
[=E ] &5 -

SELHENDRERAEMRAMMZET SF5AH
BUOTHNBERE  FHEEREM SIS  IT8IE
DMEYERSEE - MEERABERAN

TEHEREESTERE

HPFEERERRETENTSERR  URER
KETENEA -

AP ERES TENER B —BRP=F
MTRIEE  BEUPEAERESBRF[ANREESR
B URTESRESTEZX -

The opening ceremony of
"“C* Creative Park” in September 2017
[CRIRE | 7201749 A&

2

“Palace” Collection collaborated with
French designers is now available in
our Jewelria POS in Mainland China
SRR AR (=R 27
ERFENENEAEEETEHET
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Human Resources Management ANEFEHR

Number of employees by reportable segment ZTT 2R HEBEISHETEHE

As at 31 March 2018
MR2018F3A31H

219% — 4 Total number of employees
ETHEE

L 29,200+ 49

B Mainland China F Bt
B Hong Kong, Macau and other markets &% + P9 & 2715

Number of employees by function ZEEEEISHIE TEHE

As at 31 March 2018
7A2018F3H31H

19.6%

60.9%

19.5% B sales 2&
B Production £ &
I General and administration — & & 1T

e QOur business growth and success are led and supported by our o R EMSBILRENKD)  ARRSREIEBENTE &
people dedicated to their professional duties and their expertise STEEEM  ETREERSEES -
across different operational areas.

e Apart from this, maintaining an effective franchised business o BRILZAN HIFEHIMBEEBERNEE  HRMOBER

operation is essential to our growth. To this end, we proactively BAEZ - At RABHIIFNEENE THEIIFE
support the employees under our franchised partners with training B UERE—BVERERNRE  ITREAEEN
and development so that consistency of customer experience and BEKINEHBE R °

services can be warranted which will eventually contribute to the
overall success of the Group.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EAEBHRELEEEGR QT
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Number of learning programmes offered Aggregate training hours
CiREEEREHE b= Ekied

FY2018 Fr2018

2018 = 2018 =

800+ 710,000+ (O

Training and Development B

e Nurturing our people with comprehensive training and development .
programmes and inspiring their personal growth are vital to our
sustainability strategy.

alll 2 3%
BBSTHIMERAUERET  REEARE T
AEETRERRABNERTE -

CTF Academy BXiEsEdls2pr

e Numerous learning courses are offered ranging from knowledge of .
jewellery and watches to training in specific skills such as sales and
marketing techniques for our colleagues.

BMRAEZEZERIE ATBEKREERNBNAE
HERTELIE - PImst B RIS 7 $HE BRI -

Qualifications Framework accredited courses BEREEAERRE

e Four types of accredited gemstone courses recognised by the °
Qualifications Framework of the HKSAR Government are arranged
for our colleagues on a regular basis.

e More than 1,300 employees have completed the accredited °
courses since the launch in 2013.

BMPEMAE I RHNBERBHITRRBAERER
BRENEORE -

52013 F 1T A5 - EA#IB1,3000 B T MK
iz -

E=l
koj
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[ ] :
H Knowledge acquired from the “Smart Learning”
o mobile app can be applied on the job,
‘ and salesperson’s performance can be tracked
ﬁﬂE in the “Smart Talent” mobile app
- #5758 F R A RE = AR A9 08 &
m s 0 i AIEARH EILIEF : METAREEAEH 0
O THEFBHTUES [EA) @
f F O fEBE SR o
“Smart Learning” “Smart Talent”
mobile app mobile app
S8 FHERER MEA] F#EREX

Mobile learning and assessment platforms

* We launched our “Smart Learning” and “Smart Talent” mobile

apps in 2017.

e The “Smart Learning” mobile app is an online platform that our
people can access at their own convenience, which helps cultivate
a corporate culture of continuous learning. Currently more than 70

courses are offered through the app.

e The "Smart Talent” mobile app enables our people to set their
sales targets and monitor their own performance continuously.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EARBHKELEEEGR QT

FHREBEFZFE
o HPAIN20M7 L [EE] RIEAI FHRERER -

o BB FHREREAZREIIBEREARLTFEER
APRBERESBENLEL - BATRMIBBZER
EARHEBE70ERIE -
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Chow Tai Fook Management Forum

e To foster communication and engagement with our people across

the Group, we organised a two-day Chow Tai Fook Management
Forum named “Ready for the Future” in Mainland China and Hong
Kong in November last year. More than 200 colleagues were
invited to participate in the forum to understand the Group's
strategic direction and the business dynamics we have been

facing so far.

Our senior management and guest speakers were also invited to
share their thoughts and to discuss with the floor in interactive
sessions.

Talent development

e To nurture young talent and leverage their competencies for

Internship
and Management Trainee Programmes regularly to recruit young
talent in Mainland China and Hong Kong.

business development, we launched “Smart Learning”

For the “Smart Learning” Internship Programme, students are
enriched through exposure to various kinds of training, on-the-job
experiences and participation in projects. Business insights are also
acquired from interactions with our senior management. More than
30 students were admitted to the programme last year.

To attract talented candidates, we launched the Management
Trainee Programme in Mainland China and Hong Kong. The
programme is designed to accelerate the professional development
of our staff and enhance their contribution to the Group through
extensive exposure, such as job rotation experience and multi-skill

training and development.
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ARG S 1 wE

. %ﬁi&%@%%ﬁ?)\%%%ﬁ@) CEFNH AN
[ AR R AR EADEEERRSHMX
IEPNE] m% g BB 200 R EERIBE - AR
HEBNRB T ARENEBDENTHE -

c RESREBAEBNEERERENSZT AR  HES

SHEETE W -

AT ERE

HPEMERS2RE A RAEEEARE
BETBEAMEFEFEAL - UIFERE - WAHEE
NMRERF R -

S2MIBBERE|FENEE  BBEZREI - BB
B HEZ2HES ASREEAREYR EE
KR - EFBBI0MBE2ELEE -

BMETERNEFERREEERABFE  HE

BEANS - stEBBRAGE  ZRERIRERS
BRAETITRE HEAMREIZXER Ml
SEHER -

1
Initiation of thinking and discussion in
the forum

WESERET®

2

One of the sharing sessions from our guest
speaker, Mr. Shih Wing-Ching, regarding
the philosophy of governance
DERBREEEL KT LE - UER
LBELBREDZT
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Business Outlook and Strategies

We are delighted to have enjoyed a year of recovery with resilient
business performance seen in both Mainland China and Hong Kong
and Macau. Against the backdrop of the shifting retail landscape, we
remain confident in the prospects of the Greater China jewellery
market in FY2019 and beyond, as it enables us to explore new
customer segments and unleash the full potential of our capabilities.

“Smart+ 2020" three-year
strategic work plan in FY2018 committing to delivering seamless

To this end, we have embarked on our

experiences to our customers in the long-term with the following five
areas of focus: (1) introducing more product offerings and innovations
coupled with the launch of our multi-brand strategy; (2) enhancing
in-store experiences and fostering omni-channel retailing; (3) cultivating
customer-led manufacturing capabilities and versatile supply chain to
reinforce a personalised shopping journey; (4) investing in big data
analytics to empower insights for a more efficient operational model
that can respond to fast-changing consumer preferences; (5) inspiring
an innovative and entrepreneurial culture for talent development
across the Group and the jewellery industry as a whole.

Corporate social responsibility is recognised as part of our guiding
business principles and a key metric to our success. In FY2018, we
continued our focus on “Do Good"” programme to promote a positive
and caring attitude that is embedded in our corporate culture to
showcase our commitment to create a better world. We adhere to the
efficient use of economic, social and environmental resources while
being mindful of our responsibility to society and creating shared value
with our stakeholders and in the community.

¥ Scan the QR code to refer to our Sustainability Report
R S 2NN [AHEERRE

Supported by our people with their dedication and hard work to
execute and deliver the business and social initiatives together, we
firmly believe that Chow Tai Fook is well-placed to achieve sustainable
business development and emerge stronger than ever in the years to
come.

Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent
Managing Director
Hong Kong, 7 June 2018
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Business Review
7% [0l ER

FY2018 marked a year of recovery. Our operations
revived meaningfully backed by improving macro-economic

2018 BUF AL R1ERE 2 F o
HEBRRLE  FERFA

environment and buoyant consumer demand.

Revenue Breakdown

Group

N

N ]

TR LK
K&

—E LELEE

#=E

@
Ly

ERBEELQT -

R 8

S

HE

Revenue by reportable segment %T 2R A PHIR LT

For the year ended 31 March #Z3A31HILFE

(HK$ million & &7 7T)

80,000 77,407 YoY change
Eil=4-24
64,277
60,000 56,502 59,156 —— A15.4%
54.5% 51,246
58.9% .
40,000 59.5% 62.2% —— A18.7%
60.5%
20,000 45.5%
41.1% 40.5% 39.5% 37.8% —— A105%
’ W B Mainland China FEI Rt
0 [ M Hong Kong, Macau and other markets &% + BFIR H T35
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
THFY 2HFY
1HFY2017  2HFY2017  1HFY2018  2HFY2018 YoY change YoY change
2017 2017 2018 2018 HBEE MBEE
MBEE MBEE MBEE BHREE ExE T¥E
Revenue (HK$ million) EEBE(ABER) EF TEF EgEF TE B4 -X(4 B4 -X(4
Mainland China AR A 3 12,851 18,169 14,944 21,860 A16.3% A20.3%
Hong Kong, Macau and B BPIRHMTES
other markets 8,675 11,551 9,810 12,542 A13.1% A8.6%
Overall ped] 21,526 29,720 24,754 34,402 A15.0% A15.8%
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Revenue contribution from Mainland China increased steadily over
the past few years, and contributed to 62.2% of the Group's
revenue in FY2018.

Full year revenue increased by 15.4% year-on-year to HK$59,156
million.

Operations in both reportable segments rebounded in FY2018.
Mainland China reported a 18.7% growth in revenue while Hong
Kong, Macau and other markets delivered a 10.5% increase.

Revenue growth in Mainland China during 2HFY2018 accelerated
to 20.3% from 16.3% in THFY2018 due to RMB appreciation,
whereas that of Hong Kong, Macau and other markets moderated
t0 8.6% in 2HFY2018 from 13.1% in THFY2018.

Business Review

E3 0]

BEBFPRAMANEEFERMBL LT 120184
BERHEREZRE62.2% -

PELEEERF F7115.4% £59,166 AE BT °

RER 2R MR 2018 R FENE L EBE 2O
25 o MBI EERIER187%  MEE B
Hiii581 E7H10.5% ©

PEAMR 2018 RERE T FMaRFILRMR -
H2018MFE L ¥FH16.3% H£E203% TEF
BERARKTHE - MEE - BPIREM IS S R EEE
RAIH 2018 IF Z L 815 13.1% K THIE T 183K
EE2018HHFE THF8.6% HTHE o

Revenue by product (excluding jewellery trading and service income from franchisees)

RESHSHEXR(TLEKREZE S RMBAEHIRBEIKN)

For the year ended 31 March #Z=3A31H L FE
(HK$ million & &%)

80,000 77,258 YoY change
1414
20.9% 64,181
60,000 56,126 57,892 —  A13.9%
26.9% 50,821
26.8% 237% —— A6.9%
I 25.3%
40,000 613%
53.3%
5 59.4% —— A17.8%
55.8% 57.4% ° °
20,000
13.4% 14.4% 12.4% 11.5% 109% —— A7.9%
0 4.3% 5.3% 5.0% 5.7% 6.0% —— A18.3%
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
% of Revenue EEEEL
Gem-set jewellery KEERE
Gold products EEEM
Platinum/Karat gold products A KEER
Watches §E ik

Revenue contribution from gold products rose by 200 basis points
year-on-year to 59.4% in FY2018, reflecting robust customer
demand for gold products, especially during THFY2018. Gold
products mix was relatively stable in 2HFY2018 at around 60%
comparing to that of 2HFY2017.

Watches continued to show resilient performance during FY2018
and delivered a 18.3% revenue growth, thanks to market recovery.

W Gem-set jewellery BREESERRE &
B Gold products E£ER
B Platinum/Karat gold products #& /KE£ER
B Watches 8
1HFY2017 2HFY2017 1HFY2018 2HFY2018
2017 BIBEFE 2017 T FE 2018 A F 2018 ST F &
E¥EF T¥EF E¥F T¥EF
27.2% 24.0% 24.2% 23.4%
53.6% 60.1% 57.8% 60.5%
12.9% 10.6% 11.3% 10.6%
6.3% 5.4% 6.7% 5.4%

2018 FE - ELEMMEXFEERIZE L7 20014
BFEL9.4%  RMIEEN2018FRFE LY FES
ERHRIEEE R 2018 BERE T HFENESED
IEELE2017 T FE T HFRE - BERFR60% °

o BERMIGHEER  N2018MHRFE @ ERFEBESE

RRE N  $1518.3% HEEHEER -

Annual Report 2018 F %

45



Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWEDIN

Mainland China hE R

Revenue by operation model #&EERENDHIL LT

For the year ended 31 March #3831 B 15 E
(HKS$ million B&#7t)

Revenue RSV
50,000 YoY change YoY change
= TEE
42,148 =227 B[22 (3
40,000 37,842 36,804 — A187% A14.0%
33,670
31,019
30,000
76.2%
75.8%
20,000 78.6% 78.4% 76.3% ——  A15.6% A12.9%
10,000
23.8% 24.2% 21.4% 21.6% 237% —— A29.9% a166% W H Retail &
0 B Wholesale #t 2%
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

* In Mainland China, our retail revenue represents sales from self- o RABE AN RFANSELEBIEXRGELTED
operated POS, e-commerce and other direct channels, while BB LEMERERENNET  mMitiE XEAE
wholesale revenue represents sales to franchisees and provision of MNEEEEERERF—FERE S THMER
services to franchisees under the inventory ownership unification RERBAUA -
programme.

e Franchisees’ gradual adoption of the inventory ownership o B&NBEELEERNGE—FEREESSE  FBE
unification programme led to a low comparison base in prior years FRELREHUEAEKT - BE 20188 B F E f#ib &
which resulted in a faster growth in wholesale revenue than RSV in EREENERGNTZEE FR2ERAR—GFEHEGRE
FY2018. Upon complete adoption of the programme, the trends of AR RIS ERETEENEL B ABUER -

wholesale revenue and RSV are expected to converge.
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Hong Kong, Macau and other markets

Business Review

E3 0]

Tt RFIRHEM TS

Revenue by operation model & EERENDHIL LT

For the year ended 31 March #3831 B 15
(HKS$ million B&#7t)

40,000 YoY change
35,259 Eil=4-214

30,000

26,435
22,921 22,352 ——  A105%
20,226
20,000
99.5%
98.2%
10.000 95.3% 95.4% 923% ——  A6.9%
0 0.5% 1.8% 4.7% 4.6% 7.7% ——  A85.4%
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

* In Hong Kong, Macau and other markets, our retail revenue
represents sales from self-operated POS, e-commerce and other
direct channels, while wholesale revenue represents sales to
franchisees, sales to retailers and sales from jewellery trading.

* \Wholesale revenue contribution expanded by 310 basis points to
7.7% during FY2018, primarily due to the increase in sales from
jewellery trading business.

Wl Retail T&
B Wholesale #t3#

o REER EMAREMTES  RANZTEEEREEKRAE
ETEH ETEBRHEMERRENHER Mt
EEBARAMBEHHEESER ADHEAHEEERAR
KEKEESNHER

o 2018FBFE WEEXEIRM LAZOERTE
77%  TEHRREEZFEBNHERERMAE -
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SSSG FEHEER
Group &5
SSSG by major market ZFEFHIBEPMRAEHERRE
17.4%
19% | 114%  130%
. 5.2%
3.9% 900 )
5.4% 5.0% 6.8%
4.2%
=0~ Mainland China I EIR it
-30.3% =0~ Hong Kong and Macau &8 & ®F9
10 20 30 4Q 10 20 3Q 40
FY2017 FY2018
2017 B E 20181 N FE
FY2017 FY2018
2017 B E 2018 B L E
SSS volume
SSSG SSSG growth
FEHEERR FEHEER FEEHBIER
Mainland China AR v52% A 8.0% A 1.2%
Hong Kong and Macau E8 OB v 12.4% A 10.2% A6.1%

In Mainland China and Hong Kong and Macau, SSSG turnaround
commenced in 2HFY2017 and the recovery trend sustained
into FY2018.

SSSG was driven by both ASP and volume growth in both markets
during the financial year. Yet, Hong Kong and Macau registered a
stronger volume growth than Mainland China.

SSSG in Hong Kong and Macau stood at 10.2% in FY2018. Despite
a high comparison base, the strong momentum continued in
2HFY2018 in Hong Kong and Macau, thanks to the improving
consumer sentiment and reviving Mainland visitation.

SSS in Mainland China grew by 8.0% in FY2018. Including our
e-commerce business, Mainland China SSSG would be 10.8%.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EAEBHRELEEEGR QT

RPBERAREERRM  MENREHEERA
2017 B EE T HFHRB QT - LR 2018 RFE

P50 PORO L 8 S R B 35 5 R
RATHD o S RRPI OB RRTANLAR) -

2018 E - B RRPINRIEHEIERR10.2% -
RENHEEBENRAERS  NBRERHARET
B b MBS - BB LRFIR 2018 FE T HF
FIE RE)NRANRSS

2018 A E - PRI RS HERLRKB8.0% » MEtA
HMWETFHBES PRAMOREHEEER
/E\‘J/‘:%’IO.SWO °©



Business Review

EdE)
Mainland China ch[E] A i
SSSG of major products FEESHMEEHEMR
17.2% 16.1% 14.8% 13.6%
8.1%
33%
7.9%
-O- Gem-set jewellery BREEHRE
-26.7% =O- Gold products & ER
1Q 2Q 3Q 4Q 1Q 2Q 3Q 4Q
FY2017 FY2018
201781 BV 2018 I F

FY2018 FY2017 FY2018
2018 BB E 2017 B E 2018 I E

SSS volume
SSSG growth Same Store ASP"" Same Store ASP
FEEHEER FEHBER BEFHEED FEFHEE
Gem-set jewellery RERIRE AN v 2.0% v 8.2% HK$6,300 HK$6,700
Gold products HEEM A 13.0% A 1.0% HK$3,500 HK$4,000
Platinum/Karat gold products e KEER A 1.9% A 7.6% HK$1,900 HK$1,800
Watches ik A 17.9% A 0.3% HK$12,600 HK$14,800

Overall ®ez A 8.0% A 1.2%

(1) Same Store ASP on FY2018 Same Store basis

e SSSG in Mainland China was generally fuelled by gold products
which delivered a growth of 13.0% in FY2018.

* Gold products ASP was lifted by 11.9%, benefitted from a gain in
the average weight per gold product sold during FY2018. Average
international gold price appreciated by 2.1% year-on-year in FY2018.

e Gem-set jewellery SSS reported a negative growth of 2.0% in
FY2018 due to volume decline. ASP, however, expanded by 6.8%
year-on-year to HK$6,700, as we have been focusing on upselling
during FY2018.

(1

& F 4945 B 1A 2018 B B 4F 2 ) RIS {24

2018 R E - PRINMAFEEHEERER LRES
13.0% FHEME S EmMAHE -

2018 BFE  XEREEEERTHENERE
meBERERMNTHEBELT11.9% © 2018 HFE -
B P BRIRFE ETF2.1% ©

2018 BFE - REERAMHNR/EHEEREHE
TREMEEG20% W EE R - AT - FHEBRIRF
F76.8% %6700 T - RERKMEHMERHH
EBERRSNREER -
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWEDIN

Hong Kong and Macau

FHERIRAM

SSSG of major products FEESHMEEHEMR

20.6% 22.2%

19.2%

-36.0%

-O- Gem-set jewellery BREEHRE
=O- Gold products & ER

1Q 2Q 3Q 4Q 1Q 2Q 3Q 4Q
FY2017 FY2018
201781 BV 2018 I F

FY2018 FY2017 FY2018
2018 BB E 2017 B E 2018 I E

SSS volume
SSSG growth Same Store ASP"" Same Store ASP
FEHEER F/EHEER BEFHEED B/ FHERE
Gem-set jewellery TRE SR A A 11.6% A 17.6% HK$12,300 HK$11,600
Gold products BEOEMR A 10.3% A27% HK$6,800 HK$7,300
Platinum/Karat gold products AT KEER A 45% A 6.9% HK$1,700 HK$1,700
Watches fi7d A 13.1% A 6.1% HK$47,900 HK$51,100

Overall bt A 10.2% A 6.1%

(1) Same Store ASP on FY2018 Same Store basis

e SSSG in Hong Kong and Macau was supported by both gem-set
jewellery and gold products in FY2018.

° Gold products SSSG moderated to 7.3% in 2HFY2018 due to the
higher base of comparison as key recovery in the performance of
gold products commenced in 3QFY2017.

e Gem-set jewellery SSSG in Hong Kong and Macau rebounded
strongly since 2QFY2018, supported by improving consumer
sentiment, a favourable comparison base as well as our effective
promotional efforts.

50 Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EAEBHRELEEEGR QT

R P 4945 B 1A 2018 BA B 4F 1 R A B 24

° 2018MRFE  BEMEMMRMEHELRSDHIRE
KEZEREHRFELER °

e ANBSEMNKREN20MTIRFEE=FERE
BAEAE DELREABRE  F2018W K FE
THE HeEMNREHERERM E7.3% °

o ERAMEMKESZMENHNEEHEIERE2018HK
FEE_ZFERRAYON  TERARBBBERER
Z 0 URBFO L BRESMBFIRITE RO ERED



Business Review

EdE)
Mainland China Business ch B A th Y EF5 35 R
POS movement by store brand” — Mainland China ZEHRMESTHNTELESH — chE R
During FY2018
As at " 31.3.2016 31.3.2017 2018 B E 31.3.2018
Total Total Addition Reduction Net Total
“st st 3 W FRABRE “st

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery BREH%RE 2,052 2,118 296 (97) 199 2,317

CTF Watch BAREER 122 117 4 (15) (11) 106

Hearts On Fire Hearts On Fire 5 8 - (2) (2) 6

SOINLOVE SOINLOVE - - 9 - 9 9

MONOLOGUE MONOLOGUE - 3 8 - 8 11
(1) SIS and CIS excluded (1) TEFEERERERSE
RSV by product BESZEIFHNTEE

5.2% — g
12.2% / Aoy 24.0%

12.7%
26.4%
FY2017 FY2018
2017E 2018 B B
[ ] [ ] Gem-set jewellery BRI Sz & &
] Gold products B E
58.7% ] Platinum/Karat gold products $1&, K& ER
] ] Watches &k
RSV YoY change
ZEERLE L

Gem-set jewellery IRE SR E A35%

Gold products BHEEM A 20.1%

Platinum/Karat gold products A KEER A90%

Watches R A 13.7%

Overall = A 14.0%
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWEDIN

RSV by channel REHEREESNTER

4.5%
5.6%
FY2017
2017 FE
89.9% .
. o

FY2018
2018E B
[ ] Chow Tai Fook Jewellery AXIBHRE
| Other store brands'? E /&4 ME?
[ E-commerce® BF K"

RSV YoY change

ZEAERERL
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery BAREKE A 12.3%
Other store brands? Hi R mE @ A 13.1%
E-commerce® EFEE A 66.8%
Overall BE A 14.0%

(2) CTF Watch, Hearts On Fire, SOINLOVE and MONOLOGUE included

(3)  Major platforms included Chow Tai Fook e-shop, Tmall, JD.com, Vipshop; Online order distribution excluded

In FY2018, as our Mainland China business was predominately

(2) BFEEAREIEE - Hearts On Fire * SOINLOVE & MONOLOGUE

Q) FEFABERAARMBMEEEES XRH RE ERE BTREKLIE

bl

2018 E - BFIPEAMNEB BRI REAKXE

contributed by Chow Tai Fook Jewellery POS which accounted for HKEBEZEZ  hTEEH0% * U T ERZEKIE
approximately 90% of the RSV, the following analyses would focus on DT
its operations:
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery POS AXEXRETED
RSV and POS by tier of cities BT RFNEISNTEERTEY
\ 17.4%
23.0% 11.5%
% of POS % of RSV
TEHhLL SEEKL
| | ] Tier | cities —#R¥H ™
59.5% —— ] Tier Il cities =#3i
] Tier Ill cities and others = &3 R H At
FY2018 net POS movement
RSV YoY change 2018 BB EE
SEERBLZL SENFEY
Tier | cities — R A 12.4% A 19
Tier Il cities BT A 129% A 119
Tier Ill cities and others =R R E A A 10.5% A6l

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EAEBHRELEEEGR QT



e All tiers of cities reported positive RSV growth in FY2018, reflecting
a broad recovery in Mainland China. Tier | and Il cities continued to

outperform Tier Il cities and others during the financial year.

* Yet, Tier Il cities and others gained traction in 2HFY2018 and
delivered a comparable RSV performance with Tier | and Il cities

during the period.

Business Review

E3 0]

2018 FE - B TARNBHETEEERRK &
R BN EEARE R 2E - — R BRI EE
BRBER =R READ

AW ZET REMNR2018FHFE T FFERME
AEE N - AN TEERRE KGR _FEHAE -

RSV and POS by operation model

REEEXIINTEERTER

34.1% 40.3%
39.9%
36.5%
% of POS % of RSV
SEMEE ZEMEMLLL
[ ] [ ] Self-operated (Department store) E& (B&E A a))
4.6% \ 2.9% 20.7% ] Self-operated (Shopping mall) E#& (B#50)
' ‘ 2 ] Self-operated (Standalone store) B (HH/E)
21.0% ———— [ | Franchised /&8
FY2018 net POS movement
RSV YoY change 2018 I F &
SEEBL L ZENFEY
Self-operated (Department store) B (BERA A 3.0% v 32
Self-operated (Shopping mall) B (EYHL) A 30.1% A 119
Self-operated (Standalone store) HE(FHEE) A 1.3% v?2
Franchised hngd A 16.6% A 114

e While all operation models delivered an improvement in
RSV performance during FY2018, shopping mall remained the

best performer.

e Majority of our openings were in shopping malls, with a net
openings of 119 POS in FY2018. Meanwhile, we maintained a net
closure in department stores but closures have been narrowed to
32 POS in FY2018 as retail landscape stabilised and macro-

environment improved.

2018 FE - MALERANTEEDERE  miE
WD REPRBRENEEER

2018 RFE - FRIEEZLNEYTL - FHERTE
FRELE R 11918 - R - FRAPIR 2018 B R AR A RE B
BERARNTER  HBEZTEMSNBREE 28
RERFERE  FHEHBEREE2ETESH -
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWEDIN

Self-operated Chow Tai Fook Jewellery POS

HERAXEHRETEE

RSV per store by store age EEREINEETEE

140.0%
126.5%
120.0%
100.2%
100.0% A
83.4% FY2018 RSV per Same Store:
80.0% 74.4% HK$22.5 million?
20188 BFEREEHTEE :
0, S T (2)
60.0% 55.7% 225H8ET
40.0%
20.0%
0.0%
Less than 2 years 2-4 years 4-6 years 6-8 years 8 years or more Total
D2 2BAF AZ65F 6ZE8F 8FEHLULE “st
. 3/2010 or before
POS opening date BAJERHI  4/2016-3/2018 4/2014-3/2016 4/2012-3/2014 4/2010-3/2012 320105 B3]
POS ZER 279 251 238 226 399 1,393
% of POS ZEHLLL 20.0% 18.0% 17.1% 16.2% 28.7% 100.0%
M Ratio of annual RSV per store to RSV per Same Store (1) For POS of age less than 1 year, RSV is adjusted on an annualised basis

BEFETEEEREEGTEEZLA

BERER

BERTRIFNEEH 2T EERTCEERNE
(2)  Value-added tax (“VAT") included

Average quarterly sales FE¥FEHELE
(HK$ million E&%ET)

20.1%

21.7% 5.9
19.6%

4.6 4.7

5.0
4.3

6.0

31.7%

[ | FY2018 average quarterly SSS
2018 E P EEREEHE

] FY2017 average quarterly SSS®
2017 FE P FEEREHES

FY2018 quarterly SSS contribution to
annual SSS

20188 N EEE F 5 $H 3R
FEREHERNER

FY2017 quarterly SSS contribution to
annual SSS®

2017 B EEERE SR
FERIEHEENEH

10 2Q 3Q

(3

SSS on FY2018 Same Store basis

e Around 58% of the annual SSS was generated in 2HFY2018, this

was similar to that in 2HFY2017.

* 4Q being our peak season as driven by festive occasions such as
Chinese New Year and Valentine's Day, usually accounts for the

highest quarterly SSS contribution.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EAEBHRELEEEGR QT

4Q

(3) 4 b 2018 BT B 0 LS fd o

o 2018 MFETHFHSNEAEHEEZFREHE
#158% - ARG LLER 2017 BEFE T HFHE ©

o FNFEHEERENMFERBEASNEHETY  @ERM
MEF  ZFERFTERMNRAEHETERSNTER
& o
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E3 0]

E-commerce business EFABER
RSV by product RERISTHTEE
0/.0%
\7 8.8%
19.2% ———— i
FY2017 FY2018
2017 B E 2018 B &
] [ ] Gem-set jewellery TREE S E 8
] Gold products E&EMR
72.0% ] Platinum/Karat gold products $1& K& ER
] Watches 88
FY2018 FY2017 FY2018
2018 I E 2017 T E 2018 A E
RSV YoY change Z&ER &1t ASP ¥ EE ASP FiIE&EE
Gem-set jewellery REERR E A A 65.4% HK$1,400 HK$1,500
Gold products HOEMD A 90.3% HK$1,400 HK$1,600
Platinum/Karat gold products e KEER A 325% HK$900 HK$900
Watches Bk ¥ 51.0% HK$500 HK$900
Overall w®ps A 732% HK$1,200 HK$1,400
FY2018
2018 E
73 20/ YoY change 4 80/ 50+
- £ /0 Ere .0 /0
. E-commerce platforms
RSV of respective RSV EIEETA
ZEE HEEEEE

(FY2017 2017 B/ BUEE © 3.2%)

Contribution to respective retail sales volume

1HESRGLL

E-commerce

(Online order distribution included)

ot

(B4 LRTESE)

12.5%

(FY2017 2017 SEEE : 9.2%)

E-commerce platforms
EFHBEEE

11.7%

(FY2017 2017 BfBUEE © 9.0%)

(1) Source: Chow Tai Fook e-shop, Tmall and JD.com

Online order distribution

B ERTE S

0.8%

(FY2017 2017 AU @ 0.2%)

(2) Source: Official Sina Weibo, Tencent Weibo and WeChat accounts

385,000

Unique daily visitors!”

FEHgREES — TEBHEO

3,985,000+

Number of followers?
BEAE®@

(1) BIEHR : AAEBEERE R RAR
(2) BFROOR : FURMKIE - MRS RMIE T TRS
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWEDIN

e QOur e-commerce business accelerated and registered a significant
growth of 73.2% in FY2018, benefitted from a strengthened
co-operation with our major online platform partners.

e |t contributed to 4.8% of the RSV in Mainland China during FY2018,
which was generated from e-commerce platforms and online order
distribution.

Other store brands

e During the financial year, a net of 11 CTF Watch POS were closed
in Mainland China. Despite the closings, RSV of watches delivered
a promising growth of 13.7% thanks to recovery in the luxury
watch market.

* Presence of Hearts On Fire is primarily in SIS and CIS format by
leveraging our extensive retail network in Mainland China. Moving
ahead, enhancing store productivity through retail network
optimisation will be our priority for Hearts On Fire.

e |In FY2018, we opened 9 POS for SOINLOVE and 8 POS for
MONOLOGUE. We will continue to explore opportunities to further
roll out these brands in FY2019.

Hong Kong, Macau and Other Markets
Business

° R2018YBREFER  EFABEHLE - FREER &
1573.2% BRI TTIE - WWHEERBRMIRETER
FaBHNAE-

c 08 REE EFRABEBETERNBTEE
48%  BREREETEBTAERRLAEDENHE -

H fth 15 5 o b

o RABEFEAR - FEAMFHEM 1 EEARBERTE
BeoBENRFUEENER EHNBEBETHE
o ERNTEERSI13.T7%NABEE -

e BRM—EEMESFRTREANMEANTENEILRE
Hearts On Fire " R AERIERENEEAE - BE
KK BBECTEREIEHEHEE NG AT
& Hearts On Fire U Z T 1k -

° 2018 A - FMIFIRR 9 SOINLOVE ZE % K 8 1d
MONOLOGUE =& & - 2019 F & - FiPIigaEE
BEBEZZMEOER

FE AP IREMTIZHEEER

POS movement by store brand” — Hong Kong, Macau and other markets R/EfHREESNTEHEFH — F8  BFAREMTHES

As at ® 31.3.2016 313
Total
@st
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery FXFEEkE 123
Hong Kong B 86
Macau JEFY 20
Other markets HEfhmis 17
CTF Watch B KRB E 3
Hearts On Fire Hearts On Fire 14

(1) SIS and CIS excluded

* |In Hong Kong and Macau, consolidation of POS in touristic area
continued while there were openings focusing in residential
neigbourhoods, resulted in net closures of 3 POS in FY2018.
Majority of closures were located in touristic area such as Mong
Kok and Causeway Bay. Meanwhile, there were openings focusing
in other area such as Tsuen Wan and Yuen Long.

* We also opened 2 Chow Tai Fook Jewellery POS in Korea and 2 in
Japan to capture the opportunities arising from the demand of
Chinese customers there.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EAEBHRELEEEGR QT

2017

Total
et
118

80
18
20

4
13

During FY2018

2018 B 31.3.2018
Addition Reduction Net Total
B D R st
15 (14) 1 119
8 (10) (2) 78
1 (1) - 18
6 (3) 3 23
= (1) (1) 3
1 - 1 14
(1) TBEEPERENSE

o REENEF KRERBNZENFEES MAKEE
BAIFEMREER - BUE 2018 BFEFEH 3 EE
B8 o BRI D ERZAIAM A RIS SIREE - [
By FETER T 2N EE MBS S

o FAPITR D BIHA R B B AR 2 1 K B AN B AR 2 1B R R AR ER
ETEL - R EHEABETNTR -
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Hong Kong and Macau business EHERRMERER
RSV by product RERISTHTEE
6.4% T g
o —— 25.7%
9.5% 7% °
10.3%
25.5%
FY2017 FY2018
20178 BEFE 20188 LF
] [ ] Gem-set jewellery TREE EH# E 8
] Gold products B E
58.4% ] Platinum/Karat gold products $1&, K& ER
[ ] Watches 88
RSV YoY change
ZEERLSL
Gem-set jewellery RE R E A 30%
Gold products EHEEM ABGT7%
Platinum/Karat gold products e KEER v 0.8%
Watches $EiK A 19.3%
Overall it} A70%
Hong Kong and Macau industry performance & R&iEFIMITERIR
FY2018
201881 B E
0 0 o
- 1 0-5 A) YoY change Bttt - 6- 1 A) YoY change ELbE& 1t - 1 0-0 A) YoY change ELb&{t
Retail sales of jewellery industry Number of Mainland visitors®? Number of Mainland visitors®?
in Hong Kong" (Hong Kong) (Macau)
BRLKEXHEEER AR A B2 (FE) AR A B2 (GRPT)
Our Hong Kong and Macau performance #{fi%&i# & RFIRIRIR
FY2018
201881 B E
(1) o
v 7-2 /0 YoY change Bttt 44-6 /0 (FY2017 2017 #FE : 43.9%)
Customer traffic at POS RSV settled by China UnionPay, Alipay, WeChat Pay or RMB
ZEMTRE LIRBEIRE X8  HEXNIARBEEZZER
(1) Value of retail sales of jewellery, watches and clocks, and valuable gifts in Hong Kong according to (1) HREEH  EERREEANEANTELNEEE REEB8ETHRRERK
Census and Statistics Department of the HKSAR Government et
(2) Source: Commerce and Economic Development Bureau of the HKSAR and Macao Statistics and Census (2) BEBRR : EEFNTHRERRECERRBERMIRAEELESR
Service
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWEDIN

RSV and POS by area EEHEISHTEERTES

63.0%
37.0%
34.3%
65.7%
% of POS % of RSV
ZEHGE TEEGE
[ | | ] Touristic area® &
| ] Other area Hfthith &
FY2018 net POS movement
RSV YoY change 2018 I F &
ZEERBL#L ZEHNTFEY
Touristic area® Jiigid sl A% v 6
Other area H = A 11.0% A3

(3) Touristic area includes Causeway Bay, Tsim Sha Tsui, Mong Kok, Yau Mei Tei, Shatin, Sheung Shui,

Hong Kong International Airport, Hong Kong Disneyland and Macau

RSV of touristic area rebounded since THFY2018 and increased by
4.1%. RSV growth improved to 5.6% in 2HFY2018 from 1.8% in
THFY2018 amid a recovering Mainland visitation to Hong Kong.

Customer traffic decline narrowed to 7.2% year-on-year during
FY2018. Decline in customer traffic improved sequentially from
8.4% in THFY2018 to 2.5% in 2HFY2018.

The percentage of RSV settled by China UnionPay, Alipay, WeChat
Pay or RMB to the total RSV of Hong Kong and Macau market, a
proxy for sales contribution from Mainland tourists, improved
slightly from 43.9% to 44.6% in FY2018. The percentage was
42.6% and 46.1% in THFY2018 and 2HFY2018, respectively.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EAEBHRELEEEGR QT

Q) IRERBERREE  KRPE - EA AL DA Dk BEREKS BB

TR FORPT

RERNTEEXRRA018HREL LEFBT - #
BAN%IEE - EETENMKESERAEDR T
B4 5 £ 2018 B B4 [ 13 4101 8% F+ 2 2018 81 T
T LEFMNE6% -

2018 B FEE R BEFNRIBREST2% - BHE
BRIE S EEE - 20188 B E L F B A%EE
2018 AT T H /) 2.5% ©

2018 E - AP BIRES - AT - EINTEIAR
KeE 2 2EEEBARRMTSRTEENAN LR
REABTEABKENHEETR) A439% M =
44.6% ° 2018 IR [ L R 2018 M F E N4
BBEDLEDRIR42.6% K% 46.1% °
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Average quarterly sales F¥FEHEE
(HK$ million &%)
32.6%
[ | FY2018 average quarterly SSS

2018 M E VI FERIEHE

|} FY2017 average quarterly SSS¥
2017 BEFEFHEEREHEY

20.3% ' 52.2

409 46.5 43.0 —O— FY2018 quarterly SSS contribution to
annual SSS
20188 N EEE 5 $H 55
HEEREHERNER

—O— FY2017 quarterly SSS contribution to
annual SSS¥
2017 B EZERIEHER
HEER L HERNER

10 20 30 4Q

(4) SSS on FY2018 Same Store basis (4) (RIS 8K LA 2018 B4 B 4F [ ) [ JE 2L

e SSS contribution of 2HFY2018 was around 57%, this was generally ¢ 2018BI B FEE N H FHEBHNEEHELHEFER/EHE

similar to 2HFY2017 level. 4957% + BN E 2017 BABUEE T ELERE -

* 3Q, being our peak season as driven by Christmas and our annual o BoZFEHMHERERMRBEMNFEXNRELE  WERK
mega sales, usually accounts for the highest quarterly SSS MMEZE  ZZEBEOHEBBRPITSREHE P&
contribution for the Hong Kong and Macau market. mNEEER -
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Financials
B 7% AR,

Benefitted from the recovering market fundamentals and
the improvement in operations, our profitability demonstrated
continuous improvement over the past three years.

SERTENEAEEEEAEEEHUE
RMB A= EHRFIE D EEEFA o

Profitability BREED

Overall %82 Core operating profit? by reportable segment

RU2HRSBASHERES B

For the year ended 31 March #Z=3A31H L FE
(HK$ million B &%)

For the year ended 31 March #Z=3A31H L F&

5,000
28.9% 4,267
o 28.5% 27.2% 4000 e
3,364 ;
20.5% 20.1% 3,000 2414
o 18.5% - 2,026
2,000 1,686
846 1,074 1339
89% 9.1% 9.5% 1000 1gg 1549 '915 1853 796
840
159 543
0
2016 2017 2018 2016 2017 2018
-O- Adjusted gross profit margin =O- Core operating profit margin®? B Mainland China (2HFY) Hong Kong, Macau and other markets (2HFY)
RREBWERZO FERERF = RER i (BTEERE T ¥ F) &8 BPIRAMLTS GBEETH¥F)
-O~ Selling and distribution costs and general and administrative Il Mainland China (1HFY) I Hong Kong, Macau and other markets (1HFY)
expenses (“SG&A") as a % to revenue FER i (BIEEFE L F) BB RREMTS GERFELESF)

SHERD HRAAR — R RATHE X ([ #HERITHAX D) s
EES =

Mainland China = [E At
For the year ended 31 March #Z3 831815

Hong Kong, Macau and other markets &t + BFI R H b 7735
For the year ended 31 March B Z3A31HILFE

60

29.2% 29.7% 28.7% 28.5% o
e o 26.7% 2489
21.4% 22.0% )
20.0% o 49\193 S
: 5
18.9% 17.9%
o—— SN 17
11.5% 11.6% 7.4%
L I : o : 5.3% 6.0%
o —0
2016 2017 2018 2016 2017 2018

(1) Adjusted gross profit and the corresponding margin, a non-IFRS measure, eliminates the effect of

unrealised hedging loss/(gain) on gold loans, which the Company believes is useful in gaining a more

complete understanding of its operational performance and the underlying trend of its businesses

(2

Core operating profit and the corresponding margin, a non-IFRS measure, being the aggregate of

adjusted gross profit and other income, less SG&A, which the Company believes is useful in gaining a

more complete understanding of its operational performance and the underlying trend of its core

business

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EAEBHRELEEEGR QT

(1) ERBEROENREEENEYIFZERMBREENAE AR TERER
MARBREEE (R WP E  ARRAAGERBIEEHEEMT BELEE
REREBNERBS

(2) EFEEE N KA FIRLIFZEARHREEAAE - HERBROEN
REMKENEE  BIHERITERAS  ARRAEELSBEEHEERT®
HEERBRZOEBORBES



Group

(HK$ million)

Revenue
Adjusted gross profit
Adjusted gross profit margin

Other income
SG&A

SG&A as a % to revenue

Core operating profit
Core operating profit margin

* As a result of the increasing sales contribution from gold products
and wholesale business, adjusted gross profit margin declined
slightly across the years, yet core operating profit margin

ERERYERIF

Hib A
HERITHAX

HERTEAZFIEEREE L

il
~4

Ry

THFY2017
2017
MREE
L¥E
21,526
6,471
30.1%

178
(4,941)
23.0%

1,708
7.9%

demonstrated continuous improvement over the past three years.

* Among the two segments, Mainland China continued to be our
main profit contributor and accounted for over 75% of the Group’s

core operating profit in FY2018.
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Financials

BRI

THFY 2HFY

2HFY2018 YoY change YoY change
2018 BREE BREE
HREE b¥E T¥F
T¥E 14214 14204

34,402 A 15.0% A 15.8%
9,022 A 9.7% A 10.6%

262% W 14%pts W 1.2% pts
iEpE ey

222 A 48% A 459%
(6,033) v 1.1% A 12.4%
17.5% W 3.3%pts ¥ 0.6% pts

=R =R

3.211 A 40.3% A9.1%
93% A 1.8%pts W 0.6% pts
1855 % 1855 8

c MEESERMMEXBHERIMAEEA - LR
BREENERBEBFEEMTRE - EEEEEENER
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BB WED AT

Mainland China o 5] A i
THFY 2HFY
1HFY2017 2HFY2017 1HFY2018 2HFY2018  YoYchange  YoY change
2017 2017 2018 2018 MBEE BREE
HBEE BBEE MBFEE MBEE E¥E T¥E
(HKS million) (BE#ET) t¥g T¥F t¥F T¥F El:4:: 214 El:4::2(4
Revenue e 12,851 18,169 14,944 21,860 A 16.3% A 20.3%
Adjusted gross profit LRI E R 4,229 4,988 4,593 5,980 A 8.6% A 19.9%
Adjusted gross profit margin AR EFR 32.9% 27.5% 30.7% 274% Ww22%pts ¥ 0.1% pts
B8 7% B8 7%
Other income Helg A 123 89 131 161 A7.1% A 81.6%
SG&A HERITHAX (2,803) (3,051) (2,872) (3,727 A 2.4% A 22.2%
SG&A as a % to revenue HERTBFES G EREE A 21.8% 16.8% 19.2% 17.1% W 2.6% pts A 0.3% pts
B8 7% B8 7%
Core operating profit FELEERT 1,549 2,026 1,853 2,414 A 19.6% A 19.1%
Core operating profit margin FELLEFE 12.1% 11.2% 12.4% 11.0% A 0.3%pts ¥ 0.2% pts
=R B8 7%

HARBEHBERRK@IZ - FEAMN 2018 HFE
B R ETH18.7% 1M = 2482 i M RI$%1519.3% B
ABIER -
2018 AR FE AL ARIKMERE TR 100EHF - =2
HREEEEERaNECERFEEERARIEETR
ETTPREL

THE RATIRA S L RRE A L BE T N 1001E % F
2018 MFE X B LEMEREEFTN11.6% o

¢ Thanks to a stabilised consumer demand, revenue in Mainland °
China increased by 18.7% while core operating profit delivered a
promising growth of 19.3% in FY2018.

e Adjusted gross profit margin was lowered by 100 basis points in °
FY2018 primarily due to a higher gold products sales contribution at
retail level and an increased wholesale contribution.

° SG&A ratio was contracted by 100 basis points as operations .
improved. Core operating profit margin remained stable at 11.6% in
FY2018.
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Hong Kong, Macau and other markets

L]

1HFY2017

2017

HBEE

(HK$ million) (AE#®T) Ly
Revenue EEE 8,675
Adjusted gross profit CREBHER 2,242
Adjusted gross profit margin ARG MEFIE 25.8%
Other income Hith A 556
SG&A HERTBAX (2,138)
SG&A as a % to revenue HWERTHRES G EEEE 24.6%
Core operating profit FEELET 159
Core operating profit margin FELEEFE 1.8%

Core operating profit of Hong Kong, Macau and other markets was
up by 24.7% in FY2018.

Adjusted gross profit margin reduced by 190 basis points when
compared to FY2017. Yet, benefitted from operating leverage, core
operating profit margin increased by 70 basis points to 6.0% in
FY2018.

Adjusted gross profit margin fell 120 basis points from 25.5% in
THFY2018 to 24.3% in 2HFY2018 due to the negative impact from
the increased sales contribution from jewellery trading business,
which carries a thinner margin, and a one-off inventory impairment
made after considering the latest market value of the gem-set
jewellery inventories. If the impact from the one-off impairment is
excluded, adjusted gross profit margin would be 25.8% and core
operating profit would register an approximately 8% year-on-year
growth in 2HFY2018.

Financials

B AR R

&i& AR E TS
1HFY 2HFY
2HFY2017 1HFY2018 2HFY2018  YoYchange  YoY change
2017 2018 2018 MBEE BREE
HREE HREE HREE t¥E T¥E
T¥F t¥F T¥F 14214 14204
11,651 9,810 12,542 A 13.1% A 8.6%
3,168 2,504 3,042 A 11.7% v 4.0%
27.4% 25.5% 24.3% W 03%pts W 3.1%pts
B8 7% B8 7%
63 55 61 v 0.2% v 4.3%
(2,316) (2,016) (2,306) v 5.7% v 0.4%
20.0% 20.5% 184% W 4.1%pts V¥ 1.6% pts
iEpE iy
915 543 796 A 242.2% v 13.0%
7.9% 5.5% 63% A37%pts W 1.6%pts
BE7 & BE7 &

2018 IRFE - B BPIREMTISHEBEEET
EF247% -

B ENER2017 M BFE FE190 @28 F - 16
RENEEN T 2018 BFERE T BLLRAN K LTI
701E%F%6.0% °

KHEEEMNER2018HFBFE EFFM265% &
1208% F 22018 FE T+ Fm24.3% * It )5
RENERENAEE S EBHELMERRERRE
HEERMHEMHERFEFEL - RERENATE
FREL « tnHIRR — R ERNFZE - 2018 R FE N4
BFEBEOENER£25.8% - T ELEHH AIRFIE
£#18% °
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWEDIN

Gross profit margin
Unrealised hedging loss/(gain)
For the year ended 31 March BEIANNALEE
Gross profit margin %ﬂz
Unrealised hedging loss/(gain) on gold loans &4 £ ERESMEHERE (W)
Adjusted gross profit margin LR IZNFERE

e Unrealised hedging loss/(gain) for the year represents the net effect
of (i) the reversal of the loss/(gain) recorded due to the timing
difference in recognising the effect of long and short position in
gold when we take a snapshot position at the end of the previous
financial year; and (ii) the loss/(gain) arising from such timing
difference at the end of the current financial year.

* We use gold loans (short position in gold) to hedge against the gold
price fluctuations in our gold inventories (long position). While the
long-term effect of long and short positions in gold is expected to
net out each other through the sales of gold products, a loss/(gain)
may arise due to a short-term timing difference between the time
when a loss/(gain) on gold loans is recorded in the cost of goods
sold and the time when sales of hedged gold inventories are
recognised, when we take a snapshot position at the end of the
reporting period.

Changes in adjusted gross profit margin £ER% 1489 F F| = 8 &)

For the year ended 31 March #Z=3A31H L4 E

30.0%

29.0%
28.5% 0.7%

0.3% 0.6%
28.0% * I l I

0.3%

27.2%
27.0%
26.0%
25.0%
2017 2018

e Adjusted gross profit margin was down by 130 basis points in
FY2018. Despite an improvement in gross profit margin at retail
level, a higher contribution from our wholesale business in both
reportable segments, a less favourable product mix and the one-off
impairment on gem-set jewellery inventories led to the contraction
of the margin.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EAEBHRELEEEGR QT

EFE
REBMEPESE ()
2016 2017 2018
27.6% 29.2% 27.4%
1.3% 0.7)% (0.2)%
28.9% 28.5% 27.2%

o FRAREREINEER ()R () BER E— AR RE

EREREAERESFRRAR VB ZBHEMELN
B518,/(Mezs) B2 (i) 5O A B I A 2 A RS - R AR RO B
MEMEENER (KRR MEFHE -

B AESEE (BEEXR) UHESFE (EeHR)
MERKD - ERAESHRENRGZERAKSEL
EESEMBERER  MHHRERROFTANRT
FORTAHERANESEERE (ks BEhE
SHFENHEZRNEFRENERE  tMAgEE
fia,/ (Was) -

Change in product mix in retail business
TEEBNERESEY

Change in gross profit margin by product
in retail business
TEEBRERIDINERNZLH

Impact from wholesale business

HERBNE

Effect of impairment of inventories

FHERENE

2018 IRFE » IEHBEMWENETF10EHT - &
ETEEAMNENREMNE  EMET2HRD it
BEBNER LT ERAa R RIAE Sk S5
FEN—RIERESHENETRE -



Financials

BRI

London gold price {R3(& 18
(US$ per ounce ZEit&4: Al

1,400

1,350

1,300

1,250

1,200

1,150

1,100

1,050

—— London gold price
[GELEA
- Average of T-120 days""

1,000
1.4.2016

(1) Average of T-120 days refers to the average gold price of previous 120 days on rolling basis, being a

proxy of the average price of our hedged gold inventories. Average of T-120 days was used for FY2017

and FY2018

SG&A

1.4.2017

T-120KF13fE"
31.3.2018

(1) T-120 R FPHERBEEE120RNESHE  BIERRRMNEYIESFE
#)FI(EA% © 2017 M ERFE R 2018 M FEHEM T-120 RFHE

HERITHMX

SG&A by reportable segment %ZT 2R FEEIFHHERITEHX

For the year ended 31 March #Z3 831014 &Z

(HK$ million & &%)

14,000
12,000 11,623
’ 10307 10,920
10,000
57.8%
8,000 N 56.8% 60.4%
6,000
4,000
2,000 42.2% 43.2% 39.6%
0
2016 2017 2018

YoY change
El:%:-214

— A5.9%

— A127%

— ¥ 3.0%

[l Mainland China FEIR#t:
B Hong Kong, Macau and other markets &% + BFIRH b5
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWEDIN

SGR&A to revenue ratio SHERITHHEZIGEEEHELE

For the year ended 31 March #Z=3A31H L FE
(HK$ million B &%)

20.5% 20.1% o
18.5%
o— —O0——
14,000 —°
12,000 11,623
10,920
10,307
10,000 6.8%
0
8,000 6% o
3.4%
6,000 3.3% 3.2%
3.7%
4,000 ’ 3.6% 2.7%
o
2000 e 1.5% e
4.0% 3.8% 3.7%
0
2016 2017 2018

YoY change
[Eilx4-14

A5.9%

A 10.9%

A 10.0%

V¥ 13.5%

A84%
A3.7%

A 11.9%

Other SG&A mainly represented bank charges incurred for sales transaction settlement, royalty fees

for the sales of licensed products, certificate expenses, packing materials, utilities and other staff

related expense

e QOur Mainland China segment contributed over half of SG&A over

the past three years.

* SG&A increased by 5.9% to HK$10,920 million in FY2018 as most
of our major SG&A components increased, except rental expenses

recorded a 13.5% decrease.

e Thanks to operating leverage, SG&A ratio fell to 17.5% in
2HFY2018 from 19.7% in 1THFY2018. During the financial year,

SG&A ratio further improved by 160 basis points to 18.5%.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EAEBHRELEEEGR QT

o

(1)

As a % of respective revenue FH{EBBE X EE S
Staff costs B TR

Concessionaire fees FHi5 A

Rental expenses &332

Advertising and promotion expenses B & SE %
Depreciation and amortisation 78 & # 4

Other SG&A™M HhEHERTHE XM

HMBERTERRXIZERHERZREELNRITTEE  HEREER
MEFER  FER  BRVK KEBRREME THBMAX

BEZF RATENLS BERERGTREL
B -

20188/ LFE » 58 RTTHA X EF5.9% £10,920
HEAT - RN R E RTEE ARG S
THE Y AR MRS I S 13.5% MG -
b B RS - M B TR AT B S A L P 2018 B B E
B oM FH197%E T2018H BEE T L F 8
17.5% o RETTER RN - §8E RITHMZALE— 5T
F£1601E%FZE18.5% °



Major SG&A components
Staff costs and related expenses

Financials

BRI

HERTHMAXMHERIER
ETRAREMAZ

Mainland China $E A

For the year ended 31 March #Z3A31 A1 FE
(HK$ million & &)

7.4% 7.1% 6.9% YoY change
3000 o— o o Atg e
2,553 —  A164%
2,500 2,497
25.2% 2193
2,000 o 37.4% — A464%
' 29.8%
1,500
1,000 71.3%
66.8% 59.3% — A3.3%
500
0 3.5% 3.4% 3.2% — A112%
2016 2017 2018

mum?

FY2018 2018H & E
Average number of employees"”
20,100 =sarsa-

YoY ch
v4.9% musi

As a % of respective revenue FTEHEEEEES L
Variable staff costs 88 T2

Fixed staff costs E7E 8 T4

Other staff related expenses®? H A& TiARIRI 2

Hong Kong and Macau &t & ;&P

For the year ended 31 March =3 A31 815 E
(HK$ million & &%)

2,000 6.4% 7.0% 6.8%

_ o o YoY change
o Bkt
1,500 1,375 — 4.2%
1307 1,362 A42%
o

31.8% 33.9% 39.2% ——  A20.6%

1,000
500 60.6% 58.4% 54.6% — v25%
0 7.6% 7.7% 6.1% —  ¥17.4%

2016 2017 2018

(1) Employees in production function excluded

(2)  Other staff related expenses mainly included staff messing, medical care, educational expenses, etc.

* |n Mainland China, staff costs and related expenses were up by
16.4% in FY2018. The expansion was mostly on the variable
performance based component, as we aligned the staff
remuneration with the market standard.

* In Hong Kong and Macau, staff costs and related expenses
increased by 4.2% in FY2018. The fixed staff costs reduced by
2.5%, while variable staff costs was up by 20.6% as business
recovered.

mum?

FY2018 2018H K& E
Average number of employees"”
3,180 wssrmae

YoY ch
v8.4% izt

As a % of respective revenue Fi{EBBE 2B E S
Variable staff costs 88 T4

Fixed staff costs EE 8 T4

Other staff related expenses®? H A& T AR

TRELESFINET
Hth B THAMAXEEZREETIER BRBNHSERS

2018 A E - P EAMA) 8 TRCA R ARRIR S L7+
16.4% - BB EMNAMERTSREEE TR TH
B - BfE B TRIDEBNFZ B FHEIEN -

2018 BAERFE - & RORPIR B T A R ABRIR S £ 7T
42% ° ETFF B TRATIE25% - EREZEXBEA - ¥
FE IR EF20.6% °
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWEDIN

Concessionaire fees and rental expenses

EES R RA MR

Mainland China E it

For the year ended 31 March #Z3A31 8- FE
(HK$ million B &)

9.0% 8.7% 8.5% Yoi chac:ge
o0— ° Bl:4:114
2,500
2,000 1,927 1,872 —  A102%
1,700
1,500
1,000
500
0
2016 2017 2018

-O- Asa % of respective revenue L BB 2B DL
W Concessionaire fees ZHERD

Hong Kong and Macau &t & &P

For the year ended 31 March #Z=3A31HI-FE
(HK$ million B&7#7T)

YoY change
8.2% 8.0% Rtk (L
6.1%
2,000
1,779
1,524
1,500
1,253 — V17.8%
1,000
500
0
2016 2017 2018

* |In Mainland China, concessionaire fees increased by 10.2% along
with sales growth. The slight decline in concessionaire fees ratio
was mainly due to the shift of sales mix towards gold products
which are generally subject to lower rates.

* |In Hong Kong and Macau, rental expenses were down by 17.8%
thanks to POS consolidation and rental renewal reduction. Coupled
with a stabilising business environment, rental expenses ratio was
further lowered by 190 basis points to 6.1% in FY2018. We
achieved an average reduction on rental renewal of approximately
29% in FY2018.
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-O- Asa % of respective revenue FT{51EBIS 25EH D LL
[ W Rental expenses &M%

o MEERNM  FEDKBEHE EAMEMN10.2% - HiE
DL EMEEEHNIHEASEMEED KL X —R
BIRMEDERATE

o MEBRRM  TEZHESREMRBERSHEITER
17.8% M LA HREEE 2018 R FEHHREH
X RE—HTE190EZT26.1% ° 2018 FE -
HFERNR L FIRIBL A29% o



Other income, other gains and losses and other expenses

Financials

BRI

Hapg - Hibuhas R ESHE R B AR

2016 2017 2018 2018 vs 2017

HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million YoY change

For the year ended 31 March HBE3ANBLEE BEBRT BEART BEAT Eil5g:11d
Other income H U A 306 330 408 A 23.8%
Other gains and losses Hib s M B8 (245) (286) 342 N/A i@ B
Other expenses Hibfax (51) (215) (48) v 77.6%

Other income mainly arose from the government grants received
by the subsidiaries in Mainland China.

Other gains and losses mainly represented a net foreign exchange
gain of HK$343 million (FY2017: net foreign exchange loss of
HK$273 million) due to the appreciation of RMB.

Other expenses dropped by 77.6% as an impairment loss on
investment, amount due from an associate and amount due from a

HAGWA T BHIK B B A B~ 7S BUF S o

Ho At Yo an K B5 18 X B 8 B A RS TH(E T 22 AR O SN IR
HB4A3AEBIL (2017 W EFE : IMNEFEIE27ZEE

BIT) ©

H R T 77.6% TR 2017 HHFE B AR E
MFI | AFF AR EREEE - U — KB E QR BHA

joint venture amounted to an aggregate of HK$164 million was MEK—REETEREAF164EEBTT -
recognised and included in “other expenses” in FY2017.
Interest income, finance costs and taxation FIBWA « BAERARBIE
2016 2017 2018 2018 vs 2017
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million YoY change
For the year ended 31 March HZE3AMBLEE BEEBT BEEABT BEBT G441
Interest income from banks HRITFLEHA 112 122 67 v 45.1%
Other interest income HF 28U A 43 18 13 v 26.0%
Finance costs on bank borrowings — $RITE R B AR 69 93 111 A 18.6%
Finance costs on gold loans HoEERERA 174 143 133 v72%
Taxation i 957 1,227 1,629 A 32.7%
* Finance costs on gold loans decline slightly as the new hedging ¢ EZ&£EERERARE - DEHARYERFERNZEE
mechanism was fully implemented during the financial year. On FEDR B o YR R B 2017 BT IF E 4965 % [

average, the hedging ratio approximately reduced from 65% in
FY2017 to 47% in FY2018.

Effective tax rate stayed at approximately 28% in both FY2018 and
FY2017. In FY2018, additional withholding tax expenses were
incurred for dividends to be distributed from the subsidiaries in
Mainland China as Mainland China is expected to continue to
contribute a higher portion of the Group's profit. While in FY2017,
more withholding tax expenses were incurred for paying a higher
special dividend declared. If the withholding tax impact was
excluded in both years, the effective tax rate would stay at around
24%.

E2018HMRFEXIAT% °

2018 AR F /E [0 2017 B4 BUF E ) BRI G M50 40

28% ° 2018 F E M FAM BRI I NI R B P E A
T E QBB IRRS - BB PEAENE

BhS e %ﬂ“ilﬁfmﬁ’ﬂﬁﬂz o AT - 2017 TR E TR
HBEEINTYR B EIRE = RIS - IR R4 1078
IBRTE  BRBVERBERRLD24% -
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWEDIN

Return on equity BAOmEE
* We use return on equity ("ROE") to measure the efficiency of o HFFEARARRRAEL TR R ERETGEF
generating profits from each unit of shareholder equity. B o

e Net profit margin increased by 100 basis points to 7.1% due to the o SEHREFE FAI00ESEFET A% AR T ELLHEF

uplift in core operating profit margin and the positive impact from REAUMAREEESNITEEZEE - B - BAMD
RMB movements. As a result, ROE improved by 260 basis points REEF260E2ETE12.3% °
10 12.3%.
ROE o Net profit ¥ 1 2 3(y 42.6% pts BE D 2
BAERE + D /0 (Fy2017 2017 BEE : 9.7%)

Total equity #4058

0/ Net profit margin times Assets turnover times  Equity multiplier
7.1% sz 1.0 azes 1.7 & mues
(FY2017 20178 BUEE : 6.1%) (FY2017 20178 BUF [ : 1.0 timesf) (FY2017 20178 BUFE : 1.5 timesf)
Net profit ¥ Fl Revenue Z## Total assets #&ZE
Revenue &% Total assets & & Total equity #5488
Inventory Turnover and Capital Structure GERERESAZE
Inventory balances and turnover period GE&es N EEHA

Inventory balances by product" &ESZEIFHIHFEEG

As at 31 March W3 A31H YoY change
(HKS million &% 7%) Fteg e
40,000
34,818 —  A193%
31,244
30,000 29,176
52.2% —  A122%
56.9% '
20,000 55.5%
10,000 o 33.9% — A39.7% _
. 26.2% 29.0% Wl Gem-set jewellery BRE SR E
B  Gold products E£E R
8.3% 7.9% 7.8% ——  A188% I Platinum/Karat gold products $i%& KEER
0 8.6% 7.6% 6.0% — V¥57% B Watches &8
2016 2017 2018
(1) Packing materials excluded (1) TBEEME
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Financials

BRI

Inventory turnover period by category? &EEBIEISHFEEEER

For the year ended 31 March =3 A31H L&
(Day &£
400
296
300 279 %
200
235 240
232
100
a7 59 56 m
0
2016 2017 2018

(2

Being inventory balances, excluding packing materials, at the end of the reporting period divided by cost

of goods sold for the year, multiplied by 365/366

Inventory balances, excluding packing materials, increased by
19.3% and stood at HK$34,818 million as at 31 March 2018, which
was mainly attributable to the addition of gold inventories amid
strong consumer demand.

As at 31 March 2018, approximately HK$3,290 million or 9.4% of
our total inventory balances were held by 712 franchised POS (31
March 2017: approximately HK$1,870 million or 6.4% were held by
517 franchised POS).

If the inventory balances held by franchisees were excluded,
inventory turnover period would be 268 days, around 7 days shorter
than last year.

Finished goods & &
B Raw materials =%}

(2) BIREMRFEESR (TRERBRMEBRAFAHERAE - BRI 365/366

201843831 8 - FEEAS (TREEENH) LA
193% 534,818 T BB - TEHNESFRIEM
HTHEBENBRDER -

R2018F3A3MH " 712EMBZEHFERME:F
EHEHH3,200 B EHBTT(59.4%) (201743 A31H :
517 BB EEREEL 1,870 B8 BT(56.4%)) -

WEMBRFANGTESEYR  FTEREHAR208K &
EFLHTR -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BB mED A

Capital structure

BEAXRE

% to % to Increase
31.3.2017 total equity  31.3.2018 total equity #hn Denominated Interest rate
HKS$ million {h#Ez4% HKS$ million {5#EZA% |HKS million currency™ structure”
As at i HESBT BAk BHEAT B HEBT FHEEEO FREHEO
Non-current assets FEREEE 7,133 21.9% 8,258 24.2% 1,125 N/ATE A N/ATE A
Inventories FE 29,259 90.0% 34,929 102.4% 5,670 N/AiE N/A N E
Bank deposits and RITFEREES 1 Mainly HKD, Mainly
cash equivalents®? @Y 7,943 24.4% 7,944 23.3% RMB and variable
USD  interest rate
ARBRZET EE VIS

Total borrowings® EEHE 10,009 30.8% 13,258 38.9% 3,249
Bank borrowings RITER 6,793 20.9% 7,923 23.3% 1,130 HKD Variable
WIT interest rate
FHRE
Gold loans EoEE 3,216 9.9% 5,335 15.6% 2,119 RMB and Fixed
USD  interest rate
ARBERZET % &=
Net debt® BIEFEEW 2,066 6.4% 5,314 15.6% 3,248 N/ARiE N/A T E
Working capital® BIEESO 26,480 81.5% 28,593 83.9% 2,113 N/A“NiE N/ANE
Total equity 425 32,502 100.0% 34,098 100.0% 1,596 N/ARiE N/A T iE

4l

2)
(3)

Information about denominated currency and interest rate structure related to the condition as at
31 March 2018

Bank balances and cash included

As at 31 March 2018, bank borrowings amounted to HK$5,823 million and all the gold loans would be
matured within 12 months while bank borrowings amounted to HK$2,100 million would be matured in
more than 2 years but not exceeding 5 years

Aggregate of bank borrowings, gold loans, net of bank deposits and cash equivalents

Being net current assets

We principally meet our working capital and other liquidity
requirements through a combination of capital contributions,
including cash flows from operations, bank borrowings and gold
loans. Gold loans are also used to hedge against the financial
impact of the price fluctuations in the Group's gold inventories.

The Group's daily operation was mainly financed by operating cash
flows, and mainly relied on short-term borrowings to satisfy
inventory financing needs during peak seasons, working capital for
future expansion plans and unexpected needs. The Group has not
experienced any difficulties in repaying its borrowings.

The Group's income and expenditure were mostly denominated in
HKD and RMB, while its assets and liabilities were mostly
denominated in HKD, RMB and USD.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EARBHKELEEEGR QT

BRFEES R EEENERR2018F3 731 HWER

BERITEBERS
MN201843A31H 5,823 BEBLNRITERLMEHESEERRI12MEA
AEH - 12,100 B &ETARITEFGREB 2 FBTZREFRNEH

RITER BLEEZRB(CHBRRTERRRSEEY)
FRBAE
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Effect of RMB fluctuation

FY2018 2018EfKEE
W ERE &1L

RMB to HKD o
RS - 11%

As part of our business operation was in Mainland China, the
appreciation of RMB affected the performance and balances of
assets and liabilities of our Mainland China operation, as well as the
balances of inter-group advances denominated in RMB, which
posed some impact to our net profit for the year.

The table below illustrates the impact to our financial performance
due to RMB fluctuation:

2017 2018
Constant Constant
exchange rate exchange rate
As reported basis As reported basis
For the year ended 31 March BEIAZMALFEE ek BAERERTE Fr23R BARERTE
Revenue YoY change BT LML v 9.4% v 6.0% A 15.4% A 14.0%
Core operating profit YoY change FELLRT AL v 7.9% v 35% A 20.6% A 18.7%
Changes in inventory balances GFetsnEl v6.7% v 6.4% A 19.4% A 13.6%
Changes in bank balances and cash  $R774584 R IF 4 &L v 38.9% v 37.3% A 0.0% v 7.5%

Revenue and core operating profit on constant exchange rate basis
are calculated by translating current year's revenue and core
operating profit of the Mainland China segment in RMB into HKD
using the prior year's average RMB to HKD exchange rates. We
believe using constant exchange rate basis could enhance the
comparability between two financial years.

Financials

BRI

AR RS E

Closing exchange rate YoY change

L]

Average exchange rate YoY change
FHEERF L E L

-~ 2%

BHREME DX ETERNBEE - ARETHEHR
PP EREEENREREENABNERARARE
HENEERBFGETRZE  EMEFRFENE
e -

TRIRAREESHRMPBRRNFZE -

FIARE R H M B SR E B  VE A E N
A BRAFE YA RKHENEETEREBL R
ME—F 2 ARMHBTTHOEERE AT - RN
12 0 3 4R R o 324 75 Y R O R A S A B
Bl o

Annual Report 2018 F %

73



74

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWEDIN

Cash Flows and Others

Cash flows HeRE
2016 2017 2018
HK$ million HKS$ million HK$ million
For the year ended 31 March BE3ANBLEE =35 BEART BEAT
Operating cash flows before movements LHBEESEFBRNZKERERE
in working capital 5,787 5,702 6,879
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERA(HEm) 7,499 599 (4,260)
Net change in gold loans ESEEFED (2,161) (3,023) 1,805
Net cash from/(used in) other operating Hi e B8 e,/ (Frm) R e %
activities 611 (49) 232
Purchase of jewellery collectibles EERBER - (378) (553)
Capital expenditure BEARFAX (1,046) (862) (1,084)
Pro forma free cash flows HEZEHRSRE 10,690 1,989 3,019
Net change in bank borrowings RITEFFE 1,192 (1,112) 1,102
Dividends paid ERRE (6,582) (5,148) (4,260)
Other movements Hofth B (776) (787) 140
Net increase/(decrease) in bank balances $R{T#&8RELEM (R ) BEE
and cash 4,524 (5,058) 1

Major cash flows items for FY2018 2018 BEEFER & REEH

(HK$ million B&#T)

Pro forma free cash flows £ BHRERE

4 3,019
|

[
6,879 4,260

!

15,000
12,500 1,805 232 553
10,000

7,943
7,500
5,000

2,500

0

]

TR
0

1,084

As at i
31.3.2017
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As at A
31.3.2018

SEARRBRAT

Operating cash flows before movements in working capital
EELGSRPHCLERERE

Increase in inventories

FEEM

Net increase in gold loans
HEeEEENFER

Net cash from other operating activities
HitQe ZH SRS

Purchase of a jewellery collectible
BEKREDHE

Capital expenditure

BEARRX

Net increase in bank borrowings
SRITEFUFZ

Dividends paid

EfNRE

Other movements

Hith# 5




Capital expenditure

e The Group's capital expenditure incurred during FY2018 amounted
to HK$1,084 million (FY2017: HK$862 million).

Financials

BRI

BXEX
o AEBR20I8FRFEMNEARMALAE1,0845EE T
(2017 AR 1 862 B BB L) °

Capital expenditure by nature RMHEE BRI

For the year ended 31 March #Z3 831014/
(HK$ million B&#7T)

1,500
1,046 1,084
1,000
862
61.7% 66.4% I B Furniture, fixtures and equipment and leasehold improvements
56.9% B - RERRENEEYERE
500 Land and buildings and construction in progress
T REFMERIR
N Land use rights and patents
27.5% 36.1% 24.2% i fERERER
4.9% . Plant and machinery and motor vehicles
0 5.9% 7.0% 9.3% P R EE R
2016 2017 2018
Capital expenditure by function RINEEEIDHERRZ
For the year ended 31 March #Z=3A31H FFE
(HKS million B&#7T)
1,500
1,046 1,084
1,000
862 27.6%
38.3%
I 31.8%
500 31.8% 55.3%
43.0%
o W W Projects HE
9.3% B PosZEH
20.6% 17.0% 12.5% I Productions £ &
0 8.2% 4.6% B Offices PBRAZE
2016 2017 2018
. . . £3
Contingent liabilities FARERE

* The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at 31
March 2018 and 31 March 2017.

Capital commitments

e Details of the Group's capital commitment as at 31 March 2018
and 31 March 2017 are set out in note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements.

o REEM201843 A31 HK201743 A31 B EAEM
BAHKARAME -

EXRIE
o A%EMN201843 431 AK201743 A31 AW EAH
EHBERNGRE M RAMES2 -
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Risk Management Report
[ b BB E

The Board acknowledges the importance of adequate and effective risk management
and internal control systems which assist them in understanding the Group’s risk
profile, allocating resources to manage key risks and making risk-reward optimised
business decisions for business planning.

ESERAREERNEAREERABEZRAGCEEN ZERZGEY
b Pa A S B AR « 2 B & IR A T 3 22 F DA K 17 28 o Bex B2 [0 37

FFHRENEERE - U

Our Risk Management and Internal Control
Governance Framework

ETRBRE -

PR EE R A AR ES IR E IR HESR

Board of Directors
EEE

[

Executive Committee
BITEEE

[

Group Risk Management Committee (“GRMC")

KERGEEZEE
First Line of Defence Second Line of Defence
F—EME F_EME
Risk Ownership: Risk Management
BB ARIE Monitoring:
EIHELEY -
Business and Functional Units R ERRS
and Individuals Executive Office; Finance
EKRINEEE N and Governance Centre
RAERIAL TBEBR BA S E R /0

We adopt the “Three Lines of Defense” model to assist the Board of
Directors, Board Committees and management to carry out on-going
oversight and monitoring on the effectiveness of our risk and control
systems. Set out below are their distinct roles and responsibilities:

Audit Committee

ERZEEE
¥
= = @
g %3
& B =
B Py
2 S
Third Line of Defence o § =
oV #Fa
)
=
Independent T
Assurance: 3
BIRFE -
Internal Audit
A EB AL

HPRG [=EhG REABHERE  EFZESLE
EEETHEEEMERR MM EER R EERRZ R -
TXEINREEBBRENAEREE
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Board oversight

Board of Directors

e Evaluates and determines the nature and extent of the risks the
Group is willing to take in achieving its strategic objectives.

e Ensures that the Group establishes and maintains appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems.

* Reviews the adequacy and effectiveness of our risk management
and internal control systems.

Executive Committee

* Regularly reviews the risk and control issues escalated via GRMC.

e Suggests the priority of risk management efforts at Group level.

e Drives risk-conscious culture and promotes control environment of
the Group.

Audit Committee
e QOversees the design, implementation and supervision of the risk
management and internal control systems on behalf of the Board.

Management oversight
GRMC

* A management committee comprising the Managing Director, four
executive directors and management personnel from major
business and functional units.

° Maintains the risk management and internal control framework and
drives improvement for the processes.

e |dentifies and manages risks at corporate level, reviews the
principal risks, and oversees the effectiveness of process controls
to manage risks on a quarterly basis.

First Line of Defense — Ownership
Business and functional units and individuals
e |dentify, assess and control risks in daily operations.

e Design, implement and ensure the effectiveness of risk and control
measures within their area of accountability.

Second Line of Defense — Monitoring

Executive Office and Finance and Governance Centre (“FGC")

e Support GRMC on the risk and control functions through on-going
risk commmunications and monitoring.

e Establish policies, procedures and standards to reinforce risk
management and internal control systems.

¢ Provide guidance and training related to risk management and
control processes.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EAEBHRELEEEGR QT
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Third Line of Defense — Assurance
Internal audit

¢ Provides independent and objective assurance on the adequacy
and effectiveness of our risk management and internal control
systems by carrying out the risk-based internal audit.

e Communicates audit findings and control deficiencies to
management for their implementation of remedial actions.

Independent assessment

External audit

* Provides observations and assessments of the processes and
controls over financial reporting and related risks.

e Communicates with board committees and management on risk
and control issues identified in the course of audit.

Whistleblowing system

* Provides a confidential channel to encourage employees to raise
concerns on frauds and other misconduct.

* Whistleblowing officers are responsible for the investigation of the
possible improprieties and engagement with appropriate level of
management for their implementation of remedial actions.

e (Cases of gross misconduct and fraudulent behaviour, and the
measures undertaken by the management would be reported to
the Audit Committee for assessment.

Risk Management Process

GRMC is responsible for leading the risk management process in an
integrated approach in accordance with the Enterprise Risk
Management Policy Manual. Our risk management process involves
the following steps:

|dentification — adopts both top-down and bottom-up approach.

Analysis — assesses the potential consequences and likelihood of
the risks.

Evaluation — evaluates the risk level, risk treatment and priorities.

Mitigation — Recognises the control gaps, assigns risk ownership and
confirms risk control measures.

Monitoring — conducts evaluations on the design and progress of
implementation of the risk control measures.

Reporting — facilitates risk communications, reviews the residual risk
level after control measures and assesses areas for continuous
improvement.

Risk Management Report
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R ERRE

GRMC adopts both top-down and bottom-up approach to facilitate risk
identification as it is of paramount importance to understand the risk
universe that the Group is facing before we can effectively manage

them.

Top-down approach

Members of GRMC and representatives from Executive Office and
FGC discuss the risk issues they consider important.

GRMC has various channels for risk identification, for example, the
principal and emerging risks from macro environment and strategic
objectives escalated by corporate function units, potential control
weaknesses indicated through whistleblowing system, internal and
external audit and concerns of our stakeholders on social,
environmental and governance issues come through by our
Sustainability Committee.

Upon approval, the risk management strategy is cascaded to
relevant business and functional units to design, implement and
monitor the risk control measures.

Bottom-up approach

Heads of business and functional units are required to submit their
risk registers for material risks identified along with their existing
control measures at least annually through risk management
training cum brainstorming workshops.

FGC consolidates and validates the risk registers and Executive
Office assists the respective general managers to endorse the risk
level and priority.

GRMC reviews the Group’'s consolidated risk register and
determines the level of attention from GRMC and the Executive
Committee.
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Internal Controls

The structure of our internal control system is based on the
Committee of Sponsoring Organisations of the Treadway Commission
("COSO") integrated framework for effective internal controls, which
comprises 17 principles under five components, namely, Control
Environment, Risk Assessment, Control Activities, Information and
Communication and Monitoring Activities.

Our internal control system is integrated into our business processes
with the support of information system and technology. Control
objectives, authorities and responsibilities, backed by established
policies and procedures, and the performance of control activities are
maintained in the system. This helps capture audit trails in the system,
facilitates the monitoring activities and hence appropriate corrective
actions can be formulated by management as soon as practicable.

Our review of internal controls is closely linked with our risk
management framework and process. Principal risks and risk
management strategy of the Group are communicated to heads of
business and functional units and internal audit team. This aims at
helping them to allocate their resources and control monitoring efforts.
Controls of high risk areas are continually evaluated by management
while internal audit team would consider the need of adjustment on its
audit plan on the testing of key controls for significant risks of the
Group.

On an annual basis, members of GRMC, senior management of all
major business and functional units are required to assess the
effective implementation of internal controls through self-assessment
questionnaires, covering the effectiveness of financial, operational and
compliance controls and the reliability of financial reporting. Through
this exercise, they also undertake to fully support various Group
programmes which promote effective internal control practices,
including internal control review, internal audit, case investigation and
whistleblowing system.

Risk Management Report
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Effectiveness of Risk Management and
Internal Control Systems

On behalf of the Board, the Audit Committee reviews the adequacy
and continued effectiveness of the Group's risk management and
internal control systems through the reports prepared by GRMC,
internal audit team and external auditors and communicates with them
at least three times a year.

The review covers risk management functions and all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls. Key
elements of review include:

e Principal risks identified by GRMC, internal audit and external audit.

e Changes in the nature and extent of principal risks since last annual
review and the ability of the Group to respond to the changes in its
business and the external environment.

* The scope and quality of the management’s on-going monitoring of
risks and of the internal control systems.

* The extent and frequency of communication of monitoring results
to the Audit Committee which enables it to assess control of the
Group and the effectiveness of risk management.

e Significant control failings or weaknesses that have been identified
during the year.

* The progress of remedial measures implemented by management.
* The effectiveness of the Group’s internal audit function.

e Assurance provided by internal audit on the effectiveness of the
Group's processes for financial reporting and compliance with
prevailing regulations.

e Significant issues arising from whistleblowing system, internal and
external audit.

e The results of management’s control self-assessment.

As a result of the above review, the Audit Committee, on behalf of the
Board, confirmed that there was no significant issue that would have
an adverse impact on the effectiveness and adequacy of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group for FY2018.

Our risk management and internal control systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss as sustainable growth
and profits are, in part, the reward for informed and successful risk
taking in business.
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BN ESCETEI R EERE

Our Continuous Improvement Plan and
Highlights of The Year

We endeavour to build a robust risk management system to align risk
with strategy and performance throughout the Group. We are
progressing towards the phased improvement plan launched in

BAPBNRIBRNEREERS LU FEHREEAERN
[ B B EL SRR J R 3R o BAPIIE D PR ERHEHE 2017 B FF B
YARSE) AV B AT 8 ([ BCERT 81 ) » T XE P AFE R

FY2017 (“Improvement Plan”). Set out below are some of the
highlights of improvement we have made during this year:

Highlights of improvement made in FY2018

Focus of Improvement Plan

Risk and control governance culture — strengthen management'’s
accountability, promote risk-conscious culture and fraud risk awareness

Promotion of risk-conscious culture and fraud risk awareness

* Reviewed and refined the Code of Conduct and Anti-fraud Policy to
reinforce the Group's core value on honesty, integrity and fair play and
ensure all directors and staff are well informed of expected ethical
conduct.

e Conducted a series of workshop to promote a culture of integrity to our
staff, in particular for those who are more vulnerable to fraud risk and
improprieties based on their job nature, to raise their awareness on
actions constitute fraud, approach to address and mitigate fraud risk as
well as the reporting channel for suspected fraud cases.

Focus of Improvement Plan

Risk reporting — facilitate the Board Committees and management to
better understand the challenges and risk outlook and formulate strategy to
manage principal risks through enhanced visualisation of the report

Integration of risk reporting

* We connected the interrelated risks across different business units
identified via various channels and prepared in-depth special reports by
consolidating the key challenges, issues and recommendations to
manage underlying causes.

e \Visualised the findings and data that offer a holistic view of the subject
matters to facilitate the GRMC members to comprehend, critically
discuss from a diversity of perspective and conclude the direction and
strategy to manage such risks.
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Focus of Improvement Plan

Risk communication — reinforce the roles and responsibilities of the
major parties involved, streamline the communication of risk profile and risk
management strategy

Coordination among the Three Lines of Defense

e Strengthened the collaboration and information flow among the Three
Lines of Defense as we recognised the coordinated effort from them,
leveraging on their distinct roles and competencies, is critical in
achieving the shared goal — to help the Group achieve its objectives
with a robust risk management system. Examples of coordination are as
follows:

First and Second Line — timely and balanced advice

While the First Line is responsible for managing the risk in daily
operations, the Second Line who is familiar with, yet relative
independent from, operations offered timely and balanced advice on
risks associated with new business initiatives or opportunities emerging
from the increasingly fast changing market landscape which the First
Line may overlook.

Second and Third Line — insight and knowledge transfer

Our in-house internal auditors were invited to attend certain major
business meetings to better understand the recent business plans,
momentum and challenges. Insights into potential issues could be
identified, riding on their professional skepticism and cross-industry
experience, and passed on to the Second Line, who would then engage
with the risk owners in a structured approach.
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Principal Risks and Control Measures FEE SR EIEE
Business and market development risks EBITHIGERE S
Disruptive innovation and technology BE 78 14 B3 R H i

Rapid technological advancements and innovations empower consumers — H#T A 2 RITAIF R EEENEYER  HTEX
throughout their shopping journeys have profound impact on the retail A REMNFE o REIBEFA - WERFIREDEIED
industry. If we are not agile enough to embrace the necessary adjustments, ~ YEHIFEE - SKE R MIHRE H RAFFHEERBKER
our competitiveness and sustainable development may at risk in the digital

era.

We control and mitigate the risks by: BMEIEMEFELRRATENT

» Adopting a multi-brand strategy to offer personalised services and o 4% LIEERE - AT REBEZBEEEAAMCRE RE
products for a wide spectrum of customer segments. an e

* Introducing experience shops, each renovated in different themes, to o 3| ABEE » SEUTEEZEREE - AETEER N

deliver a rejuvenated shopping experience. KRR o

* Harnessing the power of social media and technological innovation to  © {EBhit A BEEMEMAIEIN N E - FHRER - I=2FHEE
expand our business and enrich customer shopping experiences. BHEMELS -

Risk trend B2 M For more analysis, see Managing Director’s Strategic Report

e Smart Product

¢ Smart Channel — New in-store experiences, Omni-channel retailing
DOMHEHNEFELERBERE

°  SmartEm

e SmartEi#E — HHMPUERER  2RETE

A Risk level increased during FY2018 4 > Risk level remained similar as FY2017 97  Risk level decreased during FY2018
2018 & ARk F 812017 B R 2 09 Lok AR S 2018 B ER4F [ MR Bk F T B
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Management of disruptive change

Resistance to change amid the sweeping forces arising from disruptive
technology and innovation could restrict us from making necessary
adjustments in exploiting market opportunities and addressing challenges in
the digital age. Our competitiveness and sustainable development may at
risk if we are not resilient enough to embrace the breakthrough changes.

We control and mitigate the risks by:

e Promoting an innovation culture to motivate our employees to embrace
change and engage other key stakeholders with the necessary
adjustments.

e Reinforcing our competency to harness innovation and technology
across our key operations by an internal incubator — Sustainability and
Innovation Centre.

e Strengthening our capability of strategic human resources management
to enable the evolution of our business model and become a more
diversified and sustainable business.

RAENESNEE

BEMAFEEMAEER - B RO REIHRFIR
FIFH B EMHE - EMEEN BB RERTISEE
BB - WERPINID T ABE EFHOBE
FEHMIHETE N A FEEREKER

HMEZEEIELERRETENT -

o WEBAFTUL - USENE THENERSNE - WEHM
BRI E TROBNHE -

o FBAIMWAEINIZE — USERREAFHL —
RARPIERBF MBI U BEBE
78 o

o MEREMANEIRRREEIRMEES - LAHEBRFITER
EHWEBES BREZ T EMAKENED
BE -

Risk trend R 8%Y For more analysis, see Managing Director’s Strategic Report
° Human Resources Management — Training and Development
e Smart Office — Internal innovation incubator

AMEBHRESRLCIEREIRE
o ANEBRER — Y| mBERE
o SmartiffAE — NPRIFEE
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Fast changing consumer behaviour

The rise of middle class and young tech-savvy millennials continuously
driving the demand for customised and personalised products as they
increasingly favour bespoke products and services representing their
values, attitudes and personality beyond the conventional shopping
experience.

We control and mitigate the risks by:

e Creatively using technology and information to improve operational
efficiency, effectiveness and transparency.

e |everaging data analytics to anticipate consumer behaviour and
demands to facilitate the development of effective inventory distribution
strategies and targeted sales and marketing plans.

e Introducing a jewellery customisation online platform “D-ONE" to offer
our customers a unique experience of creating their own jewellery.

Risk trend R B < }

Risk Management Report
[E PR E IR IR

SUSHmOHEEETH
hERERFEABBREOTE-RER  EEHED
EREAMCERNFR - ERERLRBNHFTRBERER
U AZSERRRBRRTEEERNEER  BE
REYE - BUERENER -

BB ME SRR ITENT

o REAIBERRMEEM » AR & EME
B -

o NMAZMBIITIRABEETREFR - EHIEER
HORC & BRE DA e ST & ST )

- RARIE

o HHREERGLFAID-ONE] - BEEEZHAT
KEEMEE RS -

For more analysis, see Managing Director’s Strategic Report

e Smart Advisor — Data analytics and insights

°  Smart Production — Customer-to-Manufactory

DITFHBHNESRLCERIERE
e SmartEfE — SIEDITE R F
o Smart4E — BFRH T

Operational risks

Sources of diamonds

The irruption of synthetic or unethically sourced diamonds could impact our
brand image and operations.

We control and mitigate the risks by:

* Maintaining rigorous controls on supplier management, covering the
policy and procedure for engaging and evaluating our suppliers, to
ensure our diamonds are sourced from trustworthy suppliers.

e Introducing CHOW TAI FOOK T MARK diamond brand to reinforce our
efforts in ensuring that our diamonds are natural and ethically sourced.

e Deploying advanced devices and engaging third party professionals to
authenticate our diamond products.

Risk trend [E\f&#B 2 4 } For more analysis, see Sustainability Report
e QOur Customers — Sourcing
DIHIBHA B ERSE

o RETEIRS — R

ERRIRE

ERETETFERIARBNEORA - IZERMN

IR N EE -

BPEZEMEE LR TR T

o EREEREMEMER  |FRETEMMMRHNERL
BERFIZFT - LATEGR A & B R AE R HER 5
#h -

o HEHARET MARKE G G IE - LA — S RER IR
EVE O RAAMER - JORAT 3¢ o

c REGTHRBRERFE=FEXALETERER
WER -
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Risk Management Report
R ERRE

Information technology governance

We are committed to harnessing technological innovations in our business
development and big data analytics. Our business growth and results of
operations may be adversely and materially affected if our IT set up and
resources could not match with our business development; generate
reliable operational or financial data; or protect us from security threats.

We control and mitigate the risks by:

e Offering training programmes for our IT professionals to enhance their
capabilities to better respond to business needs.

e Strengthening the critical initiatives along the system development life
cycle in delivering solutions to support our business development.

e Establishing the data governance function to review and improve our
data management on data availability, usability, consistency, integrity
and security.

¢ Engaging external consultants to review controls and recommend
improvement measures on system security issues.

e Strengthening IT contingency planning to develop guidelines for how we
will react to and recover from emerging security threats.

Risk trend R i8 4 }

Franchisee management

Apart from the self-operated POS, we also leverage on the local resources
of our franchisees to expand our retail footprint. If we cannot manage the
franchisees effectively and engage them along our value chain, it will
adversely affect our business and reputation.

We control and mitigate the risks by:

* Adopting the inventory ownership unification programme to optimise
the financial settlement with franchisees.

e Building rapport with franchisees through “Listen to Your Heart”, an
interactive programme led by our recently retired senior management,
aims to gain trust and insights for our continuous improvement on
franchisee management.

* Reinforcing our monitoring on franchisees, including implementation of
whistleblowing system and special audit programme in franchised POS.

Risk trend [Ef& 8% W
BEHEIT 2 A BAH S L E BRI N ERE

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EARBHKELEEEGR QT

EARRES

BABAIREBEHRMABEDMEBRMEF - 5

BAZYMEAMENARERREEAEFER - K

BERMH A SRy 2 B B S B  SURBERER PR &

2EE - ARHRMNEBEERNEERABRKERT

Mg o

MBI METE LR TTEMT

o REMOERBHRES REEIGFE - BHENUZ

o R R B A BN EANE R - BIRT
& UASRERBER -

o RIVEUREIAREL - RS MBETHEBIRHIE - 7T
M —BE s EEURTEMETENSIEEE

o HESNEPEER - BEASRL EEIRA BT
=R o

o NREFM KRGS NESTNEHEEN T ZEE
WIREIEFEEHIERES -

3 fie R

mEEHER

BREETEHI b EBNERNEENERA
BREMOTEEBIRE - RAEEFRE LMD
RPN ERREEBU TR -

BPEZEMEELRRE TR T

o HEM—TFEHARE  YAEEMBEENT IS
H2H -

o EBIRELE] BEBIEMBEMETRIFREE -
[REELE ] FHEIMAR RS RERERE - M
MEREREERMRMSERSZNEREIEDE
REBHNEEER -

o fRREINEARAERE LMER  BERBITRREIN
BT EHNFRIE LGS -

Well-established mechanism has been implemented to engage and manage our franchisees



Intellectual property rights

The originality of our products and the trademark of our brand are critical to
our customers when making their purchasing decisions. The unauthorised
use of our trademark in counterfeit products or brand infringement could
harm our brand image and reputation.

We control and mitigate the risks by:

Risk trend B[R 8% W

Optimising our internal policy and procedures to facilitate registration
and management of our intellectual property rights.

Collecting information regarding actual or possible infringement of our
intellectual property from various channels, and taking legal action
against brand infringement.

Providing regular trainings for our staff to raise their awareness on the
protection of intellectual property rights.

Improving continuously our anti-counterfeiting techniques.

use of our intellectual property rights
For more analysis, see Sustainability Report

Risk Management Report
[E PR E IR IR

G EE
EmWREAMEEREREHBEFLBEEREEES
B FRMNHEREREANBEERNHRRER
AR ERERMNRERERE

HMEZEEIELERRETENT -

o EEHMENAIERIZFF - ABLABEE IR M
B ETER

c WZREECKEABERIEERILRMMMERE
VAR - WH RS RERIVEETE -

o ERFEE TRMEHE - UIEE 8 TREMBEEN

o METEREPIR A

Effective measures has been deployed to prevent and counter brand infringement and unauthorised

e Our Customers — Intellectual property rights
B1TH IE MBS M R AR A A AR AE RN B RIS

DITFBRN AT EERRS
o BAEIRTS — HERE

Financial risk

Gold price fluctuation

The gold market is influenced by global and regional supply and demand

conditions. Our purchases of gold represent the largest component of the

cost of sales of our gold products. Fluctuation in gold price may materially

and adversely affect our operations and financial condition.

We control and mitigate the risks by:

Risk trend R 282 W

Hedging gold price fluctuation in our gold inventories (long position)
through gold loans (short position).

Assessing regularly the actual and potential impact on our profitability
and financial condition due to gold price fluctuation.

Reviewing and optimising gold hedging mechanism, in response to the
changes in our business development, strategic objectives and the
trend in global gold market.

price fluctuation

A5 LB

HEERED
BEeBERIERRREMFRRAZE - RANESR
BhESEMBEERANRAHND - B2 EBRNKEA
BEE ML E RM IR BREATRZE -

BMERAENE LR AT

- BRESENCAR)EHELHE (FR)THES
R -

o EMFEESEERDHRMORTENRHHM)
REOEBRREERE -

e
o BHTEESEIR  AEHEBER - HHKE
BURZHRESTSBENE -

Effective monitoring system has been deployed to reduce volatility on reported profitability due to gold

ETARMERES  WRERSERSMERZ2 WA NEKIE
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Major Awards and Recognitions
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Major Awards and Recognitions

Governance &i&

Corporate Governance Asia
mMERES

7™ Asian Excellence Award 2017
1. Asia’'s Best CEO (Investor Relations)

- Kent Wong

2. Asia’s Best CFO (Investor Relations)
— Hamilton Cheng

3. Best Investor Relations Company
(Hong Kong)

4. Best Investor Relations Professional
— Danita On

o R 322017
1. EMRETRAES (REEER) —ERE
2. DNGREEFVHBE(REAERR)
— B RER
3. BEREEBEREE(EH)
4. REREEBEEE —ZRBRER

Listed Company Award of Excellence 2017

B £ AR 2017

TERBEREY

MerComm, Inc.

1. Galaxy Awards 2017 — Bronze Award
(Mobile Media — Annual Report)

2. iNOVA Awards 2017 — Bronze Award
(Corporate Website)

3. Astrid Awards 2018 — Bronze Award
(Corporate Website)

1. Galaxy A#22017 — $ 88 (F 15 52 — F3R)
2. iINOVA AH#E2017 — 82 (> 248 uh)
3. Astrid K£€2018— 88 (> 2 4uk)

Bloomberg
Businessw

AL YT hg

f
Liste g;'nten#g
Ofth'. :EE

Bloomberg Businessweek/
Chinese Edition

BHEmERAT, R

Listed Enterprises of the Year 2017
1. Listed Enterprises of the Year

/f s

2. Best Investor Relations

FEEMRE2017
1. FEEMLE
2. REREEBERE

Hong Kong Investor
Relations Association

FRREEMERGE

HKIRA 3 Investor Relations Awards —
Certificate of Excellence

FoEEBREEWHEAR —a K

Legacy Academy
SR 2R

Professional Leader Legacy Award

MEEGANEAKRE

IR Magazine

IR Magazine Awards — Greater China 2017
— Certificate for Excellence in Investor
Relations

IR Magazine X #& — K+ EE[E 2017
— R EERREMRAEE

Institutional Investor

2017 All-Asia (ex-Japan) Executive Team
Rankings (Consumer/Discretionary sector)
Best Investor Relations Professional —
Second Place — Danita On

(Nominated by the sell side)

2017 % All-Asia Executive Team
(TBREBR)HTE GEUFEBRER)
REREEEREE —FE 2 —RRR
(REFDITEIRA)

Yue Diao Yan

ESEELT

Top 100 Stock Connect Companies —
Institutional Investor Sector, Mainland China

RRANMEEREERTERBRR 1005
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Major Awards and Recognitions
FTRREREN

Corporate Social Responsibility £ % EH{T

Hong Kong Productivity Council
EEEENRERS

The 8" Hong Kong Outstanding
Corporate Citizenship Award

1. Merit Award (Enterprise Category)
2. Corporate Citizenship 5+ Logo

ENETBRLTCERARE
1. ERE(DEAER)
2. PERARLG+ER

Héih

GS1 Hong Kong
EERERESTE
Consumer Caring 5 Years Award

BOBERFE

Environment Bureau of
HKSAR Government

FREINITHEBARES

Charter on External Lighting —
Platinum Award

(POMNERHWE)—RDHE

World Green Organisation
jugp e qshih

Green Office Awards Label and
ECO-Healthy Workplace Label

RREMRAE RIEETERZRT

The Hong Kong Council of
Social Service

FEEHBRBEE

Caring Company

1. Chow Tai Fook Jewellery
Company Limited (10 Years+)

2. Chow Tai Fook Jewellery
Group Limited (5 Years+)

AR

1. BRRAKREETERDA
(BE10F A L)

2. AREUHREREERAR
(BELFRIAL)

Corporate Branding =% & ¢

GTON PALACE_ "
- I\

OF THE
4, YEAR

=

L, ny- eetd

World Branding Forum
57 R R cRE

World Branding Awards 2017 — Brand of
the Year (Retailer — Jewellery, Hong Kong)

R REAIE2017 — FERERE

(TEH—KE  &5)

Hong Kong Management
Association

FEEEREXNT

HKMA/TVB Awards for Marketing
Excellence 2017 — Citation for Excellence
in Mainland Marketing

2017 FE HKMA/TVB i m 5 R 2|48 —
BB A ISR B4

Deloitte
=5

Global Powers of Retailing 2018 — Ranked 150"

TENEHEBHRE2018 —F 16500

Forbes
=R
2017 Forbes Global 2000

2017 fgfn i 23k £ 2 7 2000 58

Brand Finance
World's Most Valuable Brands Global 500
2IR600 A EEME

Influential Brands
HEHRE

Influential Brands 2017

1. The Most Trustworthy Brand —

Premium Jewellery
2. Top CEO of the Year

2017 FRE N @R
1. BRRBEE—RESEER
2. DHRESEEME

The BrandLaureate

The BrandLaureate Industry Champion
Brand Icon Leadership Awards 2017

The BrandLaureate {7 3 & {ESEE MpEA 2017

World Brand Lab
R RBERE

China’s 500 Most Valuable Brands —
Ranked 47

PRS00 EEBEME —F47L

Quamnet

BEFIHE

Quamnet Outstanding Enterprise Awards —
Outstanding Premium Jewellery Brand

EEMEAEREERE — LS RRE RS

Le Fonti

Le Fonti Awards — Excellence of the Year
for Leadership — Luxury, Asia

Le Fonti RiE— H{EBEE S WA —
SNEEERTE

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited [EAZILE

SEARRBRAT



Major Awards and Recognitions

FTERERE
China Arts and Bazaar Jewelry
Crafts Association EDKE
A -
& Ig%ﬁ]’fﬁ = 1. Year of Jewellery Design Excellence — CHOW TAI FOOK
Baihua Cup Crafts T MARK Touch collection diamond necklace

2. Year of High-Quality Jewellery — Hearts On Fire
Triplicity Golden diamond necklace

1. FEALRERF AR —FAKXE T MARKIE ] RII#BAEE
2. FEE TS & IRE —Hearts On Fire Triplicity Golden &5 85

Competition — Gold Award

2017 BAEM B T
EfiEmE— o R

E-commerce and Technology & F &7 R EHX

UBM Asia The 46* International Exhibition
25 3 1 RS of Inventions Geneva

%5462 B ML EPRESEARE

JNA Awards 2017 — Industry Innovation

of the Year Gold Medal and
Silver Medal
INA K #2017 — FHAIF (DA
DRI
Hong Kong Federation of L2
Innovative TeChnomg'?s and Digital 1Q Index Luxury China 2017 —
Manufacturing Industries Digital Competence — Ranked 6"
| 3 1 3k AtEEs
FEAMFRRRE R ENE 2017 B {5 G BB 2 P HE M —
Hong Kong Innovation Technology 2017 — eI —F 61
Innovative Technology Achievement
Award Inside Retail Asia Ltd
BBBIFI R B A 2017 — Top 50 Innovative Retail Leaders in
B R 52 Hong Kong 2017

2017 FEEBRIITEEHHL08

Training &3l
nce in Training and D.v.lopl Hong Kong Management Association
m’"t' n Ce EEEEEERE

Award for Excellence in Training and Development 2017 —
Excellence Award in Skills Training Category

2017 FHREEREII R BERE—IEIFERERE
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management
EENEREBASREN

Executive Director
BITESE

1 Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry, GBM,
GBS (Chairman)
BRAGIF L (GBM, GBS) (£/%)

2 Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent
(Managing Director)
ERESE (EFHKIE)

3 Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian, JP
EEMIE L (JP)

4 Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy
I

5 Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton
EPIRER S A

6 Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong
PRitt S 5 A&

7  Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter
BREREE

8 Mr. Chan Hiu-Sang, Albert
PRIE A ST A&

9  Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby

94 Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EARBHKELEEEGR QT



Profile of Directors and Senior Management
EEREREBAEH/N

%
Non-executive Director

ERITES

10 Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson
ERERITE SE A

%
Independent
Non-executive Director

BIAKEPITESE

11 Mr. Cheng Ming-Fun, Paul, JP
EREA TIN5 A (JP)

12 Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor,
GBM, GBS, CBE
BB 428+ (GBM,GBS,CBE)

13 Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon
B AR kA

14 Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey, GBS, JP
M2 5 A (GBS,JP)

15 Dr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond, SBS, JP
BB+ (SBS,JP)
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EERSREBASBHN

Executive Director $1{TE =

Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry* (Chairman)
BRI (EFF)

Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent (Managing Director)
EREASE(EEHEE)

Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian*

[l A

Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy*

BB A

Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton

BPIRER % &

Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong
PRt S 55 &

Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter
BREmiat

Mr. Chan Hiu-Sang, Albert
BRI A 5 4
Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby
BiRATE

Non-executive Director JEHHITESE

Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson*
B ERIT oA

Independent Non-executive Director BT EHITES

Mr. Cheng Ming-Fun, Paul

ERERFI S A
Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor
HEREE L
Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon
it e
Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey
ANE S 3ot
Dr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond
51+
NC = Nomination Committee member
REZEEKE
RC = Remuneration Committee member
THEEERE
AC = Audit Committee member
BIRZEGKE
* Committee Chairman
L -E

NC, RC

NC, RC

AC, NC

NC*, RC

AC*, RC

AC, NC

RC* AC,
NC

Responsibilities B &

Strategic direction and overall performance of the Group
REBERRETHREBRRE

Strategic planning and overall management of the Group
REBERRBEAERERER

Strategic investment of the Group

REBERRKIZE

Raw material procurement (diamonds and gemstones)
RS (R BAR)

Financial management and corporate operations

M EERDELE

Mainland China business

R B At 3 7

Hong Kong, Macau and overseas business

BB RFIRGINET

Raw material procurement (diamonds and gemstones)
FRRE(ER - BR)

Sustainability and Innovation

BIEST E:9=958- ki

Responsibilities B &

Bank and landlord relationship management
RITREFRERER

Responsibilities B &

Independent Non-executive Directors serve a significant role in the
Board to bring independent judgment on the performance, development
and risk management of the Group. As chairmen or members of the
Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and/or Remuneration
Committee, they also undertake detailed governance work under the
respective terms of reference of the committees.

BUFMTEENESTNREEZERE  SAKRENRR ERIERE
BAETELER - FREREEE  REZBER AFMEESENERRL
KB - fIRIES R ESRENBREETABNERTE -

Four of our directors are family members related to the Company's major shareholders. Apart from them, all other directors of the Company are not related to each other.

WMEEFREANTTERREMOTENKER - BRItz ARFMAEMES 2 HIMEE -

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EAEBHRELEEEGR QT



Chairman and Executive Director

Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry, GBM, GBS

Aged 71, joined the Group in 1971, was appointed as Chairman and an
executive Director in July 2011 and is a member of the Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company. Dr. Cheng
is responsible for the strategic direction and overall performance of
the Group.

Dr. Cheng is a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. He is also
a director of several substantial shareholders of the Company,
including Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited, Cheng Yu Tung
Family (Holdings Il) Limited, Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited and Chow
Tai Fook (Holding) Limited and a director of Chow Tai Fook Enterprises
Limited, a subsidiary of Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited.

In addition, Dr. Cheng is chairman and an executive director of New
World Development Company Limited, chairman and an executive
director of NWS Holdings Limited, chairman and a non-executive
director of New World Department Store China Limited and FSE
Engineering Holdings Limited, vice-chairman and a non-executive
director of i-CABLE Communications Limited (with effect from 15
September 2017), and a non-executive director of SUM Holdings
Limited, all of which are listed public companies in Hong Kong.

He is chairman and managing director of New World China Land
Limited, which was a listed public company in Hong Kong until its
delisting on 4 August 2016. He was a non-executive director of
Lifestyle International Holdings Limited until his retirement on 4 May
2015; chairman and executive director of International Entertainment
Corporation until his resignation on 10 June 2017; independent non-
executive director of HKR International Limited until his resignation on
31 March 2018; chairman and non-executive director of Newton
Resources Ltd. until his resignation on 9 April 2018; and an
independent non-executive director of Hang Seng Bank Limited until
his retirement on 10 May 2018, all of the foregoing companies are
listed public companies in Hong Kong.

Dr. Cheng is chairman of the Advisory Council for The Better Hong
Kong Foundation. He was a Standing Committee Member of the
Twelfth Chinese People's Political Consultative Conference.

Dr. Cheng is the father of Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian, an uncle of Mr.
Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy, a cousin of Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson and
Mr. Cheng Sek-Hung, Timothy and a nephew of Mr. Cheng Yu-Wai.

Profile of Directors and Senior Management
EERSNEBAEEN

ERFRPITES

EpR 418+ (GBM, GBS)

BE71R RI1971TFEMALRER 20 F7AEZEAR
ERERITES  YAALARAZEGRFHEERK
B - ST aEAEEMNERSHREERE -

HELAREEETHEARES - Mt BAQRAEEM
3 Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited * Cheng Yu
Tung Family (Holdings 1) Limited + Chow Tai Fook
Capital Limited R AAE (ER) BERAFES - LERAK
BAER)AERARNINBARBAABEEERAFRNESE -

AN BB EERHABRRAR QDA TERATES
MEAZEBRERARIFLNTES FHARABETRHA
RRr N ERBEZERARARIFELFATES AR
RHBABERAFEERELIFHITEFE(A2017F9H15
BiE) « URRPIERIERARARIFNITES - RFAF
B REBLTARAQF -

MR ARAPEMEARAR I EREFALE  ZLAF
EREBLTARAR BEE2016F8H4BKE - bth
ERENEEREEBR AR ENTES  EE2016%5
HABEE: BBRREFERARDEFLATES - 12017
FORA0BBHE BAEHEERBREEEGRARELIERTT
BE - N2018F3A31 BEHE : HTBERBRAREZER
FFMITES - N2018F4 AOREHE  URBARTAR
NRVEYIENITES - EE2018F5 A 10 HRE @ At
A REE LM ARAF -

BELR[BEPAREHES | BRZESIR - B RE
ToEEERBHEBEE -

BELRABERBE LR BEEBRENBR - LHE
A R E S A E LA R B E R ENER
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management
EEREREBAEHN

Executive Director

Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent

Aged 62, joined the Group in 1977, was appointed as Managing
Director of the Company in July 2011 and is a member of the
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee of the
Company. Mr. Wong is responsible for the strategic planning and
overall management of the Group.

Mr. Wong is a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group and a
director of Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited, which is a subsidiary of
a substantial shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Wong has diverse experience in business development as well as
in operations and management. He was responsible for developing
the Group’s market in Mainland China and in 2008 he was promoted
to managing director of Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Company Limited.

Mr. Wong is chairman of the Jewellery Advisory Committee of the
Hong Kong Trade Development Council (“HKTDC") and a member of
the 2018 fair organising committee of the HKTDC for its Hong Kong
International Jewellery Show and Hong Kong International Diamond,
Gem and Pearl Show, council member of The Hong Kong
Management Association, chairman of executive committee of the
Hong Kong Jewellers’ & Goldsmiths' Association Ltd., chairman of the
supervising committee of the Hong Kong & Kowloon Jewellers’ &
Goldsmiths" Employees’ Association Ltd., a permanent honorable
president of the Kowloon Gold Silver and Jewel Merchants’ Staff
Association, a vice chairman of the Gems & Jewelry Trade Association
of China, a board member of the World Diamond Council, a member
of Hong Kong Consumer Council, vice-chairman of the Yantian District
General Chamber of Commerce and a member of the Anhui Provincial
Committee and the Yantian District Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference. He is also a board member
of the Diamond Empower Fund and vice president of the executive
committee of the Youth Outreach.

Mr. Wong was awarded Director of The Year Awards 2015 by The
Hong Kong Institute of Directors in December 2015. He was named
as "CEO of the Year/Luxury/Asia" at the 2016 IAIR Awards
presentation ceremony held by International Alternative Investment
Review. He was also named as “Asia’s Best CEO (Investor Relations)”
by Corporate Governance Asia, an authoritative regional journal on

corporate governance, at its 7th Asian Excellence Award 2017.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EARBHKELEEEGR QT

PITES

RAERAE

WE625 - MI977TFMAAEE 20N FTAEZER
ARRAEFREE  TAAANREEAGRFNEAE
WA - EEERRARENERAEREREE -

BERAERAEEETHBARNES  RAARALIER
ROMBARAABEERRATNES -

BAEBELENESEREUREENERELR Y88
REBERAPEANDTS - WK 2008 FRI BARNERE
SITERAREEFELIR -

ERERBAEBRSHRB((BREER NEERAEZE
GIRLEBEBERETBRRNERAEBREREL &
ORLIRRZ2018FEHR/ZRERE  BAEEEXEME
BEEZE TENROERSREHETSERATES
R BAREEHENEGERAAESER  NEEHE
XEgKkELEeR TRERELLEMITEHSRER
WRENZESEEZE BBHEELZEERE EARE
BAEEESReRARTEARBAHBERALHEERER
SZELEARZEERE - IREBONEASESE
EEXE  RBFTHATEZEREER -

HAEAR2015F 12 AR ER S ESS RN 2015 FEH
i & £ 8 - 7 International Alternative Investment Review
BITH 2016 F IAIR Awards JH4EHE | fhER A [FE
THREH — ENREERITE] ERECEE AR
HCENEEE R B2 FERMEBALE2017 £ - 4
TVEE A [ EMNFRETRAR (REERER)] -



Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian, JP

Aged 38, joined the Group in 2007, was appointed as an executive
Director in July 2011. Dr. Cheng is responsible for the strategic
investment of the Group, fostering sustainability and innovation
initiatives in the areas of culture & art, craftsmanship and creativity.

Dr. Cheng is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group, and a
director of a substantial shareholder of the Company, Chow Tai Fook
(Holding) Limited and its subsidiary, Chow Tai Fook Enterprises
Limited.

Dr. Cheng holds a Bachelor of Arts degree (cum laude) from Harvard
University and was conferred the Honorary Doctorate of Humanities
by the Savannah College of Art and Design. He worked at UBS AG
from September 2003 to April 2006 prior to joining the Group, and has
substantial experience in corporate finance.

Dr. Cheng is an executive vice-chairman and general manager of New
World Development Company Limited, an executive director of New
World Department Store China Limited, and a non-executive director
of Giordano International Limited and i-CABLE Communications
Limited (with effect from 15 September 2017), all of which are listed
public companies in Hong Kong. He is an executive director of New
World China Land Limited, which was a listed public company in Hong
Kong until its delisting on 4 August 2016. He was an executive director
of International Entertainment Corporation until his resignation on 10
June 2017; vice-chairman and non-executive director of Modern Media
Holdings Limited until his resignation on 26 August 2017, both of
which are listed public companies in Hong Kong.

Dr. Cheng is chairman of New World Group Charity Foundation
Limited, the vice-president of the All-China Youth Federation, a
member of the Tianjin Municipal Committee of The Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference, a vice-chairman of the Youth
Federation of the Central State-owned Enterprises, chairman of the
China Young Leaders Foundation, founder of K11 Art Foundation and a
member of the board of the West Kowloon Cultural District Authority.

Dr. Cheng is a son of Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry, a cousin of Mr.
Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy, a nephew of Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson
and Mr. Cheng Sek-Hung, Timothy and a grandnephew of Mr. Cheng
Yu-Wai.
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Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy

Aged 40, joined the Group in 2007, was appointed as an executive
Director in July 2011. Mr. Cheng is responsible for the procurement of
diamonds and gemstones of the Group.

Mr. Cheng is a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group and a
director of a substantial shareholder of the Company, Chow Tai Fook
(Holding) Limited and its subsidiary, Chow Tai Fook Enterprises
Limited.

Mr. Cheng holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics from The
Western University (formerly known as The University of Western
Ontario). Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Cheng had worked at Yu Ming
Investment Management Limited from 1999 to 2000 as a corporate
finance executive. He is currently a member of the executive
committee of the Diamond Federation of Hong Kong, China.

Mr. Cheng is an executive director of New World Development
Company Limited, which is a listed public company in Hong Kong. He
was a non-executive director of China Huishan Dairy Holdings
Company Limited until his resignation on 23 June 2015.

Mr. Cheng is a nephew of Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry, Mr. Cheng
Kam-Biu, Wilson and Mr. Cheng Sek-Hung, Timothy, a cousin of Dr.
Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian and a grandnephew of Mr. Cheng Yu-Wai.

Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton

Aged 43, joined the Group in 2004, was appointed as an executive
Director in July 2011. Mr. Cheng is responsible for the Group's
financial management and corporate operations, including information
technology and human capital management. He also serves as a joint
company secretary of the Company. Mr. Cheng is a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Cheng holds a Bachelor of Business Administration degree in
Professional Accountancy from The Chinese University of Hong Kong.
He is a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a Fellow of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a Chartered Financial Analyst. He is also a Graduate
of HKloD Global Directorship Programme (HKIoD.GD) accredited by
The Hong Kong Institute of Directors, committing to achieving the
highest standard of directorship and dedicating to the advancement of
good corporate governance.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EARBHKELEEEGR QT
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Mr. Cheng was awarded Director of the Year Awards 2015 by the
Hong Kong Institute of Directors in December 2015. He was also
named as “Asia’s Best CFO (Investor Relations)” by Corporate
Governance Asia, an authoritative regional journal on corporate
governance, at its 7" Asian Excellence Award 2017.

Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong

Aged 55, joined the Group in 1985, was appointed as an executive
Director in July 2011. Mr. Chan is responsible for the Group's business
in Mainland China. Mr. Chan is a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Group.

Mr. Chan has been in the jewellery industry for 37 years. He is an
administrative director of the Gems and Jewelery Trade Association of
China, a member of National Technical Committee 298 on Jewelry and
Jade of Standardization Administration of China, a member of the
standing council of China Gold Association, an executive vice-chairman
of the Guangdong Gold and Silver Jewellery Chamber of Commerce, a
vice-chairman of the Shenzhen Gold & Jewellery Association, a
general vice-chairman of Gold Association of Guangdong Province, a
vice-chairman of the Guangdong Golden Jewellery and Jade Industry’s
Association and a director of the Gemmological Institute, China
University of Geosciences (Wuhan). He is also a member of the
Liaoning Province Committee of the Chinese People's Political
Consultative Conference.

Mr. Chan is also a non-executive director of Giordano International
Limited, which is a listed public company in Hong Kong.

Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter
Aged 53, joined the Group in 1985, was appointed as an executive
Director in July 2011. Mr. Suen is responsible for the Group’s Hong
Kong, Macau and overseas business. Mr. Suen is also a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Suen has been in the jewellery industry for 33 years. He's a
member of the executive committee of the Hong Kong Jewellers’ &
Goldsmiths' Association. Mr. Suen holds an Executive Master's
degree in Business Administration from The Chinese University of
Hong Kong.

Mr. Chan Hiu-Sang, Albert
Aged 67, joined the Group in 1977, was appointed as an executive
Director in July 2011. Mr. Chan is responsible for the procurement of
diamonds and gemstones of the Group. Mr. Chan is also a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Group.
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Mr. Chan holds a Bachelor’s degree in Business from Western lllinois
University. He is a Graduate Gemologist of the Gemological Institute
of America, a Fellow of The Gemmological Association of Great Britain
and a Lifetime Member of the Gemological Institute of America,
Alumni Association.

Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby

Aged 43, joined the Group in 1999, was appointed as an executive
Director in January 2016. Mr. Liu is responsible for the development
of the Sustainability and Innovation Centre of the Group, leading and
synergising initiatives in the areas of culture & art, craftsmanship and
creativity. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Liu holds a Master of Business Administration degree from The
Western University (formerly known as The University of Western
Ontario) and a Bachelor of Science degree in Computer Mathematics
from Carleton University.

Mr. Liu has over 19 years of experience in retail and administrative
management. He has been responsible for developing the Group's
e-commerce and high-end luxury jewellery business in Mainland China
since 2010. He has also been in charge of the Group’s watch business
in Mainland China from 2016 onwards.

Non-executive Director

Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson

Aged 59, joined the Group in 1979, was appointed as a non-executive
Director in July 2011. Mr. Cheng is responsible for the Group's bank
and landlord relationship management.

Mr. Cheng is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group and a
director of Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited, a subsidiary of a
substantial shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Cheng holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics from the
University of Hawaii, Honolulu. Mr. Cheng is a vice-president of The
Chinese Gold and Silver Exchange Society.

Mr. Cheng was an executive director of International Entertainment
Corporation, a listed public company in Hong Kong, until his resignation
on 10 June 2017.

Mr. Cheng is a cousin of Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry and Mr. Cheng

Sek-Hung, Timothy, an uncle of Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian and Mr.
Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy and a nephew of Mr. Cheng Yu-Wai.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EARBHKELEEEGR QT
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Independent Non-executive Director
Mr. Cheng Ming-Fun, Paul, JP
Aged 81, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director in

September 2012 and is a member of the Audit Committee and
Nomination Committee of the Company.

Mr. Cheng holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from Lake Forest College
(Hlinois, the United States) and a Master's degree in Business
Administration from the Wharton Graduate School of Business at The
University of Pennsylvania.

He is deputy chairman and an independent non-executive director of
Esprit Holdings Limited, a listed public company in Hong Kong; an
independent non-executive director of Pacific Alliance China Land
Limited (a company listed on the AIM Board of the London Stock
Exchange); and a director of the CHG Capital Growth Fund. He was an
independent non-executive director of Global Logistic Properties
Limited (which was listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange until its
delisting on 22 January 2018).

Mr. Cheng was a former member of the Hong Kong Legislative
Council as well as the former chairman of Inchcape Pacific Limited, N
M Rothschild & Sons (Hong Kong) Limited, The Link Management
Limited and the Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce.
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Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor, GBM, GBS, CBE

Aged 72, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director in
November 2011 and is chairman of the Nomination Committee and a
member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Dr. Fung holds Bachelor's and Master’'s Degrees in Electrical
Engineering from the Massachusetts Institute of Technology and a
Doctorate in Business Economics from Harvard University.

He is group chairman of the Fung Group, a Hong Kong based
multinational group which comprises major operating groups engaging
in trading, logistics, distribution and retailing. They include publicly-
listed Li & Fung Limited, Global Brands Group Holding Limited,
Convenience Retail Asia Limited and Trinity Limited. He is also
honorary chairman of Li & Fung Limited. In addition, Dr. Fung is a
member of the board of Koc Holding A.S. (a company listed on the
Istanbul Stock Exchange). He was an independent non-executive
director of China Petrochemical Corporation (PRC) (April 2012-January
2016).

Dr. Fung is chairman of the Advisory Board of the Asia Global Institute
at The University of Hong Kong, a new multidisciplinary think-tank to
assume and carry forward the mission and operations of Fung Global
Institute, of which Dr. Fung was founding chairman (July 2010-June
2015). In public service, Dr. Fung is chairman of the Steering
Committee on the Hong Kong Scholarship for Excellence Scheme and
an adviser of the Infrastructure Financing Facilitation Office of The
Hong Kong Monetary Authority. Dr. Fung was also appointed as a
member of The Chief Executive's Council of Advisers on Innovation
and Strategic Development on 21 March 2018. Formerly, he was a
member of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
(January 2003-January 2018), a member of the Economic
Development Commission of the Hong Kong Government (January
2013-March 2018), chairman of the Hong Kong Trade Development
Council (1991-2000), the Hong Kong representative on the APEC
Business Advisory Council (1996-2003), chairman of the Hong Kong
Airport Authority (1999-2008), chairman of the Council of The
University of Hong Kong (2001-2009), chairman of the Greater Pearl
River Delta Business Council (2004-2013), a member of the
Commission on Strategic Development of the Hong Kong Government
(2005-2012), chairman of the International Chamber of Commerce
("ICC") (2008-2010), a member of WTO Panel on Defining the Future
of Trade (2012-2013) and a vice chairman of China Centre for
International Economic Exchanges (2009-2014). The Government of
Hong Kong awarded Dr. Fung the Gold Bauhinia Star in 2003 and the
Grand Bauhinia Medal in 2010 for his distinguished service to the
community in Hong Kong.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EARBHKELEEEGR QT
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Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon

Aged 68, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director in
November 2011 and is chairman of the Audit Committee and a
member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Mr. Kwong is a Fellow member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Kwong was a Partner of
PriceWaterhouse from 1984 to 1998, an independent member of the
Council of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange from 1992 to 1997, during
which, he had acted as convener of both the Compliance Committee
and the Listing Committee.

Mr. Kwong is an independent non-executive director of Agile Group
Holdings Limited, China Power International Development Limited,
Global Digital Creations Holdings Limited, Henderson Investment
Limited, Henderson Land Development Company Limited, NWS
Holdings Limited, OP Financial Limited (formerly known as OP
Financial Investments Limited), and FSE Engineering Holdings Limited,
all of which are listed public companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Kwong is
also an independent non-executive director of Piraeus Port Authority
SA (a company listed on the Athens Stock Exchange). He was an
independent non-executive director of COSCO Shipping Holdings
Company Limited, until his retirement on 25 May 2017; and
independent non-executive director of CITIC Telecom International
Holdings Limited, until his retirement on 1 June 2017.
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Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey, GBS, JP

Aged 66, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director in
November 2011 and is a member of the Audit Committee and
Nomination Committee of the Company.

Mr. Lam holds a Bachelor Degree in mechanical engineering from
Tufts University in the United States. He has over 40 years of
experience in the toy industry and is currently the managing director of
Forward Winsome Industries Limited which is engaged in toy
manufacturing.

Mr. Lam is an independent non-executive director of C C Land
Holdings Limited, China Overseas Grand Oceans Group Limited, Wynn
Macau, Limited, CWT International Limited (formerly known as HNA
Holding Group Company Limited), i-CABLE Communications Limited
(with effect from 15 September 2017), and Wing Tai Properties
Limited (with effect from 6 June 2018), all of which are listed public
companies in Hong Kong. He was an independent non-executive
director of Bracell Limited until his resignation on 1 November 2016
after its delisting.

Mr. Lam is a member of the National Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference. He also holds a number of
other public and community service positions including being a non-
official member of the Executive Council of the HKSAR and a member
of the Legislative Council in Hong Kong, a member of the board of
Airport Authority Hong Kong, a general committee member of the
Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce, chairman of Independent
Commission Against Corruption (ICAC) Complaints Committee, a
director of the Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited and the
board of Heifer International-Hong Kong. He was the former chairman
of the Assessment Committee of Mega Events Fund and a member
of Fight Crime Committee.
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Dr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond, SBS, JP

Aged 68, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director in
November 2011 and is chairman of the Remuneration Committee and
a member of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company.

Dr. Or holds a bachelor of social sciences degree in economics and
psychology from the University of Hong Kong and was awarded an
Honorary Doctor of Social Science from the City University of
Hong Kong in 2014. He was conferred Honorary Fellowship by Hang
Seng Management College in May 2017.

Dr. Or is also chairman and a non-executive director of China Strategic
Holdings Limited (re-designated from chief executive officer and an
executive director with effect from 1 April 2018), executive chairman
and executive director of Esprit Holdings Limited (re-designated from
an independent non-executive director with effect from 1 April 2018),
and an independent non-executive director of Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China Limited, Television Broadcasts Limited and
Regina Miracle International (Holdings) Limited, all of which are listed
public companies in Hong Kong. Dr. Or was vice-chairman and an
independent non-executive director of G-Resources Group Limited
until his retirement on 30 June 2017. He was also deputy chairman
and a non-executive director of Aquis Entertainment Limited (a
company listed on the Australian Securities Exchange) until his
resignation on 31 December 2017.

Joint Company Secretary
Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton
Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton is an executive Director and Joint

Company Secretary. His profile is set out on page 100 of this annual
report under the sub-section of “Executive Director”.

Mr. Lai Sau-Cheong, Simon

Aged 57, joined the Group in 2017, is Group General Counsel and Joint
Company Secretary. Mr. Lai is also the general counsel of Chow Tai
Fook Enterprises Limited, a subsidiary of a substantial shareholder of
the Company.

Mr. Lai is admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong, England and Wales,
and New South Wales, Australia and has over 30 years of experience
in corporate, commercial and related regulatory practice. He was a
long standing partner and later on, consultant, of a leading law firm
before joining the Group. He is currently a Council Member of the Law
Society of Hong Kong and chairs a number of its committees including
the Company Law Committee. Mr. Lai also serves on a number of
public appointments, including acting as a current chairman of the
Building Appeals Tribunal and chairing Housing Appeal hearings.
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Honorary adviser to the Board of Directors

Mr. Ho Pak-Tao

Aged 87, joined the Group in 1947, was appointed as an honorary
adviser to the Board with effect from August 2011 and is responsible
for advising on research and development. Mr. Ho is also a director of
a substantial shareholder of the Company, Chow Tai Fook (Holding)
Limited and its subsidiary, Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited.

Mr. Cheng Yu-Wai

Aged 86, joined the Group in 1949, was appointed as an honorary
adviser to the Board with effect from August 2011 and is responsible
for advising on procurement. Mr. Cheng is also a director of a
substantial shareholder of the Company, Chow Tai Fook (Holding)
Limited and its subsidiary, Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited. Mr.
Cheng is an uncle of Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry, Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu,
Wilson and Mr. Cheng Sek-Hung, Timothy, and a granduncle of Dr.
Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian and Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy.

Mr. Cheng Sek-Hung, Timothy

Aged 67, joined the Group in 1994, was appointed as an honorary
adviser to the Board with effect from August 2011. Mr. Cheng is a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Cheng is also a
director of a substantial shareholder of the Company, Chow Tai Fook
(Holding) Limited and its subsidiary, Chow Tai Fook Enterprises
Limited. Mr. Cheng is a cousin of Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry and Mr.
Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson, an uncle of Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong Adrian and
Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy, and a nephew of Mr. Cheng Yu-Wai.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EAEBHRELEEEGR QT
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Senior Management

Ms. Danita On

Aged 41, joined the Group in 2012, is the director of Investor Relations
and Corporate Communications of the Group, responsible for
maintaining effective communications with investors and media. Ms.
On has over 20 years of experiences in auditing, management
consulting, equity research, asset management and investor relations.
She is a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a Chartered Financial Analyst.

Mr. Wong-Tang, Alex

Aged 59, joined the Group in 2000, is the general manager responsible
for managing the Hong Kong and Macau Management Centre and
Chow Tai Fook Fei Cui Testing Centre of the Group. Mr. Wong has
over 44 years of experience in the jewellery industry. He holds an
Executive Master's degree in Business Administration from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is also a Graduate Gemologist of
the Gemological Institute of America and a Certified Gemmologist (Fei
Cui) of the Gemmological Association of Hong Kong Limited.

Mr. Wong Kim-Ming, Mark

Aged 56, joined the Group in 1986, is the senior manager responsible
for the operation of Diamond Department and diamond manufacturing
management of the Group. Mr. Wong has over 32 years of experience
in the jewellery industry.

Mr. Cheng Ming-Chi

Aged 46, joined the Group in 1994, is the senior manager responsible
for managing and purchasing gemstones such as jadeite, colour
stones and pearls for the Group. Mr. Cheng has over 23 years of
experience in the jewellery industry.

Mr. Lau King-Ming

Aged 51, joined the Group in 2013, is the general manager responsible
for managing production and logistics capacities as well as the related
infrastructures of the Group. Mr. Lau has over 28 years of
management and consultancy experience.

Mr. Chan Yee-Pong, Alan

Aged 46, joined the Group in 2010, is the general manager responsible
for the branding and marketing functions of the Group. Mr. Chan has
over 23 years of experience in luxury branding and marketing.

Profile of Directors and Senior Management
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management
EEREREBASHEN

Mr. Lam Hung-Shing, Max

Aged 35, joined the Group in 2011, is the deputy general manager
responsible for the creative design and development of jewellery
products. Mr. Lam has over 14 years of experience in jewellery
design. He was awarded Hong Kong Ten Outstanding Designer Award
in 2014 and is an adjunct professor of the Shanghai International
College of Fashion and Innovation, Donghua University.

Mr. Lee Tin-Hei, Jade

Aged 43, joined the Group in 2016, is the general manager responsible
for business strategy and analytics as well as technology applications
of the Group. Mr. Lee has over 20 years of experience in advanced
analytics carrying out consulting and business management roles with
leading business analytics corporations.

Mr. Tsang Siu-Kwong, Patrick

Aged 47, joined the Group in 1993, is the general manager responsible
for managing and developing the information infrastructures and
technologies of the Group. Mr. Tsang has over 25 years of experience
in information technology.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EARBHKELEEEGR QT
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Our Corporate Governance Framework
EEREZR

Stakeholder
Relations

&R
—> P115

Board Governance

EEEES

—> P128

Stakeholder Approach
LU & B T5 &

Investor Relations

REERE

Corporate Communications
B

Board Governance Framework and Major Tasks

EEEEAERETETH

Directors’ Composition and Appointments

EFEMEZRE

Board Effectiveness
EEESNEWER

Remuneration and Continuing Development

FEERSEER

Corporate Culture

AN
Corporate B
Management Organisational Structure
T¥EEE AEE
—> P139 Performance and Analysis

BMED

IT Governance

AMBHRER

Compliance and Audit

BREER

Risk Management and Internal Controls
[ B 3ER B Ay S B
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Information for Investors

REEEM

Profile of Directors and Senior Management
EERSREEASEN

Leadership and Control
EEEREE

Board Independence in Decision-making
EEGMBIIREK

Compliance and Audit

EREERZ

Dedication and Evaluation
=EHE

Directors’ Report

E=EWE

Our Corporate Governance Framework
EEERELR

—> P124

— P94

—> P149

Sustainability Report
ARFERRRE
(electronic version & FiR)

Legal and Regulatory Compliance
EEREEER

Internal Audit
R R

External Assurance
INEREEE

Whistleblowing
SR

Risk Management Report
EEERE

—> P76
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Corporate Governance
TEER

The new "4Ts"” concept introduced by CHOW TAI FOOK T MARK
diamond brand in ensuring our diamonds are natural and ethically
sourced is reinforced by our rigorous controls under the vertically
integrated business model. The same set of principles, Transparent,
Thoughtful, Truthful and Traceable, is in place to guide the
development of our corporate governance framework, supporting the
Group in better achieving our strategic objectives towards sustainable
growth and development.

MERF D E NN

FAXET MARK#E 1 i b2 B o 2 57 [4Ts | 812 IR
BEEESEBEAMITERMREL  BREMNELRA
R - AR SE - A—ZERR(BIRA - T8 - AE A=)
RREESCEEARERNER  IHARBEZZERE
BEIE R R R ATRER R AR -

Enhance accountability via institutionalised structures
and measures to drive better utilisation of resources
and fulfillment of stakeholders’ interests

BB CHRBEEINGERE - AEBWERER

TRACEABLE T2

T RANSPARENT T 40

Implement transparent disclosures
and constructive dialogues to foster
| genuine mutual understanding with \
stakeholders \
| ERERAROREMER L

TruTHFUL TT{E

Uphold long-established culture of
integrity to safeguard the fundamental
interests of stakeholders and build
trusting relationships with them
BERABIOFHEL  REFHEN
/ HARHIZE RS B AR RRR

| WEREERGEOEE TR

D phEmLREES
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Embrace leaders with independent mindset, versatile
expertise and business acumen who steer our
long-term pursuit for sustainable business growth
and attainment of common values with stakeholders
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Stakeholder Relations
& BE

Stakeholder Approach

* The Board has adopted a stakeholder approach to foster relations

with a wider range of stakeholders both inside and outside the
Group based on the principles of transparency, interactive
engagement and fair treatment.

In the pursuit of good corporate governance, our relationship with
stakeholders is critical to the long-term performance of the Group
and our shareholders’ value. This is because by maintaining a close
connection with stakeholders, it fosters the growth of our value
creation chain by enabling better Board decisions and creating a
supportive ecosystem for the operations.

Enabling better board decisions

From the Board's point of view, engaging with a wider range of
stakeholders helps to identify emerging trends of social needs and
business opportunities; enhance our capacity to innovate by feeding
in stakeholders’ lines of sight; foster high quality strategy and
customer-centric business model; identify synergies between the
Group and our stakeholders which encourage collaborations and
integrated solutions to future challenges.

Examples of our approaches to the key stakeholders in connection
with the above include proactive investor relations, win-win
collaboration with business partners, customer-driven “Smart+
2020" strategic framework, partnership with non-profit
organisations on community projects for preserving craftsmanship
and nurturing innovation, and a diversified Board which engages
with a broad spectrum of stakeholders.

Creating a supportive ecosystem for the operations

In view of facilitating corporate management, engaging with
stakeholders assists the business to gain access to a supportive
ecosystem, where valuable human capital and social resources are
available and barriers and resistance to the business are lessened.

We embed into our operations the people-oriented culture and
value creation objectives for a wider range of stakeholders which
gather our people working together for meaningful purposes
beneficial to the communities at large.

Ui ERFN T
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AFHEHER - RAEENINE T ERLH
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Corporate Governance
TEER

* While mutual trust is paramount to the success of our business,

we build it up by open, honest and transparent communications
with stakeholders through active listening and communicating with
them the outcomes of these engagements.

° As an iconic and trusted brand, we safeguard our reputational

capital and reduce business risks by addressing early on potential
misalignment between our corporate behaviour and social
expectations on our social, environmental and governance
performance as a responsible corporate citizen, and by promoting
both economic and social well-beings of our stakeholders by
efficient use of resources.

Examples of our approaches to the key stakeholders in connection
with the above include responsible media and public
communications, “Do Good"” campaign for caring employees and

EEHEMEBOKNERESE  BERMBEAEHR
BEROEAREDNEREMPVER - ETMARE - M
BEBANIMEILGS ©

ERBEFEERZEBENRE  RREXMNEEE
KoOgEEERE  RANEEEEENEERARAD
T MREMELE  BREREARBENENLETR
HMEMECHAECER  EEFRIE; MARMR
FEABERER  BREZHFFHENLBEML R
W

HERARNIESNERANDHNI FEERRE
EELARMBR  BEETIREES [Do Good] &t
B ECRAIMB T REBEBAQES AN [RELE]

the communities, “Listen to Your Hearts” engagement programme
for soliciting feedbacks from frontline employees and business
partners, and comprehensive sustainability reporting for the public
to understand our position and practices on material issues
concerned by the stakeholders and the context and business
realities that we are operating in and facing with.

Stakeholder engagement

Our key stakeholders mainly include business partners, customers,
employees, investors, media and non-profit organisations. Their
primary areas of interest and the results of materiality assessment are
detailed in our Sustainability Report.

¥ Scan the QR code to refer to our Sustainability Report
R _EB2HBMO I HEERRS ]
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Investor Relations

* We are committed to being responsible and transparent towards .
our investors in order to bolster their confidence towards the
Company.

° Since being founded in 1929, we have stayed focused on the .
development of business. We supervise directly the key functions
throughout our value chain from procurement of raw materials,
design and production, to marketing and sales.

o After we became listed on the Stock Exchange in 2011, .
transparency, communication and fair treatment have always been
the core values to our approach in investor relations. We believe
that facilitating investors to make informed investment decisions
would enhance their confidence towards the Company.

* |In FY2018, the Company received various industry accolades in .

recognition of our relentless effort in corporate governance and
investor relations.

MerComm, Inc.
(Mobile Media — Annual Report)
(Corporate Website)

(Corporate Website)

1. Galaxy K#22017 — i
(FHiee — F3%)

Corporate Governance Asia
EMEEEE

7™ Asian Excellence Award 2017

2. iINOVA K#82017 — $R#2 (> 4uk)

1. Galaxy Awards 2017 — Bronze Award

2. INOVA Awards 2017 — Bronze Award

3. Astrid Awards 2018 — Bronze Award

Stakeholder Relations
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EEEERMIREEFETEOTHE N -

| o v |

ANNUAL RESULTS
IN 3 MINUTES

¥ 2016/2017
o F 7

/
2017

“INOVA
ANARDS

WINNER

3. Astrid K#£2018 — #i#% ({2 4uh)

1. Asia's Best CEO (Investor Relations)
— Kent Wong

2. Asia's Best CFO (Investor Relations)
— Hamilton Cheng

Chinese Edition

Bloomberg Businessweek/

Institutional Investor
2017 All-Asia (ex-Japan) Executive Team

3. Best Investor Relations Company
(Hong Kong)

N

. Best Investor Relations Professional
— Danita On

FLETMEHALE2017
1. BMETRER (REEBR)

— E=AE
2. DNREERMBEE(REERER)
— EPIRER

3. HEREEMELE(FL)
4. REREEMEEE — ZBR

BHEEERAT, PR

Listed Enterprises of the Year 2017
1. Listed Enterprises of the Year
2. Best Investor Relations

FE EWEHE2017
1. FELEWRE
2. REREERER

Bloomberg

Businessweek
AT E SRV 5ve

Listed Enterprises

of the Year 201 7

Rankings (Consumer/Discretionary sector)
Best Investor Relations Professional —
Second Place — Danita On

(Nominated by the sell side)

2017 & [Z All-Asia Executive Team (845 HAY)
BT GEL R HERERD

BEREEREREE —E-% — TRK
(READITEIRE)
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Timely and transparent disclosure

Enhancing transparency has been our Board's crucial mission in
governance. Maintaining a high level of transparency prompts us to
be responsible to stakeholders in our decisions and operations, and
to proactively prepare for scrutiny and the ever-changing regulatory
environment.

To ensure timely and simultaneous public access to the Group's
material information, we publish announcements and results
presentations, annual and interim reports and press releases via
public channels including websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company. We also hold press and analyst conferences at least
twice a year after releasing the interim and annual results.

The presentations and webcasts for these conferences are
uploaded to our company website. In addition, we keep our
investor relations webpage up-to-date and provide an “Investor
FAQ" section for ease of reference. Furthermore, investors can
subscribe to our email alerts and have access to contact our
investor relations and corporate communications team directly via
email at ir@chowtaifook.com.

We publish quarterly voluntary announcements of key operational
data in standard format generally in about 10 working days after
each quarter end.

The Company has policies and internal control measures in place
regarding inside information disclosure to ensure announcements
are published in due course. We adhere to the principle of providing
timely, transparent and effective disclosures with the aim of keeping
the market regularly informed of the Group’s performance and
minimising market surprises.

Our motives for enhancing annual reports go beyond compliance
with the Listing Rules. The annual report is not only a means of
communication with our shareholders, but also an internal
management tool that drives us to continuously improve and create
value.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EARBHKELEEEGR QT
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Stakeholder Relations

B EREF

Interactive engagement #mEHHEZ

* We believe communication with our shareholders is a two-way .
process. We make no distinction between institutional and retail
investors.

* While we try to understand investors’ perspective, we also share .
with them a full picture of our business through the eyes of the
management, including our thoughts in making decisions, our
views on market outlook, our development strategies and so on. In
addition to reporting results, we take a step forward to show how
we run the business and how the Group will develop in the future.

e QOur executive directors and senior management in the investor .
relations and corporate communications team participate in various
investor meetings, conferences and non-deal roadshows every
year, with reference to our shareholder composition. Pursuant to
our regular shareholder analysis conducted during the year, over
70% of the institutional shareholdings were held by overseas
investors, mainly from North America and Europe. In FY2018, we
attended investor relations events held in Boston, Geneva,
Hong Kong, London, Los Angeles, New York, Paris, San Francisco,
Shanghai, Shenzhen, Singapore, Sydney, Tokyo and Toronto.

London 4

Toronto 4 4 Boston A% P*an* tGEiePr;%/a
SRz *Q SRR @3

San Francisco 4- New York

=@m 4 Los Angeles @

B

4 Investor conferences
REEWNE
4 Non-deal roadshows

FRHHE

* We also maintained continuous dialogues with a large number of °
analysts from research institutions, of which 21 of them covered
our Company and published research reports on a regular basis.

* |nvestor visits are often arranged to our operation centres, POS and °
production facilities.

BPBEEERRNBREZS —EERHBE  WH#
BREENMBEAREE —REC -
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ERENDHMELR  BREFLARBNEE M5
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E’HE?KH R

HATEERSRERBEERNREEFRREEEN
B 2ERESM SF2NZEKREESHE T
BMIER ZIR < BIFHFINF A E HETTEARRIB
DITEER - BL70% E!’J%%%%%HH\I%EXE%%&EM‘H
BIMZEEFIRA - 2018 EER - RFHFEL2HEE
REZEBEREHEINLTE - BAR - & Tuwﬁl
B K BR - =FW - LE ORI
Be Rrkzmz
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+* Shanghai
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° The annual general meeting ("AGM") is a platform for face-to-face
communication with our shareholders. Our Board and external
auditors attend the AGM and answer questions raised by
shareholders on the performance of the Group. Shareholders are
welcomed to stay after the AGM and meet our Managing Director

and Executive Director, Finance and Operations for further

exchanges.

Meetings by investor event in FY2018

2018 A BUF B (IRIRAEFHHEH)

38%

18%

Major investor conferences that we participated in FY2018 are set out

28%

16%

M Conference call B &
M Face-to-face meeting Y &%

M Investor conference & B FE

Il Non-deal roadshow X 5 &

e MREAFAREGRE - ERFEBRIANFE - RAD
BEESRINERHMMEEHELRBRIBELAHASE
REWMHEEELDE - SRBRRUNESLERES
BEBENRTEE(MBR2E)IRER -

Summary of investor relations activities in FY2018

2018 B F IR EE R R EE R

327 63%

One-on-one and group meetings C-level participation rate'"

—H—RERERE BEaERELERO
Non-deal roadshows Investor conferences Cities visited
R HER REEWE B a

(1) Ininvestor conference and non-deal roadshow meetings
(1) RREEZFHITERFRZBETINEE

R2018HBFELENABEEE SR

nuy

below:
Date Event Location
=R ==3::] it 2
June 2017 Credit Suisse HK/China Consumer Corporate Day Hong Kong
201746 A REREEMNE o
UBS Asian Consumer Conference 2017 Hong Kong
IRRIEEEHNE i
September 2017 Goldman Sachs China Conference 2017 Shenzhen
201749 A EEREERNE il
J.P. Morgan Asia Pacific CEO-CFO Conference 2017 New York
ERANBIREEMNIE FSiEa)
CLSA 24" Investors’ Forum Hong Kong
BRERAEHNE o
January 2018 UBS Greater China Conference 2018 Shanghai
201841 A miRREE & LB
Citi Hong Kong/China Consumer Corporate Day Hong Kong
TEEREERTE o
March 2018 Daiwa Investment Conference Tokyo 2018 Tokyo
201843 A AR EERTE L
Credit Suisse 21t Annual Asian Investment Conference Hong Kong
mEREERTE B
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In our meetings with investors, frequently discussed topics include
business outlook, gross profit margin, change in product mix, POS
network, industry benchmarking, capital expenditure, inventory
management, e-commerce business, dividend payout ratio, free
cash flows and so on.

Investors often give us constructive ideas that inspire us to improve
and create more values for shareholders. We are therefore always
keen to engage with investors.

Our investor relations and corporate communications team also
plays an important role in assisting the Board to obtain market
feedback, which in turn helps to strengthen the Company's inside
information policy.

We constantly monitor the share price of the Company, screen
media and analyst reports, document feedback from investor
meetings in order to understand market expectations.

Based on such information, we are able to conduct analysis for the
directors to assess whether market expectations differ significantly
from the Group’s circumstances.

Such information also facilitates the Company to assess the
likelihood of material share price movement in the event that a
particular piece of information on the Group’s circumstances is
made public.

Furthermore, such market signals help the Company to determine
whether certain media news or market rumours should be clarified
after considering the possibility of misleading the market; and to
monitor whether the Group's inside information that relies on a
safe harbour provision has been leaked, in which case disclosure is
immediately required.

Stakeholder Relations

B EREF
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Fair treatment of shareholders

Shareholder analysis, conducted every quarter, enables us to
review our investor relations strategy and work plan. Through
well-planned roadshows and investor conferences, we endeavour
to make long-term value of the Company visible to the investment
community at large, thereby enhancing the investment return to all
shareholders.

No selective disclosure of inside information is allowed in our
Company. We have formalised controls on the sources of
information and the communication channels.

We emphasise the integrity and consistency in the content of the
annual and interim reports, which contain information desired by
investors and the public.

This set of published information is used in investor meetings and
conferences.

According to our spokesperson policy, only designated executive
directors and the investor relations and corporate communications
team are authorised to speak to or hold meetings with investors or
media on behalf of the Company. Attendance notes and call logs are
properly kept for future reference.

Our investor relations and corporate communications team
establishes its own code of practices, which includes setting out a
quiet period to refrain from investor relations activities before
results announcement; preparing scripts and Q&As to manage the
information released to the public; and obtaining approval from the
Board on the results presentation materials.
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Corporate Communications

Our investor relations and corporate communications team is
responsible for developing communications strategies and
messaging with the management of the Group, and creating,
implementing and overseeing communications programmes.

Through effectively communications of the Group's business
development, initiatives and prospects, it helps us to promote our
corporate reputation and branding, and convey corporate messages
efficiently to a wider range of stakeholders including media.

Apart from organising press conferences, publishing
announcements and press releases, as well as timely update of
media centre in corporate website, we also arranged 35 media
interviews and handled 71 media enquiries in FY2018, in addition to
organising 40 corporate events including leadership speaking, store
visits and luncheons for media and stock commentators during the
financial year. Furthermore, media have direct access to contact us
via email at media@chowtaifook.com.

In FY2018, we also produced a 360 Virtual Tour webpage to lead
viewers to experience the journey through design, manufacturing
processes and innovative technologies and also artisanal techniques
in our Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Cultural Centre, Chow Tai Fook
Jewellery Creative Centre and Automated Logistics and Distribution
Centre, situated in Shunde, Mainland China. The webpage is
designed with interactive elements and can display information
corresponding to viewers' choices on scenes and routes, in order
to facilitate a better understanding of our craftsmanship and
innovation.

Stakeholder Relations
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Information for Investors

Investor calendar

FY2018 annual results announcement
7 June 2018

AGM
26 July 2018

Proposed payment of final dividend and special dividend
on or about 15 August 2018

Closure of register of members (both days inclusive)
For ascertaining attendance and voting right at the AGM
23 July to 26 July 2018

For ascertaining entitlement to proposed final dividend and special dividend
2 August 2018

Share information

Company name
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited

Listing
Hong Kong Stock Exchange

Stock code
1929

Listing date
15 December 2011

Board lot size
200 shares

Issued share capital as at 31 March 2018
10,000,000,000 shares

Index constituent

Hang Seng Global Composite Index

Hang Seng Composite Index

Hang Seng China (Hong Kong-listed) 100 Index

FTSE Asian Retail Index

Hang Seng High Dividend Yield Index

Hang Seng Corporate Sustainability Benchmark Index
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Shareholder services

For matters relating to your shareholding such as transfer of shares, change of
name or address, and loss of share certificates, please write to our Hong Kong

Branch Share Registrar:

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen's Road East

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2980-1333

Fax: (852) 2810-8185

Shareholders can obtain the annual/interim report of the Company by writing
to our Hong Kong Branch Registrar, or access the electronic version from our

corporate website.

Investor relations

For more information about the Group, please visit

corporate.chowtaifook.com

or contact our Investor Relations and Corporate Communications at

38/F, New World Tower

16-18 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong
Tel:  (852) 2524-3166

Fax: (852) 25626-9178
e-mail:ir@chowtaifook.com

General information

Headquarters and principal place of business in Hong Kong
33/F, New World Tower
16-18 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong

Registered office

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

P. O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

Stakeholder Relations
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Shareholders’ rights

* \We endeavour to ensure that shareholders are treated fairly and are

able to exercise their shareholders’ rights effectively. Shareholders
are entitled by the Articles and are also encouraged to participate in
the Company’s general meetings or appoint proxies to attend and
vote. Shareholder(s) holding not less than 10% of the Company’s
paid-up capital may request the Board to convene an extraordinary
general meeting and put forward proposals. The objectives of the
meeting must be stated in the related requisition signed and
deposited with our company secretary at the Company's
headquarters at 33/F, New World Tower, 16-18 Queen’s Road
Central, Hong Kong.

If a shareholder wishes to nominate a person for election as
director in a general meeting, the particulars of the candidate must
be stated in a nomination notice signed by such shareholder and
deposited together with a notice of willingness signed by the
candidate to our company secretary at the Company’s headquarters
or at our Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar (Tricor Investor
Services Ltd., Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong) of the Company. The notice should be given at least
seven days prior to the date of such general meeting.

Enquiries may be put to our investor relations and corporate
communications team and the Board via email at ir@chowtaifook.com.

Constitutional documents

e There was no change made to the constitutional documents of the

Company during the year.

Market capitalisation
e As at 31 March 2018, the market capitalisation of the listed shares

of the Company was approximately HK$89.4 billion (31 March
2017: HK$75.5 billion) based on the total number of 10,000,000,000
issued shares of the Company and the closing price of HK$8.94 per
share.
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Dividend information

e The Board is conscientious about returns to shareholders. The
Company declares dividend twice a year. The full year dividend
payout ratio for FY2018 was about 66% of the Group's net profit.

2FRBED

For the year ended 31 March #Z3 831 HILFE

Full year dividend payout ratio'

70.0% 66.0%

60.0% .
49.5% 51.3% ok 523%
50.0%

40.0%
30.0%
20.0%

10.0%

0.0%
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

(1) Special dividend excluded

Sufficiency of public float

* Based on the information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors, as at the date of this annual
report, the directors confirm that the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float of 10.7%, which is a lower minimum
percentage of public float accepted at the discretion of the Stock
Exchange.

Stakeholder Relations
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Board of Directors

EEE

Provide leadership for and exercise control over
the Group by directing and supervising on its affairs

EENEEARENEY  UEBMEEALE

Nomination Committee

REEEE

Review the structure, size

and composition of the

Board, assess the
independence of the
independent non-executive
directors and make
recommendations to the Board
on the appointment and
re-appointment of directors and
board diversity policy

BREFGRE RENAK
AEBYFRTESNBE LI
URREEMERZEEETEE
FEZLLHRBBERERAES
SRRLERER

Remuneration Committee

FMWEEE

Make recommendations to the
Board on the Company's policy
and structure for the
remuneration of all the directors
and senior management and on
the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy
of the Group for approval by the
Board

BRARRNEREENENER
BHMBEMERE  UARAEAE
8 3 57 1 X0 328 AR 9 7 B RO
FEF REFSREEBEEER
VAL ELHE

Audit Committee
BEEEE

Engage external auditors;
review the Group's financial
information, financial reporting
system, internal control
procedures and risk
management system; and hear
the reports of internal audit and
whistleblowing

RIS X BN AN F AT AN SR B B
BEM MBRERS  AHE
TREFMNEREERS KB
REEETIEEt Ll

Executive Committee

BITZEE

Oversee the day-to-day
management and operation
with the Board's delegated
authority; monitor the execution
of strategic plans and
operations of all business units

EREFGNEEEEARER
REBERHE  RERBIEIEN
HITREEBEMMEE

Managing Director

ESREE

Subcommittees

INEERE

Formulate strategies and supervise
performance related to enterprise-wide
governance duties, such as risk
management, sustainability, reform and
development, human resources and IT
governance of the Group

BEATRBUTEEAACEEREAREENK
B PIMAKRERREE  JRERR K
ERER - ANEREEMMRE RS

|

Corporate functions

EEIRE

Finance, IT, human capital and legal

W% BB ANBARER

Core business

ERER

Retail operations in Mainland China, Hong
Kong, Macau and other markets and raw
material procurement

EREAL - & RFAREMTSENEE
EBEFEREMEIRE
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Sustainable development and innovation
in the areas of culture & art, craftsmanship
and creativity, driven by branding, design,
production, sales channel, data and
technology
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Board Governance Framework and Major Tasks

The Board’s role is to provide leadership for the Company and
direction for the management as an independent decision-making
body. Our Board is collectively responsible and accountable to our
shareholders for the Group's performance.

The Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee each has its respective terms of reference specified by
the Board to undertake detailed governance work. A brief summary
of their tasks during FY2018 is shown on the chart in the preceding
page and further mentioned in the sections below.

The Executive Committee is delegated with all the powers,
authorities and discretion to act for the Board according to its terms
of reference in all operational, managerial and administrative
functions concerning the Group's ordinary course of business. It
monitors the execution of the Group's strategic plans and the
operations of all business units of the Group.

Matters beyond its delegated authority are reserved to the Board
for decision, including those transactions which are notifiable
transactions or non-exempt connected transactions under the
Listing Rules; or in which an executive director has (individually or
together with others) material interest; and those matters of
onerous or unusual nature.

The roles of our Chairman and Managing Director are clearly
defined and there is an effective segregation of duties between the
Board and the management. Our Chairman, Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun,
Henry, provides leadership for the Board and ensures that the
Board works effectively and all important issues are discussed in a
timely manner. Our Managing Director, Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent,
takes the lead in managing the Group's operations and
business development.

Directors’ Composition and Appointments

The Board currently comprises a total of 15 directors, with 9
executive directors, 1 non-executive director and 5 independent
non-executive directors. The profile, role and function of each
director, their relationship with each other and the membership of
the board committees are set out in the section headed “Profile of
Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report.

Board Governance
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The Executive Committee comprises executive directors. Each o HITLECHWMITESRMEN  SHTESHAEEASE
executive director has his own role and function to oversee the ELENEE ABTAE -
Group’s operations.

e The Company has a Board diversity policy and strives for a broad o RAEFIETESSEZ ULER BREEMNZLHES
spectrum of directors’ background to bring along comprehensive AHEZGARFHRBIENERE
considerations in forming Board decisions.

¢ Independent directors nominated to the Board are required to be of REBBUEBENRASNEERWA BFERE © gEHFE

sufficient calibre and experience for their views to carry weight and EERAEAXEN  UNEEFENTRTIREEIAER
pose constructive challenge to Board proposals. MHHER o

e The five independent non-executive directors come from diverse ¢ BRIAMIBVIFATESTYRE TRAMNTEMNSZE - #

business and professional background. Their experience ranges FEBRBRBOEEENETHEEHRZE EP%WD{K
from general management to professional practices, from China KZE - RAREUEINEN ETRF  HRBER
business to global enterprises, from private investments to HlE] - RREEMCEERS fﬂﬁg%ﬁ’ﬂ%ﬁﬁ;’%%&%ﬁ o

companies listed worldwide. All of them have proven experience in
forming corporate strategies, risk management and corporate
governance.

¢ While the executive directors possess management experience o BPMMITESHATREHNERLHRMEEND -

and professional knowledge in various fields, the diverse EEGEOMESENRERMERS - #HER  ¥BE
composition of the Board enables us to connect with a wide range O REENMRESETRATANFHEHEER - £5
of stakeholders including our customers, suppliers, business EMNE T LASHIIR TE :

partners, investors and colleagues. The diversity of the Board is
summarised in the following charts:

General status E&1ER Area of experience #EER$ES
(Number of directors) (Pecentage of directors)
(BEE AR (BHMhL)
15 100%
INED >30 >65 80%
10 NED
60%
10-29 51-65
40%
5 ED
20%
<10 35-50
0 A - 0%
Designation Length of service Age Strategy Governance Retall Jewellery Innovation
B3 (No. of years) Fir B R HRE Bl
BRI FH(FH)

ED - Executive Director HI{TES
NED - Non-executive Director F#{TES
INED - Independent NED %Y 3F$I{TES
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The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the year,
amongst other things, reviewed the structure, size and composition
of the Board. We believe that the current Board composition is of
sufficient diversity for the achievement of our corporate strategic
objectives, which enables the exploration of opportunities in
business innovation and technological transformation by leveraging
on the existing competitive edge of our Group.

All directors have formal letters of appointment with the Company
for a term of three years, subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Articles. Appointments to the Board and Board
committees are made for specific terms to facilitate regular reviews
and planning for any adaptations in the structure and composition
of the Board.

Board Effectiveness
Leadership and control

Strategies drive our risk-based management approach which aims
at seizing emerging opportunities amid the changing external and
internal environment, in order to achieve sustainability.

During the year, strategy workshops and risk evaluation workshops
were held to facilitate the Board to devise the Group's strategy plan
for the forthcoming year and determine the critical tasks and key
performance indicators.

We also organised the annual corporate planning day to lay down the
work plans for various business units and to prepare the annual
financial budget of the Group.

The reporting and analysis generated from our information
management system are reviewed by the management who
monitor the financial budget and analyse the outcomes of the
Group's strategies in order to review or make appropriate
adaptations.

In the four Board meetings held during the year, the Managing
Director took the lead to make reports to the Board on various
aspects, including business performance and prospects, financial
performance, risk management and corporate governance.

During the year, the Board allocated sufficient time to discuss on
strategies related to multi-brand positioning, store and product
differentiation, retail store coverage and customer segmentation. It
also committed to the work plans under the “Smart+ 2020"
Strategic Framework and the reorganisation of the management
structure to step up our transformational efforts in exploiting
market opportunities and addressing challenges in the digital age.

Board Governance
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e The Company also provides monthly updates to all the directors on
the Group's performance and position to enable the directors to
make balanced assessment and informed decisions for the benefit
of the Group.

* The enhanced accountability and objectivity of the management are
built on the scientific management approach mentioned above
which promotes a professional management style.

Board independence in decision-making

* \We believe that independence is crucial for the Board to work
effectively to create value for our stakeholders as a whole.
Notwithstanding the family stake of 89.3%, the Company is
committed to maintaining a balance among the interests of the
stakeholders by implementing various corporate governance
policies and practices.

* The Group and the controlling shareholder exhibit independence in
regard to their respective operation, asset holding and financial
management. The business nature differs from each other so that
conflict of interests are minimised fundamentally in the absence of
directly competing business.

e Driving for long-term value is the main objective in making Board
decisions. During the year, the independent non-executive directors
raised questions actively in Board meetings and Board committee
meetings, taking into account both the commercial context and the
perspectives of minority shareholders, and enable the Board to make
thoughtful decisions which we believe are regarded as reasonable by
third parties and to keep the interests of the controlling shareholder
and other shareholders in alignment.

* In respect of our approach to connected transactions, we work
together with related companies mainly for collaborating efforts in
marketing to explore value-added services for our common
customers. With each of us contributing our edge, we believe such
efforts could enhance the competitiveness of our brand and
shareholders’ interests as a whole.

* When approving a connected transaction, apart from the fairness of
the agreement terms, the independent directors also consider the
commercial rationale and the benefits brought by the proposal to
the business of the Group.

* |tis a norm for the director who is a connected person in relation to
the connected transaction tabled for approval to declare his interest
in advance and then abstain from voting on that resolution,
regardless of the materiality of such interest.
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The Company has received annual confirmation of independence
from all the independent non-executive directors in accordance
with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board is of the view that all
the independent non-executive directors are independent.

Compliance and audit

The Board is responsible for reviewing and monitoring the
Company'’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, primarily the Listing Rules, the Companies
Ordinance and the Securities and Futures Ordinance; and for
developing and reviewing the Company'’s policies and practices on
corporate governance.

The Company has established its policy for inside information
disclosures as well as its internal controls on the reporting and
monitoring systems so that material matters are escalated to the
Board in a timely manner for them to judge whether inside
information exists and whether an announcement is required to
disclose inside information in due course.

All our directors and employees are bound by the prevention of
insider dealing policy of the Company and should refrain from
dealing in the Company’s securities if they are in possession of any
inside information of the Group.

The Company has adopted a code of conduct on terms no less
exacting than the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules regarding the securities
transactions by all the directors and those employees who are likely
to come across inside information because of their duties. Having
made specific enquiry of all our directors and relevant employees,
they confirmed that they had complied with the required standard
as set out in the Model Code and the Company’s code of conduct
during FY2018.

The Company's corporate governance practices are discussed in
the section headed “Corporate Governance” in this annual report.
During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company was in full
compliance with all applicable principles and code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules (the “CG Code"”), except for the deviation
mentioned below.
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Pursuant to code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the Chairman of
the Board should attend the annual general meeting of the
Company. Due to health reasons, Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry, the
Chairman of the Board, did not attend the AGM held on 26 July
2017. Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent, the Managing Director who took
the chair of the AGM, together with other members of the Board
who attended this meeting, were of sufficient calibre for answering
questions at the AGM.

The Board, supported by the finance department, is responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements of the Company and the
Group. The directors were not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt
upon the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. The
statement by the auditors of the Company and the Group regarding
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the
Company and the Group is set out in the section headed
"Independent Auditor’'s Report” of this annual report.

e The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year. They

reviewed the financial statements for the Group's interim and
annual results. They also reviewed reports on the Group's risk
management, internal controls, internal audit and whistleblowing
system, and discussed the related matters directly with the
management, external and internal auditors. The Audit Committee
has reviewed and was satisfied with the effectiveness of our risk
management and internal control systems. Further details are
included under the section headed “Risk Management Report” in
this annual report.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EARBHKELEEEGR QT
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The Audit Committee has reviewed and was satisfied with the
external auditor's independence, objectivity and effectiveness of
the audit process. During FY2018, the total fee paid/payable in
relation to audit services provided to the Group amounted to
HK$8.7 million, of which a sum of HK$5.2 million was paid/payable
to our principal auditor, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, and the
remaining was mainly paid/payable to other auditors performing
audit work for the Company’s subsidiaries in Mainland China which
were subject to local statutory requirements. The remuneration
paid to Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and its affiliated firms for
services rendered is listed as follows:

Types of services

RAsER

Audit services EIZ RS
Audit-related services EIZAEE R
Non-audit services™ot IEEAZ AR g D

Note:

Non-audit services comprise primarily services on tax compliance provided to the Group. None of these

services provided compromise the independence as auditor, in terms of the International Ethics Standards

Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants, and were reviewed and approved by the

Audit Committee.

Dedication and evaluation

The directors have diligently and actively engaged in our Group's
business. Our executive directors carried out their respective duties
to formulate corporate strategies, supervise operations and take
part in day-to-day management. They attended the Company's
business meetings and monthly meetings of the executive
directors, managing director and senior management, provided
leadership over and supervised the attainment of the Company's
business objectives.

Their performances are closely related to the results and
development of our Group. As such, the directors (including the
independent non-executive directors) reviews and evaluates the
Group's success in strategies, operating efficiency, effectiveness in
risk management and internal control systems, reliability and
disclosure standards in financial reporting, corporate governance
standards and sustainable development principles through various
management reports and the annual report, taking into account
investors' feedback and comments.

Board Governance
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* \We strive to keep benchmarking to the best practices of corporate

governance. With reference to the investors’ comments and
advocates made by the governance professionals, the Nomination
Committee evaluated our board structure, board composition and
board meeting procedures. The independent non-executive
directors recommend that while leveraging the diversified mix of
executive and non-executive directors, our board size should not
expand further. They also recommend efficient ways to arrange
private meetings between the Chairman and independent non-
executive directors and offsite visits at our regional headquarters.

Besides, we conducted a survey to collect directors’ feedbacks on
the quality and adequacy of information provided to the directors.
With regards to the ever-changing retail landscape, our directors
anticipate to have more details on the customers and business
model and strategy execution for the Board meetings and more
time shall be allocated to consider forward looking issues.

Meanwhile, we are committed to enhancing the disclosure
standards of our annual report and the level of transparency for
investors and other members of the public, with a view to
supplying meaningful information which would enable stakeholders
to play a part in reviewing the Board’s performance in corporate
governance.

Attendance at AGM and Board meetings

BPBAOINCEEAREEBEAZREBE - REEE
E2EREENBRMEBERZALTREMNGES @ &
BPMEESRE EFEANLEFTFERHREF - &
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ABFIE  AEEERITOMR XD EESEEIAE
BAEEER -

R RABONESFROBEKTFNHAIRNEE
EMERE  ANRNREEEENEAERNE —R2
HiRTEEENREE A -

REFBFEXENEFET TR BTk

Number of Meetings Attended/Eligible to attend for FY2018

Annual
General
Meeting
BREFAE
Executive Directors HITES
Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry™ ERAH LD 0/1
Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent ERAELAE il
Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian #EmiE L 11
Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy I E R e 11
Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton ERIRER S m
Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong BRitt S5 A& 11
Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter BEREL il
Mr. Chan Hiu-Sang, Albert PR A S A 0/1
Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby BiRA&%E 11
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson EERiR ek 11
Independent Non-executive
Directors BIYFHITES
Mr. Cheng Ming-Fun, Paul AR ) 5t A& il
Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor IRt 11
Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon — EB#3& %4 11
Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey ==t 11
Dr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond SR E L 11

Note:

(1) Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry did not attend the AGM and certain Board meetings due to health reasons.
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Remuneration and Continuing Development

The remuneration policy for the executive directors and senior
management is incentive-based, with a significant portion of
discretionary bonus being linked to the overall performance and
profitability of the Group, as well as the share price of the
Company. This aims at enhancing accountability by a better
alignment of their rewards with the interests of our shareholders.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the year.
The performance of the executive directors was assessed, and the
remuneration packages of the executive directors and senior
management were reviewed and approved by the Remuneration
Committee a majority members of which were independent non-
executive directors. They also reviewed the effectiveness of the
Company's medium to long-term incentives for the management’s
remuneration package to align with corporate goals in the long
term.

Training and continuous professional development of directors and
senior management were reviewed and monitored by the
Nomination Committee. We take a strategic approach to re-align
training and development of the management with a view to drive
performance towards our strategic goals. In order to sharpen the
strategic vision and competency of the management in embracing
the era of innovation and disruption, the Company organises
forums inviting inspirational speakers and workshops where our
leaders coincide to propel the business priorities. The Company
also commits to enriching the roles to be played by young
management and creating promotional opportunities in their career
path which in turn will promote the sustainability of the Group's
business.

The Company's basic principle for selection of the management is
on merits. Coupled with talents obtained via external recruitment,
the Company has built up its management team primarily through
internal promotion.

We tailor-made induction programme for new directors in view of
their background to brief them on the Board proceedings and
culture, the operation and business of the Company, its corporate
governance policies, and statutory duties and responsibilities of
directors.

We arrange visits to our management centres and production sites
to enable the independent non-executive directors to understand
our management, operation and control systems, as well as the
latest innovations.

Board Governance
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* We also share articles and seminar information in the form of
custom-made newsletters related to hot topics in the field of
directors, such as big data applications, changing workforce,
organisation in a digital transformation and emphasis on governance
duties etc.. Keeping abreast of the market pulses, we hope this
helps catalysing a high-performing Board in exercising critical
oversight and objective judgement over the Company’s latest

developments.

* The directors also attended seminars or workshops relevant to their
profession and duties as directors. Their training records during the
year are summarised as follows:

Name

=L

Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry
Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent

Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian
Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy
Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton
Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong

Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter
Mr. Chan Hiu-Sang, Albert
Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby

Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson
Mr. Cheng Ming-Fun, Paul

Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor
Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon
Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey

Dr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond

e The training records were further analysed into knowledge fields,
such as macro-trends, innovation and technology and regulatory
updates, and benchmarked with a training needs survey conducted
by us earlier. This analysis assists us in the planning for the next

year.
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* We believe that our commitment to ethical practices and critical REE BT
oversight on our organisational processes and structures has E
contributed to a strong control environment. It enables our
organisation to preserve its integrity and be resilient to internal and

external pressures.

AL EREBNMME O M ERMEREBHAE
EEMRBAMT AN  ELERESELER -

e Systematic management infrastructure and scientific analysis have °
been the key to the internal controls on our business activities and
governance in our organisational behaviour, supporting a
sustainable growth in the scale of operations.

BPRBTBEIMIME] SRERBERSRENRRD
TROMAXE  XEBENERERX  BEEEER

SHEBRKR  RELEEE -

* \We consider “ethics” and “science” as the two pillars in preserving °
integrity and disciplining behaviour throughout the organisation,
which prove to be a pragmatic model to enhance our
trustworthiness with traceable accountability.

Corporate Culture LEXIE
3

Blessings and collaboration
e Jewellery represents our commitment to consumers and not ¢ HEMFARABHKEAER  FEEAHEBEELNBR
A FERESUNERNRY  SREMREEER
RESHTHAERE  BERAEETRAORNEZ -

merely a product. We wish to create unforgettable experience for
the most precious moment of our customers with excellent

products and services. In pursuit of our corporate core value of
"Sincerity ® Eternity”, we have been committed to giving our best
and blessings to our customers, employees, partners, shareholders
and the society. We ensure proper and efficient use of social
resources in support of our business and give back to the society
by creating shared value for sustainable development and
establishing a constructive rapport with the community.

Ethical business practices

* \We have encountered various challenges along our development

path. Nonetheless, we stay firm in our adherence to good corporate
governance. Having inherited an “artisan” DNA in the pursuit of
excellence, we are relentlessly dedicated to details in order to
consistently align our beliefs with real-life practices. Committed to
integrity, business ethics and legal compliance, we are widely
recognised and supported by customers, partners and other
stakeholders. With their support, we are able to overcome
challenges and surpass ourselves in our pursuit of
sustainable development.
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People-oriented objectives

e All along, we operate with a people-oriented spirit and regard

communication as fundamental in building mutual trust. We have a
culture of openness in listening to stakeholders’ needs and
expectations through interactions in our daily operation. We
consider that a scientific management system can only thrive by
implementing people-oriented practices in parallel. This can inspire
continuous remediation and enhancement towards our dual goal to
explore growth opportunities for the Group and our stakeholders.

“Listen to Your Heart” programme

In view of the challenge of rapid market changes, the management
focuses on formulating responsive strategies and stepping up the
application of technology and innovation. Meanwhile, the Board
cares about how major stakeholders (including colleagues and
business partners) are coping under such circumstances. We
therefore encourage frequent sharing and communication hoping
that more interactions would inspire and drive us to make
continuous improvement in various aspects of our operations. We
hope to be a faithful partner of our fellow colleagues who stand by
them and grow together in good and bad times. Trust from our
major stakeholders is highly valued by Chow Tai Fook.

Recently retired senior management members are appointed as
advisors of “Listen to Your Heart"” programme. The advisors paid
visits to frontline staff of our POS as well as officers of shopping
malls and franchisees in different cities each month to understand
how they felt about the work environment, team work,
remuneration, administration, technological application, business
performance and prospects in a relaxed setting through face-to-
face conversations and satisfaction surveys. The advisors then
escalated those feedbacks, together with their own observations,
to our directors in an organised way. Actions or improvement were
to be taken under the coordination of the respective executive
offices and the Risk Management Committee. The advisors also
made recommendations to the heads of regional operations based
on their observations on the business sentiments and strengths of
these regions.

This programme has yielded positive results by facilitating our
directors to stay tuned to frontline situations, helping them to take
into account of the perspective of major stakeholders in their
decision-making. This programme also reiterates our corporate
culture that emphasises the priority of people and persistent
attention to details. Meanwhile, it has also provided an alternative
means of appraising the management’s performance and
identifying operational risks, thereby strengthening corporate
governance.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EARBHKELEEEGR QT
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Promotion of “Do Good” spirit

Ever since the inception of Chow Tai Fook, bringing happiness and
well-being to people and mutual benefits to partnerships have been
at the heart of our business. While the concept of sustainability has
already been embedded in our business operations, we used to
stay low profile in marketing our “Do Good"efforts.

Recently, we have come to realise that better communication of
our efforts pertaining to sustainability both internally and externally
would promote inclusiveness and interactive engagements with
stakeholders. We want to understand more on how they perceive
our current efforts and what they further expect from us.

Through “Do Good, Feel Good"” promotional campaign, we
showcase our various initiatives and deliverables in pursuit of good
business practices, customer relations, well-being of staff
members, better living of community and harmony in a green
environment.

While we have published sustainability reports every year
containing comprehensive information, we also need more real-
time sharing with our staff in order to promote their engagement.
In our “"Do Good" series, we have “Do Good” logo, signature,
video, information collection catalogue and message circulation on
various social platforms for staff. Directors, management and staff

are invited to join events promoting “Do Good" spirit.

We aim to create a "Do Good"” culture that strengthens our staff's
sense of corporate identity and encourages them to take part in
“Do Good”
across different generations who want to work with purpose and

in daily lives. We believe “Do Good" is a shared value

make a positive impact on the wider society, and who want their
workplace to be aligned with their values. From now on, “Do

Good" is from everyone and for everyone at Chow Tai Fook.

Sustainability report

We published a standalone sustainability report, an electronic version
of which is available for download on the corporate website of the
Group (corporate.chowtaifook.com/en/cg/sdreports.php).

The report focuses on aspects with important impacts on or
opportunities for the Group and its stakeholders, including our
ethical business practices, our customers, our people, our
environment and our community.
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The sustainability report shall be read in conjunction with this
annual report to form a holistic view on the Group's sustainable
development efforts, which are found with our strategic planning,
corporate governance and business performance, as well as the
recognition of social responsibilities in our strategic planning and
business operation.

Organisational Structure

Our management structure is mainly organised by regions and
functions. All regional and functional heads report to the Managing
Director. Information can flow swiftly in this flat hierarchy. This
empowers the top level to decide precisely on corporate vision and
prioritising strategic initiatives in due course. Directions at the top
level can reach regional offices promptly for implementation.

Meanwhile, in view of the rapidly changing and diversifying local
markets, our management is adapting to a more agile approach of
business decentralisation. The regional units are promoted as active
owners in charge of the relevant purchase to sale strategies, taking
advantage of their local wisdoms to capture local opportunities
quickly. An appropriate measure of accountability and autonomy is
maintained through appropriate staffing structure and clear lines of
reporting and authority, with a view to working towards the Group’s
strategic goals.

Corporate functions such as finance, human resources, IT and legal
have a unified reporting line to the Managing Director. This
promotes collaboration among cross-functional teams and with
external partners towards business priorities and the Group's
transformation. By thorough analyses on the needs of the business
units, options and risks, these business partners work with
business units collectively to attain strategic goals.

In addition to the above vertical management structure, we also
have committees jointly led by our executive directors and senior
management, namely the Risk Management Committee,
Sustainability Committee, Reform and Development Committee,
Human Resources Planning Committee and IT Governance
Committee. These committees assist in the Group's strategic
planning for relevant areas and supervise the attainment of the
Group’s objectives.

Further, we have been setting up more project teams to undertake
business explorations and pilot projects. We like the flexible and
open-minded characteristics of small teams which enable us to be
highly responsive to market opportunities, as well as to train up our
young potentials.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EARBHKELEEEGR QT
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e To step up these transformational efforts, the Company decided to

establish the Sustainability and Innovations Centre, sided by the
core business units as the Group's strategic investment. The
Sustainability and Innovations Centre is responsible to oversee all
investments related to business innovations that were once
scattered within various core business units. These strategic
investments relating to culture & art, craftsmanship and creativity
aim at diversifying the Group's income stream and building new
differentiating capabilities for our business. With enhanced visibility
on its strategic incentives and accountability, we expect our
innovation initiatives to scale up and add to our business edges in
the near future. Under this operating model, it is also easier to
preserve and prioritise resources and attract talents and
partnerships.

Performance and Analysis

e The Group conducts business planning on an annual basis, and all

regional offices and departments are required to prepare financial
budgets, which are consolidated at Group level and subjected to
sensitivity tests, while key performance indicators are also set.

* We have established information management systems at the

upstream, midstream and downstream business units to allow
close tracking and monitoring of business input and output,
including the procurement of raw materials, production per order,
inventory control, product sales, human resources and
customer relations.

Reports and variance analyses of multiple dimensions can be easily
retrieved from the business intelligence system. The transparency
of information transmission allows prompt indication of deviations
in key performance indicators and business performance trends,
thereby providing comprehensive information for the management
to make appropriate decisions and therefore improve the
success rate.

Given the inseparability of financial and business analysis, the
Group has made huge efforts to facilitate the convergence of
financial data and business data to improve the analysis of
effectiveness of strategies and monitor the use of resource, while
enhancing integrated analysis in annual reporting and overall
performance review.
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In the digital era, data is a key to drive business innovation and
seize new business opportunities. In order to leverage on big data
analytics and business intelligence, the Group has set up the
Strategic Business Office and Data Intelligence Space to provide
timely, visualized and market-compatible analyses for the purpose
of advising on strategic business solutions. Examples of these
solutions include predictive new launch analytics, inventory
assortment and distribution, salesperson’s performance
management etc.

IT Governance

The management is keen on applying IT resources in close tandem
with the business development of Chow Tai Fook, in order to
support multi-regional management, innovative retail business
model, maintain a close connection among the upstream,
midstream and downstream business units, and facilitate big data

analytics, internal control and business and financial reporting.

The IT Governance Committee comprising executive directors and
senior management in charge of business innovation, financial and
production management, data analysis and IT was established
to provide a platform for constructive debate among major
stakeholders with a view to keeping aligning IT strategies with
business strategies. The potential benefits and risks associated
with the IT needs identified by business units are weighted in a
rational manner from a strategic point of view, with the aim of
finding solutions that maximise the benefits and efficiency in
resource allocation in tandem with the priorities under the Group’s
overall strategy.

In the implementation of IT service business alignment, business
analysts teams are set up to actively listen to business units.
Throughout system development or system-change projects, the
business analysts facilitate transparency and continuous feedbacks
amongst the sponsor departments, other users and IT colleagues.
To better align IT manpower with the future business development
of the Group, the business analysts teams assist to understand
better from the business units on their priorities and plan ahead the
job resources for the next year.

Enhancement of data governance is also a major initiative to align
with the data-driven business innovation strategy. Specialists and
consultants were recruited to review the data structure, data quality
and ownership across various data systems in the Group. We aim at
procuring a reliable and consistent database under effective
management in order to enable the application of data analytics,
which unlocks the income generation potential from the use of data.
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e The IT Governance Committee also undertakes responsibility in IT

risk management, conducting analysis and evaluation of risks
identified on an annual basis and reporting to the Risk Management
Committee.

Risk Management and Internal Controls

* While the Board has overall responsibility for the Group's systems

of risk management and internal control, we adopt an enterprise-
wide risk management structure involving all levels from the Board
level and down to the business unit level. We take both “top-
down" and "bottom-up” approach.

In the day-to-day operations, the executive directors have ongoing
dialogue with management of the business units to identify and
evaluate emerging risks and opportunities, and formulate
appropriate action plans. By ongoing review on the variance reports
and analysis, budget plan and actual performance, findings of
control weaknesses reported by audit teams, they become alert to
what and where problems may have arisen which require tackling
from “top-down” in order to achieve the strategic objectives.

On the other hand, a formalised risk management annual cycle
from “bottom-up” is in place which is equipped with routine
implementation procedures and delegated risk owners. Business
units are required to identify and assess risks in their operations
and then record them in a risk register. Proposed mitigation
measures are also registered to facilitate subsequent review of the
outcome. We catalog risk data in a system similar to an accounting
system. This allows us to trace down to each risk entry and owner,
or summarise risks by region or function, and consolidate a risk
profile for the Board's oversight on all significant risks facing
the Group.

Active engagement of the risk owners is paramount to the success
of risk management. We organise training workshops to enhance
risk owners' management skills and hold regular meetings to
discuss on the effectiveness of risk mitigation measures. We aim
at integrating risk management into day-to-day operations, resulting
in a practical and continuous process.
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Besides, it is our annual exercise to conduct self-assessment on
the internal control system. Executive directors and senior
management of all major business and functional units are required
to submit self-assessment questionnaires, covering the
effectiveness of financial, operational and compliance controls and
the reliability of financial reporting of which they are held
accountable for.

Three lines of defence have been laid down in our governance
framework so that our internal control procedures, risk
management, financial compliance and internal audit can function

in tandem.

Notwithstanding all the above, our risk management system is
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure in
achieving business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Compliance and Audit
Legal and regulatory compliance

The Group is committed to ensuring its business operations are in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

From time to time, the Board, the executive office and the legal
department stay alert to regulatory updates and new legislations
relevant to our industry or operation; and then evaluate the
implications of such new regulations to the Group.

For those new regulations applicable to the Group, we start
preliminary assessment of the potential impact on our business
operation as early as practicable. This allows us sufficient time to
seek advice and formulate our approach. If existing policies and
procedures have to change, we will draw up such amendments
and announce the implementation plan by way of a company
notice.

We conducted staff training on compliance and corporate
governance knowledge, covering knowledge in new advertising
laws, consumer rights, intellectual property rights, personal data
privacy, prevention of corruption and bribery as well as
risk management.
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Regular monitoring on the compliance of laws and regulations is
conducted by various business units via our management hierarchy.
It also covers incident reports from crisis management mechanism,
social responsibility compliance checks and case reports by our
legal department, whereby all important areas of compliance
are monitored.

The Group complied with all major aspects of laws and regulations
that are significant to our business operations. There were no
threatened or concluded cases of material nature in connection
with legal compliance during the year.

Internal audit

The internal audit function is responsible for making an independent
assessment on the Group's risk management and internal control
systems and reporting its findings to the Audit Committee.

Our internal audit department draws up annual audit plan to review
our major operational, financial, compliance and risk

management controls.

During the year, we teamed up with PricewaterhouseCoopers
(“PwC") to execute the audit plan to utilise respective expertise
and achieve better resources efficiency.

PwC focuses more on operational and compliance risks and
controls, such as logistics system, marketing management,
production and product development system which were reviewed
during the year.

Our internal auditors conduct the Financial Control Assessment and
Monitoring System (“FAMS") to monitor the Group's financial
statement controls, aiming to enhance the reliability of financial
reporting system.

Audit findings and control deficiencies are communicated between
the internal audit team and the management, who is responsible
for ensuring these deficiencies are rectified within a reasonable
period. Post-audit reviews are also performed to ensure the
remedial actions have been implemented.

The audit plan is designed based on risk assessment. Ad hoc
reviews may be arranged on top of the pre-set annual plan in case
of potential uncertainties raised by the management that require
internal auditors to attend to.
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We also monitor the Group’s POS audit programme which covers
all of our POS in Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau, allowing
cross-checking by skillful store management personnel between
different stores in order to assure the protection of inventories and
cash and operational compliance.

External assurance

External assurance on the Group’s financial statements is obtained
from the independent auditor. Their roles and opinion are included
in the section “Independent Auditor's Report” in this annual report.
For operational aspects, we engage independent experts from
respective profession to assure standards such as environmental
compliance, quality management of manufacturing activities,

product quality and safety.

We emphasise on close monitoring of our business activities,
which assures our products, our services and our practices to meet
the desired technical or quality standards in order to safeguard our
reputation and stay ahead in the industry.

Whistleblowing

This system provides a confidential channel for all employees to
raise concerns about fraud and other misconduct or improper
behaviour. We have put up posters at various staff corners to
promote the whistleblowing channel.

The chief whistleblowing officer is directly accountable to the Audit
Committee. The system is managed by a team of whistleblowing
officers appointed at the Group level. Their responsibilities include
case management, investigation on possible improprieties,
engagement with appropriate level of management for their
investigation findings and review of the progress of remedial
actions undertaken by the management.

Investigation results of cases involving fraudulent behaviour and
gross misconduct and relevant remedial measures are reported to
the Audit Committee and executive management for their
evaluation.

The aim of the whistleblowing system is to detect, rectify and
control weaknesses at the earliest stage. More importantly, this
system involves participation of all levels of staff, reinforcing our
determination in preserving an integrity culture within the
organisation.
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Directors’ Report
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The Board is pleased to present the annual report of the Company
together with the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for FY2018.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in the business of manufacturing and selling of
high-end luxury, mass luxury and youth line jewellery products,
including gem-set jewellery, gold products and platinum/karat gold
products, and distribution of various watch brands. The activities of
the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group's revenue is derived from business activities conducted in
Mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau and other markets. The segment
information of the Group's operation is set out in note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Results and Dividends

The results of the Group for FY2018 are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
on page 171.

The directors recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK15.0
cents per share and a special dividend of HK30.0 cents per share for
FY2018, amounting to approximately HK$4,500 million (FY2017: a final
dividend of HK10.0 cents per share and a special dividend of HK20.0
cents per share, totalling HK$3,000 million). Such payment of
dividends will be subject to the approval of shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held on
Thursday, 26 July 2018 and is payable to shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company at the close of
business on Thursday, 2 August 2018. Together with the interim
dividend of HK12.0 cents per share paid in December 2017, the total
distribution of dividend by the Company for FY2018 will be HK57.0
cents per share (FY2017: HK51.0 cents per share). The payment date
of the final and special dividends is expected to be on or about 15
August 2018.

BEEEMARE
A BB o

NEI2018 M FEF AL AEE LR

FEEH

ARBRREERAE - AEENTIEXBR/EENHEE
FERE IRKENFFER (BEREHEREH T
Em HE/KEER) UEkHHAK  TEMBARMN
EB BN A M IMKRMZES9 -

AEBWMEXBERATEAL - T8 RFIREMTIGE
TREBLRY - ARENFED BEMFENREBHRE
MiEES ©

FERIB
A B 2018 HTE R EMEBFINE 171 B A Ris
BEMRERGERR -

2018 B FEEFEZBRNER15.0BILRERERT
B 30.0 8l EFRIIE S - & 494,600 8B 7T (20178
R REIBUE SR 0.0l 5 5 Rl I 8 &% 200781l -
#H3,00088ETT) - KNZFHRSAFERERNRAS
M201847 A26 A (2MM) BITHMEERFBEFAS L
#tE - WM 20188 A2 B (E2HM) & %R A RE
FHNARARBRRBMHRRIENZFRE < ERER 2017
F12 AN T HAKEER12.080 - RAF 20188
IR 2 AT 0 IR B B AR R R B RLG7.008 1L (2017 T F E
F51.081L) - RE S KRR S @R B #ITEA A
20184 8 A 15 H=k A% °

Annual Report 2018 F %

149



150

Corporate Governance
TEER

Business Review

FY2018 was a year of recovery with encouraging development. The
retail market in Greater China has regained its upward momentum,
leading to a vibrant performance for the Group. In Mainland China and
Hong Kong and Macau, Same Store Sales Growth turnaround
commenced in 2HFY2017 and the recovery trend sustained into
FY2018. For the retail network management in Mainland China, a two-
pronged strategy shall be adopted to further the Group’s business
development in different tiers of cities. While the Group would remain
selective in openings in Tier | and Il cities, market penetration in lower
tier cities would be the priority.

The Group has embarked on the “Smart+ 2020" three-year strategic
work plan since FY2018 committing to delivering seamless
experiences to its customers in the long-term with five areas of focus:
(1) introducing more product offerings and innovations through the
multi-brand strategy; (2) enhancing in-store experiences and fostering
omni-channel retailing; (3) cultivating customer-led manufacturing
capabilities and versatile supply chain to reinforce a personalised
shopping journey; (4) investing in big data analytics to empower
insights for a more efficient operational model that can respond to
fast-changing consumer preferences; (5) inspiring an innovative and
entrepreneurial culture for talent development across the Group and
the jewellery industry as a whole.

A review of the Group's business and operations for the year as well
as a discussion on the likely future developments are provided
throughout this annual report, particularly in the following sections:

e “Chairman’s Statement”
e "“Managing Director’s Strategic Report”
* "Management Discussion and Analysis”

Further discussion on the Group's principal risks and uncertainties,
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations, environmental
policies and performance and key relationships with its stakeholders
are provided throughout this annual report, particularly in the following
sections:

* "Risk Management Report”

e "Board Governance”

e "Stakeholder Relations”

e "Corporate Management”

e "Sustainability Report”, which is available on our corporate website

Financial Summary

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 252.

Share Capital

Details of the Company's share capital are set out in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements. There is no movement in the share
capital during the year.
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Distributable Reserves

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 March 2018 amounted to
approximately HK$5,536 million (31 March 2017: HK$5,540 million).

Movements in reserves of the Group during the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 175.

Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the
laws of the Cayman Islands.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of
Listed Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company's listed securities during the year.

Directors

The directors during the year and up to the date of this annual
report are:

Executive Directors

Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry
Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent

Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian
Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy
Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton
Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong

Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter
Mr. Chan Hiu-Sang, Albert
Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby

Non-executive Director
Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Cheng Ming-Fun, Paul

Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor

Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon

Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey

Dr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond

In accordance with article 84 of the Articles, Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng,
Conroy, Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton, Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong, Mr.
Cheng Ming-Fun, Paul and Dr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond will retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the directors has a service contract with the Company or any
of its subsidiaries which is not determinable within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements and Contracts

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no transactions, arrangements
and contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which any of the Company’s subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or parent
companies was a party and in which a director of the Company or the
director’s connected party had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

Continuing Connected Transactions

The Group has certain ongoing transactions carried on with connected
persons with expected annual transaction amounts exceeding the “de
minimis” exemption threshold and therefore the Company reports
these non-exempt continuing connected transactions during FY2018
under the Listing Rules. These transactions are mainly related to lease
of premises and sale and purchase of goods and services. Information
about the connected persons is shown on page 155. Details of these
transactions are set out in the tables below.

Lease of premises ¥ &

Name of counterparties X 5 %75 &7 CTFE AREL%

EERZEEL
BEEERAATNRKEFNBARTLRAR—ERB
X HEMRE CEEMERIN) MR ORBA K -

EENX D KHRESHPIIER

BARFRAKEESI  ARBNHEBAR - ARHBAF
B R BIRFRSE AR - WHEET A E A EE
EBMEBEARARRESRESNHEALTRNETHE
BEA D (TREEIBER) RS ZHFEREHQ -

FHEREX S

ARBERBMEALRTETRS EHEEXEH
BRIEREKT - WAL AR L RAIE R 20188 B F
EANZSHREBENERD  REXPTEBMRNE
HEA R R E SRR - AHBEA TR
RE1B5E - REXRFEHINTE -

NWD 5ttt R 2R

NWDS #itt R B &

Main purposes of the leases Standalone retail shops,

industrial and office uses

Offices and standalone
retail shops in Hong Kong

Concessionaire counters
operated in department

in Hong Kong stores in Mainland China

HEFERE REBHNBILTEE RESORAERBUTEE RPERMEEAFRKZEE
TERBRRAERS

Master/framework agreement date 28/11/2011 11/4/2014 22/3/2012

A/ ERE A

Next renewal date 31/3/2020 30/6/2020 30/6/2020

TREEAH

Annual cap approved and actual amount incurred for FY2018 (HK$million)

2018 BFEMEHEFE FREREREESHE(BEET)

Annual cap 122 132 100

FEER

Amount incurred 67 103 74

EREESE

Annual cap approved for subsequent financial years (HK$million)

HEMBFENEIEFE ER(BEST)

FY2019 122 132 124

2019 TR &

FY2020 122 134 154

2020 A E

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EAEBHRELEEEGR QT



Sale and purchase of goods and services $5& & ¥ & & & M R%E

Name of counterparties X 5 %75 &%

Major types of goods and services

BmERBHEERER

Master/framework agreement date
Y =k

Next renewal date

TREZBE

Annual cap approved and actual amount incurred for FY2018 (HK$million)

NWCL 3 t 57 i B ith 2

Use of gift vouchers to
purchase goods in
our Group's POS and
settlement of respective
voucher value and rebates;
sale of gold products

EREAFNASEETTER
BEER  XAENEE
BAEERE
HEESEM

19/3/2013

30/6/2018*

2018 FENEHAFE ERIERFESH(BEETL)

Annual cap
FEER
Amount incurred

ERELSH

461

Annual cap approved for subsequent financial years (HK$million)

HEgMREENCeFE LR (BEET)

FY2019
2019 F fE
FY2020
2020 F A fE
FY2021
2021 FHFE

Note:

* As all the applicable percentage ratios (as defined under Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules) of the
transactions contemplated upon renewal of this agreement are, on an annual basis, less than 0.1%, the

renewed agreement commencing from 1 July 2018 will be fully exempt from the reporting,

N/A i

N/A i

N/A i

announcement and shareholders’ approval requirements.

These transactions are governed by respective master or framework
agreements which have an initial term of not more than 3 years and
will be renewed automatically for another 3 years upon expiry. The

NCE

Polishing, processing and
handling of gemstones
for the Group, and
provision of related
technology, related assets

and other ancillary services,

products and devices

REAEEBERW - TR
BRIR - RN -
R B EME AL E RS
EmRIA

29/1/2016

31/3/2021

240

60

208

236

245

Wi -

Directors’ Report
EZERE

KTL B8 m h

Licensing of intellectual
property rights in,
among other things,
cartoon characters to
the Group for production,
sale and marketing of
certain licensed products

MAKERE (KPaE)
KB A G MESERE -
HAEE  HERTSHRE
ATREER

29/4/2016

28/4/2019

57

21

73

N/A AN

N/A AN

Y OHARRBHREAREETNFERSMAEEMEOLE(FEER ETRAE
14.07 )RR 0.1% » A 20187 A1 RFAMMEEEREH 2 HERLE

THE  AERBRRIERTE o

RERHREFARERBHEAEE - M iBENT6FH
TEBHIF RN EEYDEEIF - REGFARIERDHE
et BB R T —EEE A BEN Lk -

initial agreement date and the next renewal date of these master or
framework agreements are set out in the tables above.

Annual Report 2018 F %

153



154

Corporate Governance
TEER

The Group’s pricing policy and internal control on
continuing connected transactions

The Company has entered into master agreements or framework
agreements to set out the principles governing the above continuing
connected transactions. The Group maintains a pricing policy which
serves as a guidance for the negotiation with counterparties regarding
the respective definitive agreements under the continuing connected

transaction arrangements of the Group.

(a)

For rental of premises, prevailing market rates around the time
of entering into the respective tenancy agreements will be
followed. The Group will obtain comparison from relevant
market information from the market or independent valuers and
with rental rates of premises in similar locations leased by
the Group.

For sale of goods and services, retail or wholesale prices (as the
case maybe) and discretionary discounts which the Group offers
or is willing to offer to independent customers around the time
of transaction will apply.

For purchase of goods, services and other assets, prevailing
market prices around the time of transaction will apply. The
Group will obtain quotations or tenders from independent third
parties for goods, services or assets with similarities to compare
with the prices and terms offered in the market, if there is no
sufficient comparable in the market, the Group will make
reference to the reasonable costs for developing or providing
such goods, services or assets plus a reasonable profit margin
that commensurates with industry practices.

The Group will monitor industry practices and market trends on a

regular basis to ensure the terms offered to the Group are either
equivalent to or better than the prevailing market prices.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EARBHKELEEEGR QT
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Relationships between Counterparties

Other than NCE and KTL, the other counterparties to the continuing
connected transactions mentioned above are connected persons of
the Company mainly due to direct or indirect shareholding held by the
Company’'s substantial shareholder, CTF Holding, in these
counterparties. Shareholding relationships among the Company, CTFE,
NWD, NWDS and NWCL are illustrated in the simplified chart below:

CTF Holding"

AXEEERRO

Directors’ Report

EEERE

B3 S ¥ B RIRA R

BANCE R AIBS M b < 5b - Dl ERIE R BV E MR 5
THERARROBEALT  TERARARAZERRAE
REZEREEREEFAERZEFIRE - A2F - AX
Bh¥ MHERAEE MHRATEENERPEMENR
PR ERR N TEEE

89.3% 100%
The Company CTFE®@
AT BRELRER
44.39%
74.99% 100%
NWDS® NWCL®
HERFE® it R B it E
Notes: B EE -

(1) Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited

(2)  Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited

(3)  New World Development Company Limited (stock code: 17)

(4)  New World Department Store China Limited (stock code: 825)

(6)  New World China Land Limited

(6) The approximate percentages of shareholding are shown for reference only to illustrate the
relationships between the connected parties. The information is sourced from the Disclosure of
Interests published on the Stock Exchange website as at the date of annual report, which however

may not be updated or correct.

New Cutting Edge Limited ("NCE") and its subsidiaries are majority-
controlled companies indirectly held by Mr. Cheng Kam-Chiu, Stewart,
who is a family member and therefore an associate of certain directors
of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As such, NCE
and its subsidiaries are connected persons of the Company.

KT Licensing Limited (“KTL"), through its holding companies, is in turn
owned as to 50% by the trustee of a trust established for the benefit
of the family members of Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor. Therefore, KTL
is an associate of a director of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. As such, KTL and its subsidiaries are connected persons
of the Company.

(1) AXEGER)BRAF

(2) BARBEEBRAF

() HMUERFEREWRAF(BRMHAK :17)

(4) FERFETRBERQE (B KR - 825)

(5) ¥t APBEBERRAF

(6) BARBREALLEHRSE  USARMESTNRE - ZANREBEFRAS
XA E TR REARE  ROERABE -

New Cutting Edge Limited ([NCE ) & E /@A 72 HE
BUEFENHBSRBLEHESENGZHIEHED
AR ERETRAUFUAERT  BLERPBENES
BEEA - Bt NCERHWBARRAAAMBEEAL

MEsmEARAR ([MEmE]) BBEER AR HIASE
BB RIEK B MM R ZAEFENZ AR A0 % E o
Hit - REBELTRVEV4AE  FBREREARF —RE
EMBBA - MUt MIBMERENE AR AR ERE
Ate
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Annual review of the continuing connected transactions
At the end of each financial year, the management will prepare a
summary of the pricing and other relevant terms of those non-exempt
continuing connected transactions for the review of the Executive
Committee to ensure that those transactions are entered into in the
ordinary and usual course of business, on normal commercial terms or
better and in accordance with the relevant agreements on terms
which are fair and reasonable. Our internal audit team will further
select samples from those transactions and compare them with
similar types of transactions entered into by the Group with
independent third parties during that financial year.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company has
engaged the Company's auditor to perform certain review procedures
in order to report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued his unqualified
letter in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by
the Group in this annual report in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

The results of the review procedures performed by each of the
Executive Committee, the internal audit team and the auditor of the
Company were reported to the independent non-executive directors in
the Audit Committee meeting. After review by the Audit Committee,
the independent non-executive directors confirmed that the continuing
connected transactions were entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group; (ii) either on normal commercial
terms or better; and (iii) according to the relevant agreements
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Announcements were published regarding the Group's non-exempt
continuing connected transactions. The directors confirm that the
Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in so far as they are
applicable.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited FEAXBHKEEEEGR A
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Related Party Transactions

The significant related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year set out in note 38 to the financial statements include
transactions that constitute connected transactions and continuing
connected transactions for which the disclosure requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules have been complied with.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, less than 30.0% of the Group’'s revenue was
attributed to the Group's five largest customers. Besides, 64.2% of
the Group's total purchases were attributed to the Group's five largest
suppliers and 46.1% of the Group's total purchases were attributed to
the Group's largest supplier. To the best of the directors’ knowledge,
none of the directors, their respective close associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules) and any shareholder who to the knowledge of the
directors owned more than 5% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at 31 March 2018 held any interest in any of the five
largest suppliers or customers of the Group.

Directors’ Interests in the Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures of the Company

As at 31 March 2018, the interests and short positions of the directors
and the chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which have
been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the
register required to be kept pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were as
follows:

Long position in shares

Directors’ Report
EZERE

BN LR 5
AREBNRAFELNERRBE A LR ZEN T HRKHM
38 BEBNEE /HERERSINRS  MAKEE
MZERXFET ETRANF14ATHRERE -

TEBEEMNMIER

FR AEBIN00%LEBREAEBRREAER -
AN REBAARIERE 64 2% KEAEB A AMER - M
NEBEHIRETFRIG. 1% KEAEB R AEER - BESAT
A R2018F3A3TA  HEES HELAZTHEA
(EER TR LEFNERAERNRTDEITRAEY
N EMARMBREREAEERAHEENBERTNEW

W%

Em ©

EERAATNRG - HERG REHE
aE HOHE R
R2018E3A31 B - ARAEERSEBITRABRKAR
S E LA ABEAE (GE3 R 5 R R DI F XV ) M
9 - ABIR BB - A RIRE S BB XV
WETRESH WD MBAL A RBZ R RAR - 5
RENREEF RS RIS R ATEENER
T Pomias kR - SRR TR AIHER 10 FralayimgE
BB AL REA RS AR

RIRGBEFE

Number of shares Approximate

RHEE % of
Personal Spouse Corporate shareholding
interests interests interests Total AR
18 AR (AR g EEER A&t Bk

The Company (ordinary shares AT (EREE

of HK$1 each) 1BTHEER)

Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent ERAESAE 12,000 12,000 0.0%
Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian =M iE 1 20,0007 20,000 0.0%
Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton ELRER S 4,800 4,800 0.0%
Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong Rt S 5 A 12,000 12,000 0.0%
Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter [t e 3,600 3,600 0.0%
Mr. Chan Hiu-Sang, Albert BRI A S A 12,000 12,000 0.0%
Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby BikB%E 12,000 12,000 0.0%

Note:
(1) These shares are beneficially owned by a company, which in turn is wholly-owned by Dr. Cheng Chi-

Kong, Adrian

M3 :
(1) ZEBROMBTABL2EAREO—RARAERES
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in
Securities

As at 31 March 2018, the following persons (not being directors or
chief executives of the Company) had the following interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the
SFO:

Long position in shares

FERRNESFHER
M201843 4318 - RIEEH RIK EHIF 336 AT E

NBERMARENAT AL (AR TDEEHREHITHA
B) s AR R M RARRR D OOk R T

RiRBEFE

Number of shares Approximate

R A % of

Beneficial Corporate shareholding

Name interests interests Total BWOER
g BEEER EEER &5 BOk
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited 8,933,937,400  8,933,937,400 89.3%
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings II) Limited 8,933,937,400  8,933,937,400 89.3%
Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited 8,933,937,400  8,933,937,400 89.3%
Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited AXEGER)BRAR 8,933,937,400 8,933,937,400 89.3%

Note: Pitsr -

As at 31 March 2018, Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited and Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings II)
Limited held approximately 49.0% and 46.7% interest in Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited respectively, which
in turn held an approximately 81.0% interest in Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited and accordingly each of
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited, Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings ) Limited and Chow Tai Fook
Capital Limited is deemed to have an interest in the shares of the Company held by Chow Tai Fook (Holding)
Limited. Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited held 8,933,937,400 shares of the Company directly as at
31 March 2018.

Share Option Scheme

A share option scheme (the “Scheme") was adopted pursuant to a
shareholders’ written resolution of the Company passed on 17
November 2011. No options have been granted, exercised or
cancelled under the Scheme since its adoption up to the date of this
annual report.

The purpose of the Scheme is to attract skilled and experienced
personnel, incentivise them to remain with the Group and motivate
them to strive for the future development and expansion of the Group
by providing them with the opportunity to acquire equity interests in
the Company. The Board may, at its discretion, grant options pursuant
to the Scheme to the directors of the Company (including executive
directors, non-executive directors and independent non-executive
directors), the directors of the Company's subsidiaries and employees
of the Group and any other persons (including consultants or advisers)
whom the Board considers, in its absolute discretion, have contributed
or will contribute to the Group.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EAEBHRELEEEGR QT

7201843 A31H * Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited % Cheng Yu
Tung Family (Holdings ) Limited & B4 Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited % Bll#f
B#49.0% [ 46.7% ##25 » i Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited 8|7 & A& (325 )
ARARIFAE#81.0%#% - E It Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited -
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings Il) Limited }2 Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited
WRBREAKRE (ZR)BERRFRAFARRRM P EEER - MAKEGER)BR
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The total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted pursuant to the Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company shall not exceed 10% of the shares of the Company
in issue on the Company's listing date of 15 December 2011, being
1,000,000,000 shares (“Scheme Mandate Limit”), which represented
10% of the shares of the Company as at the date of this annual report.
The Company may renew the Scheme Mandate Limit with
shareholders’ approval provided that each such renewal may not
exceed 10% of the shares in the Company in issue as at the date of
the shareholders’ approval.

The maximum number of shares underlying all outstanding options
which have been granted and have yet to be exercised pursuant to the
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company shall
not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to time.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company in the manner as
set out in the Scheme, the maximum number of shares underlying the
options granted to each eligible participant (including both exercised
and outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed
1.0% of the shares of the Company in issue for the time being.

The period during which an option may be exercised by a grantee (the
"Option Period”) shall be determined and notified by the Board to the
grantee at the time of such grant, which shall not expire later than 10
years from the grant date.

Subject to any restrictions applicable under the Listing Rules, an option
may be exercised in whole or in part by the grantee at any time during
the Option Period in accordance with the terms of the Scheme and
the terms on which the option was granted.

No amount is payable by the grantee upon acceptance of an option.

The exercise price shall be determined by the Board but in any event
shall not be less than the highest of: (a) the closing price of the shares
as stated in the daily quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange
on the grant date, which must be a business day; (b) the average
closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets
issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the grant date; and (c) the nominal value of the shares.

The Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years after the date
of conditional adoption, i.e. 17 November 2011.
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Permitted Indemnity Provision

The Company’s Articles provides that every director is entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets and profits of the Company against all
losses, damages and liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or
about the execution of duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation
thereto provided that such indemnity shall not extend to any matter in
respect of fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any director.

The Company has taken out and maintained directors’ liability
insurance throughout the year, which provides appropriate cover for
the directors.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

Donations

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to approximately HK$8.3 million (FY2017: HK$10.8 million).

Events after the Reporting Period

There is no material subsequent event undertaken by the Company or
by the Group after 31 March 2018 and up to the date of this
annual report.
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Auditor

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been audited
by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, who will retire and will not offer
themselves for re- appointment at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu has been holding office as the independent
auditor of the Company since the incorporation of the Company in
2011. The Board is of the view that, as a good corporate governance
measure, the Company should consider rotation of its auditor after an
appropriate period of time. The Board therefore proposes not to re-
appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the auditor of the Company
upon expiration of its current term of office with effect from the close
of the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held
on 26 July 2018.

The Board resolved, with the recommendation from the Audit
Committee of the Company, to propose the appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the new independent auditor of the
Company following the retirement of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu,
subject to the approval of shareholders of the Company at the annual
general meeting.

The Company has received a confirmation letter dated 7 June 2018
from Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu confirming that there are no matters
in relation to its retirement that need to be brought to the attention of
the shareholders. The Board has also confirmed that there are no
other matters in relation to the proposed change of auditor that need
to be brought to the attention of the shareholders.

The Board would like to take this opportunity to express its sincere
gratitude to Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu for their professional services

and support in the past.

On behalf of the Board

Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry
Chairman

Hong Kong, 7 June 2018
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B2 AR S

Deloitte.

TO THE MEMBERS OF

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
AREHREEEERAF

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chow Tai
Fook Jewellery Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 171 to 251,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 March 2018, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing (“ISAs”) issued by the IASB. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
LR R SR

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a

PSR EIH

MREH EERRERMOBELE - RAYAREAH
BRROBHRAEENEE - BLFHRERMBEHE
BEAVKBRREATRSRITERN - RATEYE
EEFRHEEBHER -

whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter
BRETER

Existence and valuation of inventories

FEZHFEMRIGE

We identified existence and valuation of inventories as a key
audit matter due to the significance of the balance to the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, combined with the
judgements associated with determining the amount of
allowances on inventories and the inherent risk of loss from theft
or dishonest intent due to the high intrinsic value and portable
nature of individual inventory items.

As at 31 March 2018, the carrying amount of inventories was
HK$34,929.4 million. The management of the Group determined
that allowances on inventories were recognised in profit or loss
amounting to HK$207.7 million during the year ended 31 March
2018.

BZRHRILEEZFEERGEERBRENSFH AAEEHRSRY
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNSANAHEREASHRETRE

Our procedures in relation to the existence and valuation of
inventories included:

Understanding and assessing the effectiveness of the Group's
internal controls over inventory;

Conducting surprised and random physical counts at various
points of sale ("POS") of the Group throughout the year;

Inspecting daily physical count reports and the reconciliation to
daily ending inventories record in the inventory system, on a
sample basis;

Attending the annual physical inventory count at year end date
at selected POS, manufacturing facilities and distribution centres
of the Group;

Understanding how management identifies slow-moving
inventories and the amount of allowances required, and
management’s process in monitoring the quality of the work of
the independent professional gemologist appointed;
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key audit matter
BRETER

Existence and valuation of inventories

FREZHFEMRIGE

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements,
in estimating the amount of allowances on inventories, it is the
Group's policy to review the net realisable value of inventories
periodically with reference to current market situation and
conditions of the items. The Group’s management reviewed, on
a regular basis, the suitability of its inventory allowance policy
and has applied the policy consistently. The Group's
management also reviewed, on a regular basis, the inventory age
listing to identify any slow-moving inventories and estimated the
amount of allowances primarily based on the pricing policy and
strategies and the historical experience in selling goods of similar
nature. The Group also engaged an independent professional
gemologist to perform valuation and assess the conditions of
certain items based on gemstone testing for gem-set jewellery
with reference to international diamond prices, its expertise and
the current market situation.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNENAHEREASRETRE

Assessing the appropriateness of allowances on inventories
made by the management and the accuracy of the net
realisable value by comparing the subsequent selling prices of
similar products to their carrying amounts, on a sample basis;

Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the
independent professional gemologist and obtaining an
understanding of the scope of work and their terms
of engagement;

Evaluating the appropriateness of the valuation prepared by the
independent professional gemologist with reference to
international diamond price references for selected gem-set
jewellery products and market research reports on jewellery
industry, on a sample basis;

Checking the accuracy of the inventory age listing, on a sample
basis, by tracing to the invoices and delivery documents; and

Evaluating the historical accuracy of allowances on inventories
assessed by the management by comparing the actual loss to
historical allowances recognised.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
LR R SR

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key audit matter
BRETER

Valuation of jewellery collectibles

HKEDHEMGE

We identified valuation of jewellery collectibles as a key audit
matter due to significance of the balance to the consolidated
financial statements as a whole and the significant estimation
associated with determining the valuation of jewellery
collectibles. As at 31 March 2018, the carrying amount of
jewellery collectibles was HK$1,520.1 million.

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements,
the jewellery collectibles were those unique treasures with
extremely high-value considered by the Group and were
designated not for sale. In estimating the valuation of jewellery
collectibles, it is the Group’s policy to review the conditions of
items by internal gemologist and assess the recoverable amount
periodically with reference to international diamond prices and
market research reports on jewellery industry. The Group's
management reviewed on a regular basis if there was impairment
indicator and estimated the recoverable amount if necessary. The
Group also engaged an independent professional gemologist to
perform valuation and assess the conditions of items based on
gemstone testing for gem-set jewellery with reference to
international diamond prices, its expertise and the current
market situation.
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RASEEETEIE o

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNENAHEREASRETRE

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of jewellery collectibles
included:

e Understanding how and when the jewellery was determined
as jewellery collectibles by the Group’s management, and how
the Group identified the impairment indicator and involvement
of independent professional gemologist appointed by the
Group to assess the conditions and valuation of jewellery
collectibles;

e Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the
independent professional gemologist and obtaining an
understanding of the scope of work and their terms of
engagement;

e Evaluating the appropriateness of the valuation prepared by the
independent professional gemologist with reference to
international diamond price references and market research
reports on jewellery industry; and

e Checking the accuracy of the acquisition costs of or carrying
value upon the designation to jewellery collectibles by tracing
to relevant source documents.
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those
Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
LR R SR

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e QObtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EARBHKELEEEGR QT
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that

we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
LR R SR

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor’'s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Tang Ying Cheung, Eric.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

7 June 2018

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EARBHKELEEEGR QT
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and

Other Comprehensive Income
SeBEmkEMEEREER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z= 201843 A 31 B ILFE

Revenue
Cost of goods sold

Gross profit

Other income

Selling and distribution costs
General and administrative expenses
Other gains and losses

Other expenses

Share of results of associates
Interest income

Finance costs

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive (expense) income:

Item that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss:

— remeasurement of defined benefit scheme

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to & rjt & EF P EZEmEH -

profit or loss:

— exchange differences arising on translation

of foreign operations

— share of translation reserve of associates

Other comprehensive income (expense)

for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Hip A

HHE KD HK A
—RRRATHR X
Hiplas RE1E
Hitbfix
DIEBERNB 2 EE
FEWA

BB A

BRBE AR R
PR

FRERF

Hitb 2w (Bs2) st :
TEEN S EERmA)
HA -

— ENETEEEENE

— BRESRINEIEEL

ZIER ZR

— HREE DR B EE

FEHME2ERES (%)

FERHKHEAHE

Notes

BE

2018

HK$ million
BEAET
59,156.4
(42,943.0)

16,213.4
407.9

(8,238.7)

(2,681.6)
342.4
(48.1)

80.3
(243.7)

5,831.9
(1,628.6)

4,203.3

(5.4)

1,814.9

1,814.9

1,809.5

6,012.8

2017
HK$ million
BEATT

51,2455
(36,282.8)

14,962.7
329.5
(8,011.3)
(2,296.0)
(285.8)
(214.5)
(9.6)
140.0
(236.6)

4,378.4
(1,227.3)

3,151.1

15.8

(1,094.6)
1.9

(1,092.7)

(1,076.9)

2,074.2
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

FEEERAEMEERER

2018 2017
Note HK$ million HK$ million
B 5 BEAET HEBT
Profit for the year attributable to: UTE&FEEFERR :
Shareholders of the Company RN AR 4,094.9 3,055.3
Non-controlling interests TR 108.4 95.8
4,203.3 3,151.1
Total comprehensive income for the year DATFEFEAFEFEZARKE
attributable to: o
Shareholders of the Company /NI 5,834.8 2,030.1
Non-controlling interests FEIE RS 178.0 441
6,012.8 2,074.2
Earnings per share — Basic BRER — ER 12 HK40.9 cents &1l | HK30.6 cents /&1l

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EAEBHRELEEEGR QT



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
y= A g

wh A ,\jﬁ%ﬂﬁjﬂ;%‘%

At 31 March 2018 % 201843 A 31 H

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Land use rights

Investment properties

Goodwill

Other intangible assets

Jewellery collectibles

Deposits paid for acquisition of
property, plant and equipment

Interests in associates

Amounts due from associates

Loan receivables

Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Loan receivables

Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders

of subsidiaries
Taxation payable
Bank borrowings
Gold loans

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

FRBEE

M - BE RR
T {sE R
EE=LYES
mE
Hit B\ AE
KELR
BEME  BELRE
EffiEe
REE AR 2=
B Y Hgh i X R SRR
e B SR
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B 5 N EMmERRIEA
e E TR
RITHEBERE

RBRE

B 5 REMENRE

FEAS BT X RI SRR AR

RIE
FEfIHIR
RITER
BEeEE

RBEEFHE

REERRBRE

Notes

BE

14
15
16
17
18
19

20
20
21
22

23
24
21
25

26

27

28
29

2018
HK$ million
BEAET

5,340.7
189.8
2335
257.8
306.4

1,520.1

27.6

62.2
26.9
293.1

8,258.1
34,929.4
6,410.0

28.4
7,944.0

49,311.8

8,358.6

100.5
1,101.5
5,823.0
5,335.4

20,719.0

28,592.8

36,850.9

2017
HK$ million
BEATT

4,666.3
184.9
250.0
257.8
356.3
967.1

52.7

19.7
65.9
312.7

7,133.4

29,259.3
5,057.3
8.5
7,943.4

42,268.5

5,693.4

89.9
596.4
6,192.5
3,215.9

15,788.1
26,480.4

33,613.8
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

FE BT R
2018 2017
Notes HK$ million HK$ million
Mt e HEBT HEBT
Non-current liabilities kRBERE

Bank borrowings RITER 28 2,100.0 600.0
Retirement benefit obligations RIRAE T A 36 232.2 226.6
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEAE 22 421.1 285.7
2,753.3 1,112.3
Net assets EEFE 34,097.6 32,501.5
Share capital ;& 30 10,000.0 10,000.0
Reserves % 23,423.4 21,798.8

Equity attributable to shareholders of RATRREGERS
the Company 33,423.4 31,798.8
Non-controlling interests FEIERER 674.2 702.7
34,097.6 32,501.5

The consolidated financial statements on pages 171 to 251 were ZEETR2018FA7TE M ETRETIZHNE171E
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 7 June 251 BV GA M EHE WHUTRESZS
2018 and are signed on its behalf by:

Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton
BRRAEL BERERE ERIRER e
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

BFE BFE BFE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

= A EE £ 44
RAERZEER
For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z= 201843 A31 HILF/E

Attributable to
Statutory shareholders Non-
Share Share Special surplus Translation Retained of the controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve profits Company interests Total
Bx R RE BRI EERH BERE REEN ADIRRELE  FERER @it
HKS million HKS million HKS million ~ HKS million HKS million ~ HKS million HKS million ~ HKS million HKS million
BEAT BERT BEAT L BEAT L BEAT L BEAT
(note a) (note b)
(W) (f&Eb)
At 1 April 2016 201654518 10,000.0 5498.7 24995 791.9 495.0 15,6192 34,9043 8456 357499
Profit for the year EEET - - - - - 3,055.3 3,055.3 9.8 3,151.1
Other comprehensive (expense)  FEEM2E (%)
income for the year - - - - (1,041.0) 15.8 (1,025.2) (51.7) (1,076.9)
Total comprehensive (expense) FERE (BRI
income for the year ot - - - - (1,041.0) 3,071.1 2,030.1 4.1 2,074.2
Acquisitions of additional WERHB AR
interests in subsidiaries BIMER - - - - (2.5) (33.1) (35.6) 28.0 (7.6)
Capital reduction in respect of AR—RWB AR
non-controlling interest in SRR 2 R
a subsidiary - - - - - - - (13.9) (13.9)
Deregistration of subsidiaries SHNBAR - - - (21.4) 0.1 213 - (153.6) (153.6)
Transfers feacd - - - 1754 - (175.4) - - -
Dividends 8] - - - - - (5,100.0) (5,100.0) (47.5) (5,147.5)
At 31 March 2017 R2017463 318 10,000.0 5,498.7 2,4995 945.9 (5484) 13,4031 31,798.8 7027 325015
Profit for the year EFEF - - - - - 4,094.9 4,094.9 108.4 4,203.3
Other comprehensive income FEAMRZENRS (BX)
(expense) for the year - - - - 1,745.3 (5.4) 1,739.9 69.6 1,809.5
Total comprehensive income FEXANREE
for the year - - - - 1,745.3 4,089.5 5,834.8 178.0 6,012.8
Acquisitions of additional interests [ —F B
from a non-controlling SRR E
shareholder of a subsidiary BIMER - - - 10.0 (17.1) (2.8) (9.9) (50.0) (59.9)
Capital contribution from —FHBRT
a non-controlling shareholder FERBRLE
of a subsidiary - - - - - - - 15 15
Deregistration of subsidiaries B - - - (22.0) (3.0) 24.7 (03) (107.7) (108.0)
Transfers EER - - - 275.1 - (275.1) - - -
Dividends 8! = = = = = (4,200.0)  (4,200.0) (60.3)  (4,260.3)
At 31 March 2018 R2018453A31H 10,000.0 5,498.7 2,4995 1,209.0 1,176.8 13,0394 334234 6742  34,097.6
Notes: B

(a)

(b)

Special reserve represents (i) the accumulated contribution from the Macau jewellery business and (i)

the difference between the nominal value of the shares of various subsidiaries under common control,

and cash consideration payable arising from acquisition of these subsidiaries under common control

pursuant to the group reorganisation in 2011.

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for foreign investment enterprises in Mainland China,

the Company’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are required to maintain a statutory surplus reserve fund.

Appropriation to such reserve is made out of net profit after taxation as reflected in the statutory

financial statements of the subsidiaries in Mainland China in accordance with the relevant laws and

regulations applicable to enterprises in Mainland China. The statutory surplus reserve fund can be used

to make up prior year losses, if any, and can be applied in conversion into capital by means of

capitalisation issue.

(a) FHRUEEME()VRPIREES 2 R EM R () 2 ERERFZEH T EHERR
MRHEEERE201 FREZAFKERFRZH THEARNEIIZ2RE
REZEE-

(b) =BT EAMINECENBRER AR - AR TN EALHE R REF
BEXERMREEES - AR ZRIIIRE b E AR A R E M R
®(REHEAMEEEROAMEEERRE) AENBRBRRETIFR - &
ERBEEBESTANEHBTFEOER(WNE) YA NBRMBEITZTRA
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z= 201843 A31 HILF/E

2018 2017
HK$ million HK$ million
BEAET BEATT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEH
Profit before taxation BRFR Al 5,831.9 4,378.4
Adjustments for: BTOSEEL AR
Interest income FLEWA (80.3) (140.0)
Interest expenses FEFAZ 243.7 236.6
Allowances for doubtful debts HERAEE 18.3 3.7
Allowances on inventories }féj‘ﬁ{% 207.7 39.8
Fair value change of gold loans SEENAFEE 35.3 (107.2)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment fm% R MR EITE 806.6 788.8
Depreciation of investment properties BEYETE 14.3 14.4
Amortisation of land use rights -+ 3 {5 PR A 6 14.3 14.0
Amortisation of other intangible assets H bR E N 49.9 51.2
Share of results of associates DB AT Z R = 9.6
Impairment loss of interest in an associate —REE AR 2 RERE = 32.0
Impairment loss of amount due from an associate — FEY—SRE# & A R 08 2 REE 1B - 79.6
Impairment loss of amount due from a joint venture B —FR A& ETKIE ZREEE - 52.3
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment  HEWE « HE MR ERER 71 10.3
Provision for defined benefit obligations TE RR R @ R R IE RS 8.4 7.4
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes in EREFFHHANALBIMEHITE
intercompany balances (278.6) 231.0
Operating cash flows before movements in EBEESHPHIZKERERE
working capital 6,878.6 5,701.9
(Increase) decrease in inventories FEUEm) R (4,260.0) 598.5
Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 R H h FEYCRIERE (907.6) (753.9)
Increase in trade and other payables B 2 R E A fE A FR B 0 2,149.9 1,615.4
Defined benefits paid BN EBERAEF (8.2) (8.4)
Cash generated from operations REFTSIRE 3,852.7 7,163.5
Interest received B2 13.1 17.7
Income tax paid EFEH
Hong Kong Profits Tax EBENER (70.9) (1.2)
Enterprise Income Tax and withholding tax in AR A 1 2E AT S A M TR R
Mainland China (901.1) (855.9)
Macau complementary tax BPIFTIS TR (41.8) (61.8)
Taxation in other jurisdictions HEEpEE 2 FIA (0.9) (0.7
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETEMBRELER 2,851.1 6,251.6

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EARBHKELEEEGR QT




INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest received

Repayment of loan to the Group

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Deposits paid for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Purchase of jewellery collectibles

Loan advanced by the Group

Advances to associates

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Interest paid

Bank borrowings raised

Repayment of bank borrowings

Capital contribution from a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary

Payment for capital reduction to non-controlling
shareholders of a subsidiary

Distribution received from deregistration of
subsidiaries

Dividends paid

Gold loans raised

Repayment of gold loans

Acquisition of additional interest from
non-controlling interest

Advance from non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries

Repayment to non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

REEH

RENEISE
EEETAREZER
BEME  BERRB

BEME  BERRBCOHERS

HEME  BEREERERE
BERELRE
NEEDBNER
EETNGIEEA
RETHFMARSTFE
BEEE
EH?‘T‘ 12

ERITEK

1@Lf§ﬁf§%’¢\
—RMBREIIEERKRR L E
SRR T — KRB AR
FEIERR AR R
M B A Rl 2 2R

EHH&‘Q

ﬁ ;‘ET Hx%&muﬁzﬂ%m BAYME S

KB B A B IR AR AR R A 25K

=

B8 T M B A RIF AR

MEZBDRAARESER

BRERRELENRD FHR

FOANRERREEEY

% B0

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF 4kt & B &5 (EY) -

THE YEAR, REPRESENTED BY BANK BALANCES

AND CASH

BRITHESB RS

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

2018
HK$ million
BEAET

67.2

24.1
(1,057.8)
(26.6)

13.0
(553.0)

(1.5)
(42.5)

(1,577.1)

(244.6)
5,667.9
(4,566.1)

115

(108.0)
(4,260.3)
19,153.4

(17,348.1)
(59.9)

0.9

(1,753.3)

(479.3)

7,943.4

479.9

7,944.0

FERERER

2017
HK$ million
BEATT

122.3
5.7
(835.1)

(26.8)
6.4
(378.3)

(21.6)
(19.7)

(1,147.1)

(250.7)
5,665.1
(6,767.1)

(13.9)
(163.6)
(5,147.5)
15,899.4
(18,922.2)

(7.6)

(62.9)

(9,771.0)

(4,666.5)

13,001.4

(391.5)

7,943.4
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RS R R M R

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #2018 3 A31 HILFE

1. General

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited (the “Company”, and its
subsidiaries collectively referred to as the “Group”) was incorporated
as an exempted company in the Cayman Islands with limited liability
under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands on 20 July 2011. Its
shares were listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited since 15 December 2011. Its immediate holding
company is Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited, and its ultimate holding
company is Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited, both are incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands (“BVI").

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note
39. The address of registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The
address of principal place of business is 33/F, New World Tower, 16-
18 Queen's Road Central, Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$"), which is same as the functional currency of the
Company.

2. Application of New and Revised
International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”)

Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective for

the current year

The Group has applied the following amendments to IFRSs which are

effective for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to IAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to IAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses

As part of the Annual Improvements to
IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to IFRS 12

Except as described below, the application of the amendments to
IFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial performance and positions for the current and prior years and/
or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EARBHKELEEEGR QT

1. —&&EH

BARBEHREEEERAR([ARR] - BENE A RGE AR
FEDR201ME7 A20 ARBEHERERARERFEHSE
Atk mEREERAT - ER{HBE2011F12415H
HERBEBHERZMBRARER LT - EEEERA
7] 7% Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited - H & #4E ik A 7]
/& Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited * FIZR A a7 & & 4
R A SR Ak

RARAREERAR  MEFEWB AR EEBHRLM
FE39 ¢ AN N Al 5 it 9F F & b 4k & Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-
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2. RENHE] REET IR R EER

RAFERH AR ERMBREENIETE

AR B AR R T 5 B e BB B 7 4R 2 )
fERTA

B ERE 75 (BT A) WISl

RERTEAIE 12557 AR ERER
(EETA) ELERIAE E
BRI EmEERE 125 2014522016 FBHZ
CHEN) BRI 15 i 5 2R A S 2
BCER) R

BTt SN - IRAFE R L5 B B 7 3 s £ RS
FIANE R E SR FE AR B 2 W5 EE RSB AOR
R/ SRZEGEVBBRBI 2 BBERLEEREX

=
T



2. Application of New and Revised
International Financial Reporting
Standards (”IFRSS") (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 7 “Disclosure Initiative”

The Group has applied these amendments for the first time in the
current year. The amendments require an entity to provide disclosures
that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. In addition, the amendments also require disclosures
on changes in financial assets if cash flows from those financial assets
were, or future cash flows will be included in cash flows from
financing activities.

Specifically, the amendments require the following to be disclosed: (i)
changes from financing cash flows; (ii) changes arising from obtaining
or losing control of subsidiaries or other businesses; (iii) the effect of
changes in foreign exchange rates; (iv) changes in fair values; and (v)
other changes.

A reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of these
items is provided in note 35. Consistent with the transition provisions
of the amendments, the Group has not disclosed comparative
information for the prior year. Apart from the additional disclosure in
note 35, the application of these amendments has had no impact on
the Group's consolidated financial statements.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBmRMEE

2. RENHE] REETEIIRM R EER

(58)

EIPRE = RIS 75k (18T ) KTt 211
REBPRAFEEREAUFER - ZFETERETER
HEEER - EUBRREAEERTEREEDEEDN
BEEY BRERSNMIFRSEEH - W WEHSZ SR
BEMRESREIEROBERER T ARETHNRE
mE - BN EERI N ERERCREENE

ABTE  BTETHBATEE  (REBLRENE
B © ) RS Sk E A 7%E@%ﬁm%ﬂ%ﬁéi
RD) ; (i) EXRBHYE  (MATEED  R0HEE
28 -

BRZERE B MRS 2 HRENEESD - REE
FAIAZBEMRN  AREEY B EESFOLRER - KR
FESLEVERIMNERS - [EMR SR BH AR H G M
WREKTE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBMRME

2. Application of New and Revised

International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs") (continuea)

New and revised IFRSs issued but not yet effective

2. RENHE] REETEIIRM R EER

(58)

E 08 i 18 [ R A& 3 2 FiET R & A& 5T B PR BA B 4R

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised IFRSs

that have been issued but are not yet effective:

IFRS 9
IFRS 15

IFRS 16
IFRS 17
IFRIC 22

IFRIC 23
Amendments to IFRS 2

Amendments to IFRS 4

Amendments to IFRS 9

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

Amendments to IAS 19

Amendments to IAS 28

Amendments to IAS 28

Amendments to IAS 40

Amendments to IFRSs

Financial Instruments"

Revenue from Contracts with Customers
and the related Amendments™

Leases?

Insurance Contracts®”

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration'™

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments®?

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions!

Applying IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”
with IFRS 4 “Insurance Contracts”"

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation®?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture®

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement®

Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures®?

As part of the Annual Improvements to
IFRS Standards 2014-2016 Cycle™

Transfers of Investment Property"

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards
2015-2017 Cycle?

HEA

AEE I ARIRF M T EEME 8 R ERA R REE

7 BIRR M A s A

B B 765 i 5 2E BI85 9 5% SRTAM
BB B 75 i 5 X2 BII 28 15 5% SRl eSS
HEREAEET O
BB B 745 S 5 A2 BII 28 16 9% Gk
Xﬁﬁ%iﬁi‘;&ﬁllmﬁ?ﬁ Riga4@
BB REREAS HNERZ SFITEN KRB
%22%
BRI s mERBAEE 235 MEHEE 2 TMEE LD
BB B 75 5 M2 RIS 2 5% LARR D BT S8
(ERT7A) REZDERGFEM
BB B 5 R 5 AR RIS 4 5% T BB B 75 i 25 AR B
(EFTA) FAHETRBEN]T
JiE FA BRI B 75 i 5 2
A9 [T A
BB B 75 5 M2 RI S8 9 5% EBAMEZRAENR
(ERT7A) FEL@
*‘Hﬁ%iﬁi‘;&@ﬂmmﬁf& & & o B HB B
BURS & 5T 4RI 2 28 5% AELEZMEN
({bETZJS) BEHEITE
BIFR & at R 19557 STEIER - BIRsiEE @
CCHEN)
BB & 5T 4RI % 28 5% REERRIAEREY
(BETA) REER?
et 2E RIS 2857 ER2014 52016 5
(EFTA) AE 2 BB R £
Bl Z B — 3B O
BB & 5T 2RI 2 40 5% ERIREED
(f&3TA)
BIRREA TSR E MR (BRI AN) 20165 E 2017 FBH 2
I 5 B 765 e o E R
FEHE?

U

@

@

@

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.
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2. Application of New and Revised
International Financial Reporting
Standards (”IFRSS") (Continued)

IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

IFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities, general hedge
accounting and impairment requirements for financial assets.

Key requirements of IFRS 9 which are relevant to the Group are:

e all recognised financial assets that are within the scope of IFRS 9
are required to be subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair
value. Specifically, debt investments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and
that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding are generally
measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. All other debt investments are measured at their fair value
at the end of subsequent accounting periods.

e with regard to the measurement of financial liabilities designated as
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), IFRS 9 requires that
the amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is
attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented
in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the
effects of changes in the liability's credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a
financial liability’s credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to
profit or loss. Under IAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the
fair value of the financial liability designated as FVTPL is presented
in profit or loss.

2.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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RANFE] RAEIE 5T B PR A4 5 4R &5 2 A
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EPREA R EEAE R (&R T A
B S REEAF ORI NE RS RAE - SRHAE  —
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BB HRELERFEOREAAREEBH I IBRER

REBRFBREERNEITBENZAEEERSHE
EHRARBHRASIATETE BRI REERE
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BeREAXNHEABEAS REANBRBAZEBKKRE
— MR EES T AR A RS IRE KRG E - TEHM
EBRENRES T HRERFRATENE -

MATERERNRAFEMABRRIIEZERAEM
5 BERVBREEMNEIEREZERABZEER
REPUBZEBEATEED 22BN A2 EKREA
2% BRIRHEMZAKRETHAZEEEERRE
FEBERIMANBRANZ EHHELAFER® - /A
BrEERBRSIRZ ATFELHHEIGENHEAHA
BaEA - REBER S ERIZE 395 - S5E /XA TET
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBMRME

2. Application of New and Revised
International Financial Reporting
Standards (”IFRSS") (Continued)

IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (Continued)

e in relation to the impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9 requires an
expected credit loss model, as opposed to an incurred credit loss
model under IAS 39. The expected credit loss model requires an
entity to account for expected credit losses and changes in those
expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer
necessary for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses
are recognised.

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk management
policies as at 31 March 2018, the directors of the Company anticipate
the following potential impact on initial application of IFRS 9:

Classification and measurement:

Gold loans which are designated as at FVTPL as disclosed in note 29:
these financial liabilities qualify for designation as measured at FVTPL
under IFRS 9 and the Group will continue this designation upon initial
application of IFRS 9, however, the amount of change in the fair value
of these financial liabilities that is attributable to changes in the credit
risk of those liabilities will be recognised in other comprehensive
income with the remaining fair value change recognised in profit or
loss. This is different from the current accounting treatment under
which the entire change in fair value of the financial liabilities is
recognised in profit or loss. The change in fair value attributed to a
change in credit risk of these financial liabilities is not expected to be
material.

Upon application of IFRS 9, the Group will not restate the prior period’s
comparative figures for the classification and measurement of IFRS 9.
Instead, the Group will recognise any difference between the previous
carrying amount and the carrying amount at the beginning of the
annual reporting period that includes the date of initial application in
the opening retained earnings of the annual reporting period that
includes the date of initial application.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EARBHKELEEEGR QT
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2. Application of New and Revised
International Financial Reporting
Standards (”IFRSS") (Continued)

IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (Continued)

Impairment

In general, the directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of the expected credit loss model of IFRS 9 will result in earlier
provision of credit losses which are not yet incurred in relation to the
Group's financial assets measured at amortised costs.

The Group expects to apply the simplified approach to recognise
lifetime expected credit losses for its trade receivables, loan
receivables and prepayments to suppliers as required under IFRS 9.
Based on the assessment by the directors of the Company, under
expected credit loss model, the accumulated amount of impairment
loss to be recognised by the Group as at 1 April 2018 would be
increased when compared to the accumulated amount recognised
under IAS 39 mainly attributable to expected credit losses provision on
financial assets which will be measured at amortised cost upon
application of IFRS 9. Such further impairment recognised under
expected credit loss model would reduce the opening retained profits
and increase the deferred tax assets at 1 April 2018.

IFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers”

IFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive model
for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from contracts
with customers. IFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue
IAS 11
"Construction contracts” and the related interpretations when it

recognition guidance including IAS 18 “Revenue”,

becomes effective.

The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the standard introduces a b-step approach to revenue
recognition:

e Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer.

e Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract.

e Step 3: Determine the transaction price.

e Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations
in the contract.

e Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBMRME

2. Application of New and Revised
International Financial Reporting
Standards (”IFRSS") (Continued)

IFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers”
(Continued)

Under IFRS 15, an entity recognise revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred
to the customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been added in
IFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive
disclosures are required by IFRS 15.

In 2016, the IASB issued Classifications to IFRS 15 in relation to the
identification of performance obligations, principal versus agent
considerations, as well as licensing application guidance.

The directors of the Company have assessed the impact on application
of IFRS 15 and have identified the following areas that will be affected:

Under the Group's customer loyalty program, the customers have an
option to use its membership points to ask for a discount on future
purchase in a specified period, which provides a material right to the
customers and gives rise to a separate performance obligation. Under
IFRS 15, portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated to such
option with such an amount being recognised as revenue when the
additional goods or services are transferred to the customer, or when
the option expires. Currently the Group recognised its obligation to
provide discounted goods or services for the estimated future costs of
supplying the awards and deferred the related revenue. At this stage,
the Group estimates that the impact of the amount after the
application of the IFRS 15 on the consolidated financial statements is
immaterial.

In addition, the application of IFRS 15 in the future may result in more
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

The directors of the Company intend to apply the limited retrospective

method with cumulative effect of initial application recognised in the
opening balance of equity at 1 April 2018.
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2. Application of New and Revised
International Financial Reporting
Standards (”IFRSS") (Continued)

IFRS 16 “Leases”

IFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification of
lease arrangements and accounting treatments for both lessors and
lessees. It distinguishes leases and service contracts on the basis of
whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer. Subject to
limited exceptions for short-term leases and low value assets,
distinctions of operating and finance leases are removed for lessee
accounting, and is replaced by a model where a right-of-use asset and
a corresponding liability have to be recognised for all leases by
lessees. However, the standard does not significantly change the
accounting of lessors.

Application of IFRS 16 will result in the Group's recognition of right-of-
use assets and corresponding liabilities in respect of many of the
Group's lease arrangements. These assets and liabilities are currently
not required to be recognised but certain relevant information is
disclosed as commitments to these financial statements. As at 31
March 2018, the Group has non-cancellable operating lease
commitments of HK$2,802.2 million as disclosed in note 31. On
transition to IFRS 16, the Group plans to apply the practical expedient
to apply IFRS 16 only to contracts that were previously identified as
leases applying IAS 17 "Lease” (the "IAS 17") and IFRIC 4
"Determining whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease"”. Upon
application of IFRS 16, the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding liability in respect of all these leases unless they
qualify for low value or short-term leases. In addition, the Group
currently considers refundable rental deposits paid of HK$306.0 million
included in “trade and other receivables” as at 31 March 2018 as
rights and obligations under leases to which IAS 17 applies. Based on
the definition of lease payments under IFRS 16, such deposits are not
payments relating to the right to use the underlying assets.
Accordingly, these deposits are accounted for as financial assets and
will be measured at amortised cost. The difference between the
carrying amount and the amortised costs of these deposits on the
date of initial application of IFRS 16 will be added to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use assets upon initial application of IFRS 16.

Furthermore, the application of new requirements may results in
changes in measurement, presentation and disclosures as indicated
above.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application of
the other new and amendments to IFRSs will have material impact on
the results and financial position of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBMRME

3. Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong

Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments, which are
measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In
estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset
or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial statements is
determined on such a basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of IFRS 2 “Share-based
Payment”, leasing transactions that are within the scope of IAS 17,
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not
fair value, such as net realisable value in IAS 2 “Inventories” or value
in use in IAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements
are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the
inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

e |evel 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within
Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly

or indirectly; and

e |evel 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued

The principal accounting policies are set out below:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

® has power over the investee;

e is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of an
investee, it has power over the investee when the voting rights are
sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee unilaterally. The Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether or not the Group's voting rights
in an investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

e the size of the Group's holding of voting rights relative to the size
and dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders;

e potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote holders or
other parties;

e rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

e any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Group
has, or does not have, the current ability to direct the relevant
activities at the time that decisions need to be made, including
voting patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired
or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBMRME

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the shareholders of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is
attributed to the shareholders of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately from
the Group's equity therein.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group's relevant components of equity and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiaries, including re-attribution of relevant reserves
between the Group and the non-controlling interests according to the
Group's and the non-controlling interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of
the Company.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and liabilities
of the subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any) are
derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is
calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest
and (ii) the carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary attributable to the owners of the Company.
All amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity
as specified/permitted by applicable IFRSs).

Goodwiill

Goodwill arising on acquisition of a business is carried at cost as
established at the date of acquisition of the business less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each
of the Group's cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating
units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an indication
that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBMRME

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued
Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or

receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold in the
normal course of business and net of trade discounts.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured; when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow
to the Group and when specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group's activities, as described below.

Sales of goods, including retail sales and wholesale to franchisees/
retailers and jewellery trading, are recognised when goods are
delivered and title has passed.

Service income including franchise income and income from provision
of services to franchisees is recognised when the services are
provided.

Sales of goods that result in award credits for customers, under the
Group’s customer loyalty scheme, are accounted for as multiple
element revenue transactions and the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable is allocated between the goods supplied and
the award credits granted. The consideration allocated to the award
credits is measured by reference to the fair value of the awards for
which they could be redeemed. Such consideration is not recognised
as revenue at the time of the initial sale transaction — but is deferred
and recognised as revenue when the award credits are redeemed and
expired and the Group's obligations have been fulfilled.

Interest income is accrued on a time apportionment basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to
that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land and buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes (other than properties under construction in
progress) are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For land and buildings where the cost of land cannot be reliably
allocated between the land and buildings elements, the cost of land
and buildings are depreciated and amortised on a straight-line basis
over the lease terms or 20 years, whichever is the shorter.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of other
property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress and
land and buildings, less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method, at the following rates per
annum:

10%
20%-33"/3%
Over the lease term, or 20%,

Plant and machinery
Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Leasehold improvements
whichever is the shorter
Motor vehicles 25%
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Properties which comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals and
another significant portion that is held for use in the production or
supply of goods or for administrative purposes, and the portion of
properties rent out under operating lease cannot be sold out separately
(or cannot be leased out separately under a finance lease), are
accounted for as property, plant and equipment.

Construction in progress is carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are ready
for their intended use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBMRME

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

If there is a transfer from investment property to owner-occupied
property evidenced by the commencement of owner’s occupation, the
property shall be measured at its carrying amount at the date of
change in use for subsequent accounting.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of investment
properties over their estimated useful lives and after taking into
account their estimated residual value, using the straight-line basis
over 20 years.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Land use rights

When the Group makes payments for a property interest which
includes both leasehold land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases in
which case the entire property is accounted as an operating lease.
Specifically, the entire consideration (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the leasehold land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold
interests in the land elements and building element at initial
recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating
lease is presented as “land use rights” in the consolidated statement
of financial position and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-
line basis. Land use rights which are to be amortised in the next
twelve months or less are classified as current assets.

When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the
leasehold land and building elements, the entire property is generally
classified as if the leasehold land is under finance lease.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately
are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets
with finite useful lives is recognised on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination and recognised
separately from goodwill are initially recognised at their fair value at
the acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a
business combination are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis
as intangible assets that are acquired separately.
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REMBMRME

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued
Government grants
Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable

assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the
related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses
or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable.

Jewellery collectibles

Jewellery collectibles are stated at cost less accumulated impairment
loss, if any.

Jewellery collectibles are derecognised upon disposal. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item) is included in the profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is calculated using specific identification basis for gem-set
jewellery and watches; and weighted average for other inventories.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary
to make the sale.

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are loans and receivables. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade
and other receivables, loan receivables and bank balances and cash)
are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any impairment (see accounting policy on impairment of financial
assets below).

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial assets, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.
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REMBMRME

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of each reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be
impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
assets, the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have
been affected.

For trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a collective
basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an
increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period, observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

The amount of the impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset's original
effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment losses was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that
the carrying amount of the asset at the date of the impairment loss is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been
had the impairment not been recognised.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as
either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities classified as either financial liabilities at FVTPL or
financial liabilities at amortised cost.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

The Group has designated the gold loans as financial liabilities at
FVTPL as the gold loans form part of a contract containing one or more

embedded derivatives, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss excludes any interest paid on the financial
liabilities.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables, amounts due to
non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries and bank borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimate future cash payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBmRMEE

3. EXEitBER®

2MTIH®

SHMEEARESRTR

EEERBT 2 ESRES TADRBRTSIANREY
IERSHMABERESTAY TSP ASME Bl -

ERTE

B TANBRARNESERNBEMBAERCEEYTRE
FIspE R 2 EMEL - REBEBITHERE T EIRKEAME
RIEMBREZEEHITHRARER -

TREE
TREBOBEARAFEMAEEN T BB BEIIZHIFHK
AIEM TR EE -

BAVEFABSEZ2EHERS
FEEZECEERERRATEFABREZEMAE
REAXRES —BAxZERAATETRZAGQMN - M
B EEEZEMBERNEENER - EEATHERN
WaskBRFHETSREAERSRA GRS ZHE -

BEMERATIRNEREE
CREERERE S REMENTRIEA - BB QR FEER
BRFERRITER BREBERLSERERNEE

s
EmREL

ERFSERTESREENEHBHEZEBHERRARS
EMEXHZTE - BRMXEFEBBENHE T EE
FHEEPEARERBERTE) M- AREBR SR
(BREEAREBRENEADEAHENKERZAEERK
B XPMAREAMEERITE) EIRER AT HERR
FREDFERIRE -

MERRERN B EERER

Annual Report 2018 F %

197



198

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBMRME

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued
Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the
Group’'s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of
goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss,
if any.

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
asset individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of
goodwill above) (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from “profit before taxation” as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years, and it further excludes income or
expense items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.
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REMBMRME

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments
and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when
it relates to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued
Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong
dollars) using exchange rate prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Income and expenses are translated at the average exchange
rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under translation reserve (attributable to non-controlling interests as
appropriate). Such exchange differences are reclassified to profit or
loss in the period in which the foreign operation is disposed of.

In relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that does not result in
the Group losing control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share
of accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in profit or loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term. Contingent rentals and concessionaire
fees arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense in
the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating
leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate
benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on
a straight-line basis.
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REMBMRME

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to retirement benefit plans and government-managed
retirement benefit schemes are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing
benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method, with
actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual
reporting period. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and
losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and
the return on plan assets (excluding interest), is reflected immediately
in the consolidated statement of financial position with a charge or
credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in
which they occur. Remeasurement recognised in other
comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings
and will not be reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost is
recognised in profit or loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net
interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of
the period to the net defined benefit liability or asset.

Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

e service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as
well as gains and losses on curtailments and settlements);

® netinterest expense or income; and
e remeasurement.

The Group presents the first two components of defined benefit costs
in profit or loss in “selling and distribution costs” and “general and
administrative expenses”. Curtailment gains and losses are accounted
for as past service costs.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position represents the present value of the
defined benefit obligation.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when employees
rendered the services. All short-term employee benefits are
recognised as an expense unless another IFRS requires or permits the
inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as

wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after deducting any
amount already paid.
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4. Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amount of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.

Valuation of inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Net realisable value of inventories is based on estimated selling prices
less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal. It
is the Group’s policy to review the net realisable value of inventories
periodically with reference to current market situation and conditions
of the items. The Group’s management reviews on a regular basis the
suitability of the allowance policy and has applied the policy
consistently. The Group’s management on a regular basis reviews the
inventory age listing to identify any slow-moving inventories and will
estimate the amount of allowance primarily based on the pricing policy
and strategies and the historical experience in selling goods of similar
nature. The Group's management also engages an independent
professional gemologist to perform valuation and assess conditions of
certain items based on gemstone testing for gem-set jewellery with
reference to international diamond prices, its expertise and the current
market situation. The Group reassessed the estimation at the end of
each reporting period. As at 31 March 2018, the carrying amount of
inventories was HK$34,929.4 million (net of allowances of HK$277.1
million) (2017: carrying amount of HK$29,259.3 million (net of
allowances of HK$86.6 million)). Allowances on inventories of
HK$207.7 million (2017: HK$39.8 million) were recognised in profit or
loss during the year ended 31 March 2018.
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4. Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
(Continued)
Valuation of jewellery collectibles
The jewellery collectibles are those unique treasures with extremely
high-value considered by the Group and are designated not for sale.
They are classified as non-current assets at cost less accumulated
impairment loss, if any. In estimating the valuation of jewellery
collectibles, it is the Group’s policy to review the conditions of items
by internal gemologist and assess the recoverable amount periodically
with reference to international diamond prices and market research
reports on jewellery industry. The Group's management on a regular
basis reviews if there is impairment indicator and estimated the
recoverable amount if necessary. The Group’'s management also
engages an independent professional gemologist to perform valuation
and assess the conditions of items based on gemstone testing for
gem-set jewellery with reference to international diamond prices, its
expertise and the current market situation. As at 31 March 2018, the
carrying amount of jewellery collectibles was HK$1,520.1 million
(2017: HK$967.1 million). The management of the Group determined
that the carrying amount of jewellery collectibles approximated its
recoverable amount.

Useful lives, residual value and impairment of property,
plant and equipment, investment properties and other
intangible assets

The Group's management determines the estimated useful lives,
residual value and related depreciation and amortisation charges for its
property, plant and equipment, investment properties and other
intangible assets. This estimate is based on the historical experience
of the actual useful lives and residual value of property, plant and
equipment, investment properties and other intangible assets of
similar nature and functions. Management will increase the
depreciation and amortisation charges where useful lives or residual
value are expected to be shorter or lower than estimated, or it will
write-off or write-down obsolete assets that have been abandoned or
sold. Changes in these estimations may have a material impact on the
results of the Group, which would be recognised in profit or loss in the
year when such change occur. As at 31 March 2018, the carrying
amounts of property, plant and equipment, investment properties and
other intangible assets were HK$5,340.7 million (2017: HK$4,666.3
million), HK$233.5 million (2017: HK$250.0 million) and HK$306.4
million (2017: HK$356.3 million), respectively.
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4. Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
(Continued)

Deferred taxation in respect of temporary differences
attributable to the undistributed profits of subsidiaries
in Mainland China

The Group’s management determines the dividend distribution plan of
the subsidiaries in Mainland China. Based on the dividend distribution
plan, retained profits as at 31 March 2018 amounting to HK$7,948.4
million (2017: HK$5,304.3 million) will be distributed by the
subsidiaries as dividend in the foreseeable future, while the remaining
retained profits amounting to HK$6,784.0 million (2017: HK$7,496.0
million) has been set aside for reinvestment by the subsidiaries and
will not be distributed in the foreseeable future. The Group's
management further reassesses the dividend withholding tax rate
based on current dividend distribution plan and determines that certain
of these subsidiaries should be entitled to a withholding tax at the rate
of 5% for dividend payments. The dividend distribution plan is
determined and made with reference to the Group's approved
expansion plans in Mainland China. Future change in the dividend
distribution plan may have a material impact on the amount of deferred
taxation being recognised.

5. Revenue and Segment Information

Revenue represents the net amounts received and receivable for
goods sold less returns and net of trade discounts.

For the purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment,
information reported to the chief operating decision maker (the
"CODM"), which comprises executive directors of the Company,
mainly focuses on the location of management. Revenue derived from
each location of management is further analysed into those from retail
and wholesale markets when reviewed by the CODM. The Group's
reportable and operating segments for the years ended 31 March
2018 and 2017 included two segments, namely (i) business in the
Mainland China and (ii) business in Hong Kong, Macau and
other markets.
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Revenue and Segment Information (continued)

5.
(a)

Mainland China

HEIRt

2018
HKS$ million
HEET

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by
reportable segment:
For the year ended 31 March
Revenue HEm
External sales (note i) INRIHE (D)
— Retail — 5

— Wholesale (note ii)

Segment/group revenue
Inter-segment sales (note iii)

Adjusted gross profit
(before elimination)
Inter-segment eliminations

Adjusted gross profit (note i)

Other income

Selling and distribution costs
and general and
administrative expenses

Core operating profit
(segment result)

Unrealised hedging gain on gold

Others (note iv)
Interest income
Finance costs

Profit before taxation

Other segment information
included in measurement of
core operating profit
(segment result):

Concessionaire fees
Operating lease payments in

respect of rented premises
Staff costs

— HeE (i)

PE/ EEEEE
7 EbRRE (i)

ERBEN (MR
7 EPRI M

EREEMN (M)

H A

HERDHRAR
—REABAX

TEEEE
(DEb%E)

&

B ARERY S
Hfty (Mt iv)
FEKA

BARA

BB
HAZEEREH

(PR HROR L
AR

EEDK
EEMEL2RETE

STRHA
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28,096.2
8,708.3

36,804.5
25.9

36,830.4

10,574.4
(1.3)

10,573.1
292.7

(6,598.8)

4,267.0

1,872.0

276.3
2,471.0

2017
HKS$ million
BEER

24,313.7
6,705.4

31,0191
384.8

31,403.9

9,217.3
03

9,217.6
2116

(5,853.8)

3,675.3

1,699.5

249.5
2,119.0

BEBERTHER @
AEEZSE£AREEMT2RSEB S :

BE3H31HLEE

Hong Kong, Macau and other markets

i EMRAEMTS

2018
HKS$ million
BEET

20,632.7
1,719.2

22,351.9
3,122.2

25,4741

5,697.2
(151.5)

5,545.7
115.2

(4,321.5)

1,339.4

16.4

1,306.1
1,465.2

2017
HKS$ million
BEER

19,299.2
927.2

20,226.4
2,241.2

22,467.6

5,467.3
(57.8)

5,409.5
118.0

(4,453.5)

1,074.0

16.9

1,680.7
1,430.5

Total
@zt

2018
HKS$ million
HBET

48,728.9
10,427.5

59,156.4
3,148.1

62,304.5

16,271.6
(152.8)

16,118.8
407.9

(10,920.3)

5,606.4

94.6
294.3

80.3
(243.7)

5,831.9

1,888.4

1,582.4
3,936.2

2017
HKS$ million
HEERT

43,612.9
7,632.6

51,246.5
2,626.0

53,871.5

14,684.6
(67.5)

14,6271
3295

(10,307.3)

4,649.3

336.6
(509.9)
140.0
(236.6)

4,378.4

1,716.4

1,830.2
3,549.5



5. Revenue and Segment Information (continued)

(a) An analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by
reportable segment: (Continued)

Notes:

(i) Included in the external sales and adjusted gross profit, HK$661.9 million (2017: HK$657.0 million) and
HK$270.2 million (2017: HK$290.8 million) are generated from Hearts On Fire (defined in note 17).

(i) Wholesale revenue represents revenue from jewellery trading, sales to franchisees and retailers and
provision of services to franchisees.

(i) Inter-segment sales are charged at a price mutually agreed by both parties.

(iv)  Amount represents other gains and losses, other expenses and share of results of associates.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as
the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3. Adjusted gross
profit represents the gross profit generated from each segment
without allocation of unrealised hedging gain on gold. Core operating
profit represents the profit generated from each segment without
allocation of unrealised hedging gain on gold, other gains and losses,
other expenses, share of results of associates, interest income and
finance costs. This is the measure reported to the CODM for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.

(b) Analysis of the Group’s property, plant and
equipment, investment properties, jewellery
collectibles and inventories by reportable segment:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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(i) KB Hearts On Fire CEZ& RMIFE17) WM E L HEEF /661988
HBIL(20174 : 657.08 @ L) 270 2B @E (20174 : 290.8EEE L) °

(i) HBEEXBERELS  HETMBER R HENEXERIEHRSE T NEE
A -

(i) D AP SHEIRE T 1 E 2 (BARSTEH -

(iv) ZeWmEAMKRARGE HOMXESEBERRZEM -

]2 ¥ #R A & AT SR BB 5E 3 Al AN & B ) & AT EUR AR
R - EFBEFNBERD RS AREREIP YR ATE D H
FIEEMEN - TRLLENEERD RS RERET
Wi - B REiE - B - DnBE AR ZEE -
MBWARBEKRARRE DR MEENEN - th/AER
BEAREEBRMEERD B RRRFENGERE -

(b) AREME - MERRE  REME - K
BRRRBFEEHETTE2RFEIH

As at 31 March MW3A31H

Mainland China Hong Kong, Macau and other markets Total

REIR B RFRHMTS @it
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
HKS$ million HKS$ million HKS$ million HKS$ million HKS$ million HKS$ million
BEBT BEBT BEBT BEBT BEET BEET
Property, plant and equipment WE - BEREE 3,958.4 3,349.4 1,382.3 1,316.9 5,340.7 4,666.3
Investment properties REME - - 233.5 250.0 233.5 250.0
Jewellery collectibles KELHE - - 1,520.1 967.1 1,520.1 967.1
Inventories TE 18,387.8 13,480.5 16,541.6 15,778.8 34,929.4 29,259.3

Segment assets and liabilities

Except for the above, no other assets and liabilities are included in the
measures of the Group’s segment reporting that are reviewed by the
CODM. Accordingly, no segment assets and liabilities are presented.

SBMEERER

BRDAEFFALSN - B2 ERKEFHAOANKE D # 2 Wat
BEXESAAHMEERAGE HUYEZIDMEERA
& -
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5. Revenue and Segment Information coninies 5. ZHEFERSEBEE )

(c) An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows: (c) FEEZBZEHSTNT :

2018 2017
HK$ million HK$ million
BEBT BEART

Retail sales of TEHE
— Gem-set jewellery — REER A 11,659.1 11,075.6
— Gold products —ESEM 28,159.3 24,524.0
— Platinum/karat gold products — e KEER 5,463.2 5,098.8
— Watches — §Eik 3,447.3 2,914.5
48,728.9 43,612.9
Wholesale to franchisees/retailers FIANER T, 5 S 9,163.0 7,208.4
Jewellery trading KEZ S 1,144.1 352.4
Service income from franchisees DIERNEERSENETETON 120.4 71.8
59,156.4 51,245.5

No individual customer contributed over 10% of the total revenue of MEFEA  BEENBEREASETFREETE10% A
the Group in both years. o

The Group's non-current assets, excluding loan receivables, interests  IZHISI BB DM ASEERBEE (TRERKER - R

in associates, amounts due from associates and deferred tax assets, &N R R BN E AR REREERBEE) D
by geographical areas are as follows: [N

2018 2017
HK$ million HK$ million
BEBT BEART
Mainland China 3 (A 3, 4,161.6 3,672.5
Hong Kong, Macau and other markets B RPN EM TS 3,714.3 3,162.6
7.875.9 6,735.1

208  Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EARHKELEEEGR AT
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6. Other Income 6. HlgA
2018 2017
HK$ million HK$ million
BEBT BEAT
Government grants (note) B RE (B EE) 138.8 100.9
Commission income EIEON 89.6 95.7
Franchise income AL ON 81.1 62.3
Gain on scrap sales BERHHE e 19.2 14.4
Rental income WA 125 125
Others Hith 66.7 43.7
407.9 329.5

Note: PR EE -

This mainly represents the government incentives granted by the government in Mainland China for the

development of the Group's operation in Mainland China.

7. Other Gains and Losses

TERTEAMBRATRENBRATER  AESAREREABOEEER

7. HtWsREE

2018 2017
HK$ million HK$ million
BEBT BEAT
Net foreign exchange gain (loss) i 5 Was (E518) 558 343.0 (272.9)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment &Y% - FE MR EEE (7.1) (10.3)
Others Hith 6.5 (2.6)
342.4 (285.8)
8. Interest Income and Finance Costs 8. FBWARBERE
2018 2017
HK$ million HK$ million
BHEBT BEAT
Interest income from F B U A

— banks —iR1T 66.9 121.9
— trade receivables — Z S e A 13.1 17.7
— loan receivables — EWER 0.3 0.4
80.3 140.0

Finance costs on borrowings BEEBERA
— gold loans —E=EEE 133.0 143.3
— bank borrowings — RITER 110.7 93.3
243.7 236.6
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e B IRRMEE
9. Profit before Taxation 9. MKBimiFl
2018 2017
HK$ million HK$ million
HEET HEET
Profit before taxation has been arrived PR AT &R I B 0Bk (BT A) -

at after charging (crediting):

Directors’ remuneration (note 10) EEMe (MEE10) 62.4 496
Staff's retirement benefits scheme contributions 8 TiR{KEF|EH 2143 546.2 531.7
Staff costs BT 3,327.6 2,968.2

3,936.2 3,549.5
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses FERAERBFZ 41,579.9 35,327.0
Concessionaire fees HiESK 1,888.4 1,716.4
Operating lease rentals in respect of rented EEYEEEHRERS

premises 1,582.4 1,830.2
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BMERREITE 806.6 788.8
Depreciation of investment properties REMERE 14.3 14.4
Amortisation of land use rights - {5 R AR A 6 14.3 14.0
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hih A EES 49.9 51.2
Allowances on inventories FEREEGEAHERARN)

(included in cost of goods sold) 207.7 39.8
Allowances for doubtful debts HARAEE 18.3 3.7
Fair value loss (gain) of gold loans B EENAFEBE (W)

(included in cost of goods sold) (Gt AEE R AR) 35.3 (107.2)
Donations (included in other expenses) BRGIAEMASZR) 8.3 10.8
Auditors’ remuneration Z SR &

— audit services — RBURTS 8.7 8.8

— non-audit services — ERHART 3.1 35
Impairment loss of interest in an associate —KEE N B R R EETE

(included in other expenses) (note 20) GGTAEMBZA) (K15E20) - 32.0
Impairment loss of amount due from an associate  FEU — I &A &2 IE 2 B EIE

(included in other expenses) (note 20) GGTAEMBZA) (K15E20) - 79.6
Impairment loss of amount due from R —REEACERIE 2 RERRE

a joint venture (included in other expenses) (GtAEMBEZA) - 52.3

10. Directors’, Chief Executives’ and 10. EE - EETTBE BN ESINE
Employees’ Emoluments
2018 2017
HK$ million HK$ million
HEET HEET
Directors’ fees EEHWE 4.1 4.1
Other emoluments to directors EEMEMNE

— salaries and other benefits — He MNEMEH] 27.0 25.3

— performance-based bonus — ERAEAL 28.9 18.2

— retirement benefits scheme contributions — BRIRERET MR 24 2.0

62.4 49.6

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EAEBHRELEEEGR QT



10. Directors’, Chief Executives’ and
Employees’ Emoluments (continued)
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10. EF - BT AEREEMNE @

Details of emoluments paid by the Group to the directors and the chief ~ AEBAARAFEEZRZESITHA B NMHMEFHBNT ¢
executives of the Company are as follows:
2018 2017
Retirement Retirement
benefits benefits
Salariesand  Performance- scheme Salaries and Performance- scheme
Director'sfee  other benefits based bonus  contributions Total Director'sfee  other benefits based bonus contributions Total
#eR RUER ek RIRER
j £35 AR YL b 15 a3t Bxg Afbigf] i HELES &3t
HKS million HKS million HKS million HK$ million HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million
BEET BT BREET BRER EL 7 BEAT BEER BEAT BEETL BEEL
(note i) notei)
(&) (F)
Executive directors: HES:
Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry (Chaiman) SR8+ (3) 02 45 41 02 9.6 02 44 31 02 79
Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent BRARA
(Managing Director) (Bz048) 0.2 45 5.0 0.5 10.2 02 43 33 04 8.2
Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian gEEt 0.2 16 20 02 40 02 11 08 0.1 22
Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy gEERE 0.2 23 12 03 40 02 21 15 02 40
Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton DREEE 0.2 25 21 03 5.7 02 24 18 02 46
Mr. Chan Sa-Cheang BtELE 0.2 30 37 03 12 02 29 20 03 54
Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter FEsiks 02 23 24 02 5.1 02 21 15 02 40
Mr. Chan Hiu-Sang, Albert REALE 0.2 24 25 0.1 5.2 02 23 17 0.1 43
Mr. Liu Chun Wai, Bobby BRARE 0.2 22 21 02 53 02 21 14 02 39
Non-executive director: FHES:
Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson gREis 0.2 17 15 0.1 35 02 16 11 0.1 30
Independent non-executive directors: FUFHTES -
Mr. Cheng Ming-Fun, Paul el 04 = 0.1 = 05 04 - - - 04
Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor RESET 04 - 0.1 - 05 04 - - - 04
Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon R Y 05 - 0.1 - 0.6 05 - - - 05
Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey st 04 - 0.1 - 05 04 - - - 04
Dr. Or ChingFai, Raymond MEgEL 04 - 0.1 - 05 04 - - - 04
Total i 41 21.0 289 24 624 41 253 182 20 496
Note: B 3E

(i) The performance-based bonus is discretionary based on the Group's financial results and directors’

performance decided by the management of the Group.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly for
their services in connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company and the Group. The emoluments of the non-executive
directors and independent non-executive directors shown above were
mainly for their services as directors of the Company.

(i)

EXFRZATEEHE I 2EEREREEARF LA
SEEBRERT - EXARZIERTERERBIIFNT

EEME T2 AMNERELARATNEER -
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REMBMRME

10. Directors’, Chief Executives’ and
Employees’ Emoluments (continued)

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals included five directors (2017: four) of
the Company, details of whose emoluments are included above. The
emoluments of the remaining highest paid individual during the year
ended 31 March 2017 were as follows:

10. EE ReTBAERESHNE »

rEREMEALT
RERBEMEATEEARNDEAES (20174  I4) -
EEFBEHERN LI - BE201743 A31 BILFERH
TEEMEATHFMOT -

2017
HK$ million
BEAT
Employee [=3=1
— salaries and other benefits — He REMET 3.6
— compensation for the loss of office in — HEAETEREEEAKE QR
connection with the management BB e E
of the affairs of any member of the Group 14.4
18.0
The emoluments were within the following band: EHFMDONFTYEE -
Number of
employee
EE#A
2017
HK$18,000,001 to HK$18,500,000 18,000,001 & L= 18,500,000 % 7T 1

During the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017, no emoluments
were paid by the Group to the directors and the chief executives of
the Company or the five highest paid individuals (including directors,
the chief executives and employees) as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group. None of the directors have waived any emoluments
during the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EARBHKELEEEGR QT

B2 2018F3A31HR2017F3 AN HIEFE - AEH
WEAARANEEREHTRAELARESH2 AL (2
REF BaTRABEREER)XNME - MERARSIKRS
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201753 A31 AL FEWEAEMEEREEMHM -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBmRMEE

10. Directors’, Chief Executives’ and 10. EE - BETBAEBRESMNE »

Employees’ Emoluments (continued)
Emoluments of senior management BREEASME

Other than the emoluments of directors and five highest paid BErlEEkAETREMEATHEBS
individuals disclosed above, the emoluments of the senior (BEHR [EERafERABEHN] —&H) OIS INT

management whose profiles are included in “Profile of Directors and THEE :
Senior Management” section fell within the following bands:

BREBAE

Number of individuals

EEHA
2018 2017
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z£ 21,000,000 7T - 1
HK$1,000,001-HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 & 7% 1,500,000 % 7T - 2
HK$1,500,001-HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 & 7c £ 2,000,000 7T 8 7
HK$2,000,001-HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 77L& 2,500,000 % 7T 1 -
9 10
11. Taxation 11. $iIE
2018 2017
HK$ million HK$ million
AEET BEAT
The taxation charge comprises: HERY a4
Current tax: BERRE IR -
Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) in Mainland China ~ ®r B2 S 941.1 720.9
Hong Kong Profits Tax EERER 401.2 150.5
Macau complementary tax SRPIF SRR 44.5 36.3
Taxation in other jurisdictions HM AR 2 18 1.1 0.7
1,387.9 908.4
(Over)underprovision in prior years: BAFE(BEER) BETR
EIT in Mainland China PR TSR (17.5) (11.8)
Hong Kong Profits Tax EBERER 0.2 0.3
Macau complementary tax SRPIPTIS A TR - 1.9
(17.3) (9.6)
Deferred tax charge (note 22) REFRIBRA T (M5 22) 230.9 300.2
Withholding tax* TEMH * 271 28.3
1,628.6 1,227.3
* Withholding tax mainly represents withholding tax on intra-group licence income and interest income * FEHB = BieEBE AN A TP E A IF A RF S ATEHT o

from Mainland China.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRERMTE

11. Taxation (continued) 11. *HIE(@)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated  MEAFEER - FB NS T3R5 E BT % F32 16.5% T
assessable profit for both years. KHE o

Under the Enterprise Income Tax Law (the “EIT Law”) of the People’s RIEPEAREFE([HEDEEMSHEREERMA -
Republic of China (“PRC") and Implementation Regulation of the EIT  fREIRMHEBA TR EMED 525% °

Law, the tax rate of the subsidiaries in Mainland China is 25% for both

years.

For certain subsidiaries of the Company in Mainland China, they are AARETHERNMBHEBARERSRBATEANMAIERER
entitled to the tax incentives in connection with the development of  FIEE®E - MEAESEEABREEE15% °

the western part of Mainland China. The applicable tax rate is 15% for

both years.

Macau complementary tax is calculated at the maximum progressive METEAN  SBPFES/EE iREr R afiERts
rate of 12% on the estimated assessable profit for both years. BEMEI12%TE -

Taxation charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before FRABRBESL BT HEEA B REME2ERERB DS F)
taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other HERT -
comprehensive income as follows:

2018 2017
HK$ million HK$ million
HE#ET HEBT
Profit before taxation B B A ) 5,831.9 4,378.4
Tax at the applicable income tax rate — (Mainland @B FEH Rt ENFHEE— (REAM :
China: 25%; Hong Kong: 16.5%; Macau: 12%) 25% : HH : 16.5% /iF'ﬁ ©12%) 1,465.6 977.9
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for AR X BB R 5 28
tax purposes 36.8 110.6
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purposes — B/EEHIU AR T TE 2 (85.7) (67.6)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERTIEBBORBZE 80.5 925
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised &A%l R IER I FIEE 18 (40.7) (31.6)
Tax effect of tax exemptions and incentives & T A B A B B A B R B EA e K
granted to certain subsidiaries in Mainland China BENFETE (38.2) (19.0)
Withholding tax on undistributed profits of B b T B A R AR ) IR e A TR0 R
subsidiaries in Mainland China 204.7 144.9
Overprovision in prior years B EE R (17.3) (9.6)
Withholding tax FEFOEL 271 28.3
Others HAith (4.2) 0.9
Taxation charge for the year FERFIAST L 1,628.6 1,227.3

214 Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EARBHKEELEEEGR AT



11. Taxation (continued)

At 31 March 2018, the Group has tax losses of HK$870.0 million (2017:
HK$812.6 million) not recognised as deferred tax assets. All of the
unrecognised tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely, except
for HK$261.9 million (2017: HK$314.1 million) which will be expired on
or before 31 December 2023.

At 31 March 2018, the Group has deductible temporary differences of
HK$13.8 million (2017: HK$9.0 million) of which deferred taxation has
not been recognised. Tax effect of such deductible temporary
differences as at 31 March 2018 was HK$2.3 million (2017: HK$1.5
million).

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax of 5% to 10% (2017:
5% to 10%) is imposed on dividends declared in respect of profits
earned by subsidiaries in Mainland China from 1 January 2008
onwards. Based on the dividend distribution plan of the management,
retained profits as at 31 March 2018 amounting to HK$7,948.4 million
(2017: HK$5,304.3 million) will be distributed as dividend in the
foreseeable future, while the remaining retained profits amounting to
HK$6,784.0 million (2017: HK$7,496.0 million) has been set aside for
reinvestment and will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

12. Earnings per Share

The calculation of the basic earnings per share for the year is based on
the consolidated profit attributable to shareholders of the Company for
the year and on the number of 10,000,000,000 (2017: 10,000,000,000)
shares in issue during the year.

No diluted earnings per share is presented as there were no potential
ordinary shares during both years.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBmRMEE

11. BilEe

R2018F3A31H @ AEBRERAELERIBEEMNTIA
18487008 BT (20174 : 8126 H&ET) - FiE
KRB R A IR A - 15261 OF B8 7T(20174F -
3141 BEBTT) EH 20234 12 A31 A2 FIET -

201843 A31 B » NEE M A I HERELFHIEA AN
BERUEEZRA138EEET(Q017F :9.088%E L) °
LR 20183 A3 AR R EENTH T E 2.3
BEAT(Q017F 165888 -

RIBFBEGEMSTUE - HEAMAHE R R AR 8 2008
F1ATBRARIENESRRERHRZNF5% E10%
(20174 : 5% £10%) 2 AN - RIFEEENIRED K
FHE - 720183 A31 AWRE BT &S 179484 BEE
7t(20174F : 53043 EAT) B AR R K RE/KED
& TR TR E N A $£6,784.0F &8 L (2017 4F ¢
7A96.0BBRT)CREEBRERE  TEEIR KR
DK °

12. BIREF
FESREABIEERARARREGETFRAES
SR DA RS B 31T B 15 10,000,000,000 f% (2017 4 -
10,000,000,000 f%) 5+ & -

MR AR A TR > WU E2SREERT -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBMRME

13. Dividends

Dividends paid and recognised as
distribution during the year:
For current year:
Interim
Special

For prior year:
Final
Special

13. IRB
2018 2017
HK cents per share HK$ million  HK cents per share HK$ million
BREAW BEBT FREAW BEET
RERZ R RERRDIK
ZIRE
REF :
A 12.0 1,200.0 6.0 600.0
(SRl = N 15.0 1,500.0
FEE
AR HA 10.0 1,000.0 8.0 800.0
4RI 20.0 2,000.0 22.0 2,200.0
4,200.0 5,100.0

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend of RBEHRE  NARESTEEAMREZE2018F3A31HIE
HK15.0 cents per share and a special dividend of HK30.0 cents per  FEIRMRAIREEM15.0/80L R EFRIIRE&H30.05410L -
share, totalling HK$4,500.0 million in respect of the year ended 31 4 $#4,500.0E BB T (2017 F « KK B FAX10.0781
March 2018 (2017: a final dividend of HK10.0 cents per share and a MR 2 &8 20.0%81L - A3£3,000.0 8B T) - A
special dividend of HK20.0 cents per share, totalling HK$3,000.0 FRENEERFBFAS EHEFSEE -

million) have been proposed by the directors of the Company and are

subject to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming annual

general meeting.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EARBHKELEEEGR QT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FE M BRRMEE
14. Property, Plant and Equipment 14. Y% - RERRERE
Land Plant Furniture,
and and fixtures and Leasehold Motor  Construction
building i quipment impr hil in progress Total
B £ER
TiREF BERKS RE HEVEEE RE HEIR @zt
HK$ million HKS$ million HKS$ million HKS$ million HKS$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEBT BEBT AEBET AEAT HEART HEET BEBT
COST A
At 1 April 2016 H2016F4A1H 2,890.8 320.7 2,027.4 2,146.7 50.0 910.5 8,346.1
Currency realignment ErEE (156.4) (17.2) (54.8) (117.6) (2.2) (41.5) (389.7)
Additions NE 77.4 437 288.5 213.6 3.1 309.6 935.9
Transfer b 604.4 39.7 24.7 2.6 - (671.4) -
Disposals & - (15.3) (112.6) (16.2) (1.6) - (145.7)
Transferred from investment EELEME
properties 85 - - - - - 85
At 31 March 2017 R2017%F3A31H 3,424.7 371.6 21732 2,229.1 49.3 507.2 8,765.1
Currency realignment EEAE 3239 44.3 107.0 230.6 39 32.1 7418
Additions NE 12 95.2 3926 3184 5.7 3004 1,113.5
Transfer 23 367.7 7.7 2.0 316 - (409.0) -
Disposals & (4.6) (15.7) (127.0) (18.2) (5.5) - (171.0
Transferred from investment BHRRENE
properties 22 - - - - - 2.2
At 31 March 2018 #®2018%3A31H 4,115.1 503.1 2,547.8 2,791.5 53.4 430.7 10,441.6
DEPRECIATION wE
At 1 April 2016 ®201654A18 477.9 102.5 1,399.8 1,678.7 375 - 3,596.4
Currency realignment SRR (31.6) (4.6) (36.8) (92.8) (1.6) - (167.4)
Provided for the year FREE 139.6 303 3328 280.5 5.6 - 788.8
Eliminated on disposals HEH - (13.9) (104.3) (9.4) (1.4) - (129.0
At 31 March 2017 ®2017%3A318 585.9 114.3 1,591.5 1,757.0 40.1 - 4,088.8
Currency realignment R 59.6 19.0 75.7 184.8 3.0 - 342.1
Provided for the year FRER 182.6 27.2 331.4 260.2 5.2 - 806.6
Eliminated on disposals HEM A (1.4) (8.7) (108.0) (13.5) (5.0) - (136.6)
At 31 March 2018 #2018%3A318 826.7 151.8 1,890.6 2,188.5 433 - 5,100.9
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 March 2018 #2018F3A31H 3,288.4 351.3 657.2 603.0 10.1 430.7 5,340.7
At 31 March 2017 #®201743A318 2,838.8 257.3 581.7 4721 9.2 507.2 4,666.3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBMRME

14. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

The carrying values of the Group’s properties (including construction in

progress) are analysed as follows:

14. W% - MERBRHE

REEWE(RELETR)NEREITET

2018 2017
HKS$ million HK$ million
HEET HEET
In Mainland China A A 2,850.0 2,696.5
In Hong Kong BB 869.1 648.3
In South Africa Ik - 1.2
3,719.1 3,346.0
15. Land Use Rights 15. T ib{E FHE
2018 2017
HK$ million HK$ million
HEET BEART
Carrying amount BRTEE
At 1 April ®4A1H 198.6 226.1
Currency realignment EH R 20.6 (13.5)
Charged to profit or loss during the year RERBIBENG (14.3) (14.0)
At 31 March M3 A31H 204.9 198.6
Analysed for reporting purposes as: T SIBERBERBRHDHN
Current assets (included in trade and MBEE GFAE S K EAMEKFRIER)
other receivables) 15.1 13.7
Non-current assets FERESEE 189.8 184.9
204.9 198.6

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EAEBHRELEEEGR QT



16. Investment Properties

COST
At 1 April 2016
Transferred to property, plant and equipment

At 31 March 2017
Transferred to property, plant and equipment

At 31 March 2018

DEPRECIATION

At 1 April 2016

Provided for the year

Transferred to property, plant and equipment

At 31 March 2017
Provided for the year
Transferred to property, plant and equipment

At 31 March 2018

CARRYING VALUES
At 31 March 2018

At 31 March 2017

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRM T
16. HEYE
HK$ million
BEET
A
R20164%F4 818 296.8
EEEYE - R REE (9.4)
M20179F3A31H 287.4
EEREYE - BEREE (2.4)
#201843A318 285.0
e
H2016F4 A1 H 23.9
FREE 14.4
EEEYE - BEREE (0.9)
K2017F3A31H 37.4
FARE 14.3
EEREYE  RE KRR (0.2)
201843 A31H 51.5
BREE
R201843A318 2335
#201749€3A318 250.0

The fair value of the Group's investment properties at 31 March 2018
was HK$365.6 million (2017: HK$328.5 million). The fair value has
been arrived at based on a valuation carried out by Knight Frank Petty
Limited (“Knight Frank”), an independent property valuer not
connected with the Group (whose address is 4/F, Shui On Centre, 6-8
Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong), in accordance with the HKIS
Valuation Standards 2017 issued by Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors
and the RICS Valuation — Global Standards 2017 issued by the Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors. Knight Frank is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, and has appropriate qualifications
and recent experience in the valuation of similar properties in the
relevant locations.

REBBZEMHEN2018F3 A3 BHH A TF(EA365.6H
BET(20174 : 3285 ABE L) - MEAEEEBAEN
B EAEMRD AT ERAR (%Y ]) it AE
BEFEEESHHLT LA4B)REFTBUEMBSNR
iz BB BB [HEREN 20177 REXFHAEBNES
BIERICSEE — 2 ERE2017ET 2 HEME
EoRYRBRMEMBEREZ — XHEABEERIEA
HAHHER A BUD R A ENER -
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REMBMRME

16. Investment Properties (continued)

The fair value was determined based on the income approach, where
the market rentals of all lettable units of the properties are assessed
and discounted at the market yield expected by investors for this type
of properties. The market rentals are assessed by reference to the
rentals achieved in the lettable units of the properties as well as other
lettings of similar properties in the neighbourhood. The capitalisation
rate is determined by reference to the yields derived from analysing
the sales transactions of similar properties in Hong Kong and adjusted
to take into account the market expectation from property investors to
reflect factors specific to the Group's investment properties.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use
of the properties is their current use.

Details of the Group's investment properties and information about
the fair value hierarchy at the end of each reporting period are as

follows:
At 31 March M3 HA31H
Industrial property units located in Hong Kong 7 A & #) T ¥ )2 87

The above investment properties are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over 20 years.

17. Goodwill

COST AND CARRYING VALUES
At 1 April 2016, 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2018

B K AREE

The goodwill arose in the acquisition of Hearts On Fire Company, LLC
(“Hearts On Fire") included amounts in relation to the benefit of
expected synergies, revenue growth, future market development and
the assembled workforce of Hearts On Fire. The recoverable amount
of the Hearts On Fire cash-generating unit is determined based on a
value in use calculation which uses cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by the directors covering a b-year (2017:
5-year) period, and a discount rate of 10.0% — 13.0% (2017: 10.5%
— 13.5%) per annum.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EARBHKELEEEGR QT

16. HEYE »

ZAFEDIRBRAEGE - ZEME AT HASEM
2SS REEERLEMEBR 2 mERERTH R
BiH - BTS2 E RSy A BB Y A U R
LY o RS R (RS - BRIV B E ST E B
FLMENE RSB RSETEE - CRMEREE
TS TEEIEL AR R AR BB A s Y EE -

REERSWENAFER - RENEIBRRBERR
RS E AR -

REBREREP RN ENEABEREHURATFESHD
ERT -

Fair value hierarchy Fair value
AFEER AFE
2018 2017
HK$ million HK$ million
HEET AEET
Level 3
FE=H 365.6 328.5
PR E M E GER 20 FHRITE -
17. &8
HK$ million
B&ET
MN2016F4HA1H 201743 A31HFM2018F3 A31H 257.8

I 8% Hearts On Fire Company, LLC ([Hearts On Fire])
EXNBEaFRBEHpRMNE  WEEE - BrmiEE
B IA K Hearts On Fire XA F O S HBEH S A -
Hearts On Fire FTE £ K IR & ZE £ B A A Y05 5 R
BEREBEETTE(ERNESMLERSLF (201745 ¢
BE)ZHRBEE: FHFF10.0%-13.0% (2017 F :
10.5%-13.5% ) Z B3R R AR & IEALZ I TE M E ) METE -



17. Goodwill (Continued)

Cash flow projections during the budget period are based on the same
expected gross margins throughout the budget period. The cash flows
beyond that 5-year period have been extrapolated using the projected
long-term average growth rate for the jewellery industry. In the opinion
of the directors, no impairment loss was required for the years ended
31 March 2018 and 2017. The directors believe that any reasonably
possible change in the key assumptions on which the recoverable
amount is based would not cause the carrying amount of the group of
units to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount.

18. Other Intangible Assets

COST AR
At 1 April 2016, 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2018

ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION
At 1 April 2016
Provided for the year

Rt

FREE

At 31 March 2017
Provided for the year FREE
At 31 March 2018

CARRYING VALUES
At 31 March 2018

SREE

At 31 March 2017

The trademarks and patents are amortised with useful life of 5 to 15
years.

19. Jewellery Collectibles

The amounts represent the aggregate cost of gem-set jewellery
collectibles held by the Group which is designated not for sale. During
the year ended 31 March 2017, the jewellery collectibles included an
amount of HK$588.8 million transferred from inventories upon the
designation at carrying values. No transfer was made in the current
year. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the recoverable
amounts of the jewellery collectibles are at least their carrying
amounts at the end of the reporting period.

H2016F4A18 201743831 AKX 201843 A31H

2016F4 1R

201743 A31H

201843 A31H

201843 A31H

201793 A31H

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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17. B8

YEE SRR S R RN S EEE A ARNTEEE
FIE o TIHRIR G A 0T % i B P T ER T B 1T 22 B B 40
ERHE - EE=R A5 HZ22018F3A31HN201743
A3 AL EEEARERE - BEAE - KBS B
EHBRB RN EAAEA LT T REmR B AR
E BB AT B & S o

18. HittEREE

Trademarks and
patents
BEREF

HK$ million
BEET

472.9

65.4
51.2

116.6
49.9

166.5

306.4

356.3

ZEBBERENRAERFHLE10FHH -

19. %REBERE
RRENIEAEEGEIEEAEERNKEEREHEE
ZHARR - HE2017F3A31HILFE 588 8B EHB T
ERETAIEREUEMENREEEL YT AKER
B NFEEMEETHEEA - AAREERAE KEE
EAAkEeEE L AERRE B HARNIREE -

Annual Report 2018 F %

221



222

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBMRME

20. Interests in Associates/Amounts Due from

20. REFE AT 2 EKHEAS

Associates MIE
2018 2017
HK$ million HK$ million
HEBT HEBT
Cost of unlisted investment FEETIRE KA 44.0 44.0
Share of losses iR EE (13.2) (13.2)
Share of translation reserve FE(R A E 1.2 1.2
Accumulated impairment loss of interest in N—REERNE 2 Bt RERER
an associate (32.0) (32.0)
Details of the associates are set out as below: B N EIRFHFES AT ¢
Place of Issued and
incorporation fully paid Proportion of Proportion of
and principal registered capital/ ownership interest voting rights
Name of company place of operation share capital held by the Group held by the Group Principal activities
EMAIHEHR BRTRHAR REBERERE REBAHE
ATEE IBEENY ERBRARA [ £:3:47) BRERLA IBER
2018 2017 2018 2017
Shenzhen Qianhai Chow Tai Fook Mainland China RMB120,000,000 30.0% 30.0% 28.6% 28.6%  Operating a shopping
Hong Kong Goods Centre FERL AR#120,000,000 70 complex in Mainland China
Co., Ltd ("Qianhai CTF") RPE RS & FE O
YRR EAEFLBRAT
([EBAXRE])
CTF Business Management Hong Kong HK$10 30.0% 30.0% 28.6% 28.6%  Operating an online
Limited 5 1087 shopping platform
AREEEERERAT e tENTa
Group Program Limited BVI us$10 40.0% - 40.0% - Operating a customer
REBHARKES 10T loyalty scheme in
Hong Kong and
Mainland China
REB R B A2
EPRHETE

At 31 March 2017, the directors of the Company considered that
recoverable amount of Qianhai CTF was below the aggregate amount
of interest in an associate and amount due from an associate due to
unfavourable market conditions. As the information on the fair value
less cost of disposal of interest in Qianhai CTF was difficult to obtain
unless negotiation with potential purchasers were taking place, no
reliable fair value information in the market could be found. Therefore,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, the interest in Qianhai
CTF and amount due from Qianhai CTF were fully impaired and
impairment losses of interest in an associate and amount due from an
associate of HK$32.0 million and HK$79.6 million were recognised,
respectively, in profit or loss during the year ended 31 March 2017.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EAEBHRELEEEGR QT

M201743A31H  ARAEERR - BTRTHMAE
A/ B K4 B RJ 4K (] 5 R S — SR e 1 ) A i A R L B
W—HE 2 RBFARE o BRIFARE BB FOEITRE
7 RRIBARS RS AREER AT ERHEK
KEEHR - REBEBEEDS LRBARNATEER -
Hit  ARREER AR NAVEAXENER RERAE
AXRBRIEZENE  WBE2017F3 A31 BILFENE
o) IR — B2 R A s MBI — KB 2 R B FUR
RERIES20A8EBTNTI6CEEET -



20. Interests in Associates/Amounts Due from
Associates (continued)

The recoverable amount had been determined based on a value in use
calculation. That calculation used cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by the directors covering a 5-year period,
and discount rate of 15%. Other key assumptions for the value in use
calculations relating to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows
included budgeted rental income and expenses, such estimation was
based on the unit's past performance and management'’s expectation
for the market.

As at 31 March 2018, the remaining amount due from associates of
HK$62.2 million (2017: HK$19.7 million) is unsecured, interest-free
and has no fixed repayment terms.

21. Loan Receivables

Loan receivables represent loan to staff and an amount due from a
private entity (the
and wholesale of pearls in Australia. Loan receivables are classified as
current or non-current assets based on contractual terms and taking
into account the timing of recovery as expected by the management.
As at 31 March 2018 and 2017, there are no past due but not impaired
loan receivables.

“Issuer”) which is principally engaged in agriculture

All loan receivables from staff were secured over certain properties,
the fair value of which exceeds the carrying amount of the related loan
on an individual basis.

As at 31 March 2018, loan receivable from the Issuer has a principal
amount of Australian Dollar (“AUS") 2.7 million (2017: AUS3.0 million),
bears interest at 7.0% per annum and will be repaid to the Group by
instalments until 30 June 2020.

Included in loan receivables are the following amounts denominated in

currencies other than the functional currency of the relevant group
entity:

AUS "

al
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20. REFE AT 2R FEWEE A TR
I o)

ARESEERNEREEET ZAHE T EAERREREZ

HEMBFHEBHEMS MRS RIERIA K 15% BhIRE -

TEEABEmMAGHBEERA ML AENEMEZRE

BEEBERSRARMY  ZEAEREMNBTERE

RER BRI TISTEE S

M2018F3A31H IR L NAH TRIEC22HEH
(20174 197 BEAT) REER - 4B RBETER
HA o

Eﬂﬂ%%

BREFEEIERREN —RFEERMYEELRIEE
&Tﬁt?’*ﬂ@ﬂ%gﬁ‘;(ﬁé TADKIFIE - BIREFRIBEE K
16T & 2 R e I8 B T BA R TE 6 BT U (B A FE 4 ) SR R A ED
SIERBEE - R2018F K20174F3A31H » #iEE @
HMERMENEKER

ZEENE TEREAE THEEERR -
iﬁ HAMERMNREE -

i & A FEH

M201843A31H  BRETAERNALER27TAS
MBIT(20174 - B.0BEBET) - FHERT.0%  WisH H
BN TAREEZE2020F6 A30H °

I IEPNE 4§ T4
BeEHE -

SHNEREEERNEERINE

2018 2017

HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEATT
16.6 18.8
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22. Deferred Taxation

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) recognised
by the Group and movements thereon during the current and

22. BEHIE
LWTARAFERBAFEASECRRETZRLERIES

prior years:

Withholding
Unrealised tax on
fair value undistributed
change of profits of
gold loans subsidiaries Unrealised Amortisation
in Mainland in Mainland profit on and
China China inventories  depreciation Tax losses Others Total
TEREES  PEIRBHE
BEZRER DERDIK BEZ
ATESE ERZENR REREF BERITE BEEER Hith st
HKS$ million HKS$ million HKS$ million HKS$ million HKS$ million HKS$ million HKS$ million
BEERT BEERT BEERT BEERT BEERT BEER BEER
At 1 April 2016 R201654F1H (43.6) 308.6 (386.2) (29.8) (18.6) 9.5 (160.1)
Charge (credit) to ek (GHA) Bz
profit or loss (note 11) (PFEE11) 28.6 144.9% 121.6 (3.5) 2.6 6.0 300.2
Utilised during the year FRER - (164.8) - - - - (164.8)
Currency realignment Gk 2.0 (18.5) 14.2 - - - (2.3)
At 31 March 2017 M20179F3A318 (13.0) 270.2 (250.4) (33.3) (16.0) 15.5 (27.0)
Charge (credit) to Mz (GEA) 8%
profit or loss (note 11) (BfzE11) 20.5 204.7* 27.2 12.5 0.7 (34.7) 230.9
Utilised during the year FAEH - (96.7) - - - - (96.7)
Currency realignment B 0.2) 35.6 (13.5) - - (1.1) 20.8
At 31 March 2018 #R201863A31AH 7.3 413.8 (236.7) (20.8) (16.3) (20.3) 128.0

* Under the EIT Law of PRC, a 10% withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared to foreign

investors in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards.

Pursuant to approvals from the relevant PRC government obtained by certain subsidiaries of the Group
and reassessment of dividend distribution plan, certain of these subsidiaries should be entitled to a

withholding tax at the rate of 5% for dividend payments.

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial
reporting purposes:

¥ REBERBECEMERE - 820084181 BAE - Aptd BIROFE QR REAE
FASEIMEEETIRBE - HABKI10% 2 TBMH -

ZERAKEETHEARRGET EERBAOERE-ERSD RS - &5T
%I B A RS R AR B R 5% BRI ARB 2 TR ©

AN sk B TS s R P E IR IR IR A SR O AT

2018 2017

HK$ million HK$ million

BEET BEBAT

Deferred tax assets R EEE (293.1) (312.7)
Deferred tax liabilities BEEFIBAE 4211 285.7
128.0 (27.0)

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EAEBHRELEEEGR QT
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FE M BRRMEE
23. Inventories 23. &8

2018 2017
HK$ million HK$ million
AEET BEAT

Raw materials for: EENTERMRME
Gem-set jewellery KREEREH 5,064.2 5,059.1
Gold products HEEM 1,187.1 632.8
Platinum/karat gold products e KEER 308.4 126.2
6,559.7 5,818.1

Finished goods: Sk
Gem-set jewellery IREER 13,114.4 11,140.6
Gold products HEEM 10,632.2 7.826.3
Platinum/karat gold products $HEKEE SR 2,414.6 2,166.5
Watches fEER 2,096.7 2,224.0
28,257.9 23,357.4
Packing materials Bk 111.8 83.8
34,929.4 29,259.3
24. Trade and Other Receivables 24. B REMEBIKRIE

2018 2017
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET HEBT
Trade receivables B 5 W EIE 3,393.8 2,377.8
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts R EEBREE (42.4) (21.9)
3,351.4 2,355.9
Prepayments to suppliers ) {1 i 7 FE A~ 008 422.4 647.2
Deposits R 652.8 674.5
Land use rights charged within one year —F A HHEY T A 15.1 13.7
Other tax recoverables HAb A E A E 1,836.1 1,232.7
Others Hih 132.2 133.3
6,410.0 5,057.3

As at 31 March 2018, trade receivables of HK$43.6 million and HK$9.0
million (2017: HK$63.6 million and HK$11.3 million) are due from
entities in which certain directors of the Company, who are also
shareholders of the Company, have beneficial interests in both the
Company and those entities, and non-controlling shareholders of the
subsidiaries, respectively.

M2018F3 431 H -

THREBEDERDZ

—
Bic

B RWHKIA436ASETRI.0E
EBL(2017F : 636 BEETLRIN3ABETL) D IR
BARBETES(TARRREER) ARRARERALE

VAT B 8 2 Bl FEHZ AR
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REMBMRME

24. Trade and Other Receivables (continued)

The Group’s sales to retail customers are mainly on cash basis. Sales
to certain customers are on credit with credit period up to 6 months.
For sales through concessionaire stores, the Group usually allows 30
days credit period to these receivables.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables presented based
on the invoice dates at the end of the reporting period, which
approximates to the respective revenue recognition dates:

0 to 30 days 0%30H
31 to 90 days 31290H
91 to 180 days 912180 H
Over 180 days 180 B A E

In determining the recoverability of the trade receivables, the Group
monitors change in the credit quality of the trade receivables since the
credit was granted and up to the reporting date. The directors of the
Company considered that the trade receivables that are neither past
due nor impaired to be of a good credit quality.

As at 31 March 2018, included in the trade receivable balances are
receivables of HK$173.5 million (2017: HK$122.1 million) carrying a
fixed interest rate ranging from 7.4% to 8.6% (2017: 7.4% to 8.6%)
per annum.

Also, as at 31 March 2018, included in the trade receivable balances
are trade receivables with aggregate carrying amount of HK$186.7
million (2017: HK$103.2 million) which are past due at the reporting
date for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss as
there has not been a significant change in the credit quality and
amounts are still considered recoverable based on historical
experience. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

As at 31 March 2018, the accumulated allowance for doubtful debt of
HK$42.4 million (2017: HK$21.9 million) represents the estimated
irrecoverable amounts determined with reference to past default
experience of the counterparty and an analysis of the counterparty’s
current financial positions.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EARBHKELEEEGR QT

24. BORHEMEWKIIE
AERUEEETOEEUEL AT MAETFEROY
ERRBT  EEHRSA6EA - REENKET
= OREE RS RS T30 A AE R -

AT RIRBEEZAMES] - RBEHRNE S EEREDN
SRECD T BB R EE G 2 SR B HRE

2018 2017

HK$ million HKS$ million
BHEET BEBET
2,759.3 1,836.0
405.4 416.7
170.1 64.7
16.6 385
3,351.4 2,355.9

REEE S RUEFIENATRORER  AEEERERE
EEREEREAAHEIREFAEEEENES - K
REAEERR BIHREWFUERIRAHATRRE  F5E
RRIIf -

#2018 3 431 B » st AB ZIEWGRIB A& A E F F =X
NF7.4%%E86% (20174 : 7.4% £8.6%) &) & YW K18
1735 B&EBTL(20174 1221 88T °

Bboh - 720184 3 A31 B » 5 AE S EWIBAH AR TR
SHHDaHMEEEEAR186.78 8E (20174 -
1032EBAT)MESRKFE HNEEERTETLR
EAEZHERBBALRARAZENEATRE - A%
B AR ARG AEETRAREZSEHRITEL
IR G o

20183 A3 H 4248 B (2017F : 2198 &
B REREBD2EH T REERNERREEHE
AT TSR D AT M E M 5t AN AT UL IS 58



24. Trade and Other Receivables (continued)

Ageing of trade receivables, based on the invoice dates,
which are past due but not impaired

912180 H
180 HIA E

91 to 180 days
Over 180 days

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts

At 1 April W4HF1H
Impairment losses recognised BRI EEE
Currency realignment EHk R

At 31 March M3 A31H

25. Bank Balances and Cash

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the bank deposits carry interest
at the prevailing market rate of about 0.01% to 5.75% (2017: 0.01%
t0 8.20%) per annum.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group's cash and cash equivalents
denominated in RMB were HK$5,317.6 million (2017: HK$5,284.8
million). The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations in
Mainland China and the Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to
exchange RMB for other currencies through authorised banks to
conduct business in foreign currency.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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24, BSRHMEWRIE
REBFENHCEMERBENE S EIRIE

B AR &

IR R EE

2018 2017

HK$ million HK$ million
HEET BHEET
170.1 64.7
16.6 38.5
186.7 103.2
2018 2017

HK$ million HK$ million
BAEET BEATT
21.9 19.5

18.3 3.7

2.2 (1.3)

42.4 21.9

25. RITHBGRIRE
HZE2018F3A31BILEFE  BITERIRERTIBERN R
NF40.01% E5.75% (20174 = 7 F0.01% £8.20%)

R

M201843A31H  ARERAREIENREMREE
B A53176BEEIT(20174 : 5,284.8B &) ° A
REWAAEHEBRAEMER AW RENPEAN
MR BEIMEETR RS MAEE - EERNEEERTE A%
FEEE R RTIRITEITINE R - BARKE HIBBINEG -
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GARBEREMNE
25. Bank Balances and Cash (continued 25. RITEB RS W@

Included in bank balances and cash are the following amounts  (FASRITHEHB RSO RIEA THIREESE (WIEFEE
ap, 12

denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the B EREMINEEE) FIEMFHIE
relevant group entities:

2018 2017

HK$ million HK$ million

AEET HEBET

Renminbi (“RMB") AR 642.3 879.6

United States dollars ("US$") ETT 611.4 495.7
26. Trade and Other Payables 26. ESRHMEMFRIE

2018 2017

HK$ million HK$ million

HEET BEBART

Trade payables & S ENRIE 470.6 420.7

Deposits received from franchisees and customers BN & WA IZ S 6,026.3 3,967.9

Accruals st &R 571.0 340.3

Accrued staff costs FEEFE TR 562.2 338.2

Other tax payables HAb ERHIIE 464.5 308.2

Interest payables FERHFB 41 5.0

Others Eitp 259.9 313.1

8,358.6 5,693.4

Deposits received from franchisees and customers mainly represent EINEEEESWENES T EEREN I EEERS
deposits made by franchisees in Mainland China for the consigned EEDEFAYNZIRS - ZSEAEEKENRGS o
products. The amounts are unsecured and interest-free.

The Group normally receives credit terms of 7 to 180 days from its NEE R E A EREENEE AN T7EE 1800
suppliers. The following is an aged analysis of trade payables RE . P TAERREAH2HRNERERRNE S EN
presented based on the invoice date at the end of each SIHH BRSO

reporting period:

2018 2017

HK$ million HK$ million

HEBT HEBT

0 to 30 days 0£30H 440.3 381.0
31 to 90 days 31290H 12.7 23.7
91 to 180 days 91E180H 7.0 3.6
Over 180 days 180 HIMA £ 10.6 12.4
470.6 420.7
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27. Amounts Due to Non-Controlling
Shareholders of Subsidiaries

The balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

28. Bank Borrowings

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBmRMEE

27. FEfTBE B A BIIEIARRARIE
BB BRIER 28 REERT THE -

28. RITER

2018 2017
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BHEAT
Unsecured bank loans EIRIRIRITE R 7,923.0 6,792.5
The carrying amounts of the above borrowings A BB ZBREER N5 HIREE
are repayable*:
Within one year —FR 5,823.0 6,192.5
More than one year, but not exceeding —FLE BRBIBRF
two years = 600.0
More than two years, but not exceeding MEE  BRBBRF
five years 2,100.0 -
7,923.0 6,792.5
Less: Amounts due within one year shown under & : JRB) B EIB TR —E R D HR) 3018
current liabilities (5,823.0) (6,192.5)
Amount shown under non-current liabilities ERBAEE FATRIE 2,100.0 600.0

*

The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements.

The bank borrowings carry variable interest rates ranged from 0.6% to
0.7% over Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR") per annum
(2017: 0.7% over HIBOR per annum or 90% to 91% of The Peoples’
Bank of China Standard Loan Interest Rate).

As at 31 March 2018, the range of interest rates on the bank
borrowings were 1.3% to 1.8% (2017: 1.1% to 3.9%) per annum.

All bank borrowings are denominated in functional currency of relevant
group entities.

* EIEBHR T A B A S5 B AR A R -
RITERRIHFEN R - FANR[/FBRITEAERS

M F0.6% ZE0.7% (2017 F - FHERBFERITRZENR
BIN0.7% sk B A RIBITERELFEI0% £91%) ©

20183 A31H - BARTERNFNENF13% =

1.8% (20174 : 1.1% £3.9%) °

PIBIRITESIZEHEEETRENDEERIIE -
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29. Gold Loans

The amounts represent unsecured borrowings from banks and the
amounts payable are pegged with gold prices.

As at 31 March 2018, the gold loans carry fixed interest rates of 0.9%
t0 2.4% (2017: 1.0% to 2.5%) per annum, with original maturity of 2
to 7 months (2017: 1 to 7 months) from date of inception.

Gold loans were borrowed to reduce the impact of fluctuations in gold
prices on gold inventories. Gold loans were designated as financial
liabilities at FVTPL.

Included in gold loans are the following amounts denominated in

currencies other than functional currency of the relevant
group entities:

uss e

30. Share Capital

29. HEEE

ZR TR EEIRRITE - MENEREESEREMD -

7201843 A31H & EERFN*E0.9%E2.4% (2017
FFEMEI0% E2.5%) WEENETE - REHRE AR

HER2Z7EA07E - 1£27EA) -

ERESEEENERAEESFEXESBRIBNF
2 -BeBREEEARATEFABRENESREE -

SPAEREERATIREREE (WIFEREEEBNINEE

B DIERFOR -

2018
HK$ million
BAEET

1,688.8

30. ix&

Authorised: VAR ¢

50,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each 50,000,000,000 f& &R EE 17872 E Bk
Issued and fully paid: BEITRER

10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each 10,000,000,000 fx B AK B 1 B 7T 2 ik

There was no change in the Company’s authorised, issued and fully
paid capital in both years.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EARBHKELEEEGR QT

2017
HK$ million
BEAET

1,673.1

2018 and 2017
2018 % 2017
HK$ million

BEET

50,000.0

10,000.0

MEFER  NRBZEE - BETRBRBRAR ERE -



31. Operating Lease Commitments

The Group as lessee

At the end of each reporting period, the Group was committed to
make the following future minimum lease payments which represent
lease payments of its rented premises, under non-cancellable
operating leases which fall due as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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31. EEHERIE

FEEEBEREA

REREHER  AEEAXZSHIBBE T RENEEHE
RT5 B R EE AR HER SR (RRARAMENAE
) B

2018 2017

HK$ million HK$ million

HEBT HEBT

Within one year —FR 1,177.6 1,243.0
In the second to fifth year inclusive FIEERF (BEEEWSFE) 1,248.0 1,323.5
Over five years AFLAE 376.6 407.6
2,802.2 2,974.1

Included in above are commitments to entities in which certain
directors* of the Company and their close family member have
beneficial interests:

AL BRARRETES* RRSHIRERR
IR B 2R

2018 2017

HK$ million HK$ million

AEET BEATT

Within one year —FR 156.3 162.6
In the second to fifth year inclusive FIEERF (BEEEMF) 2071 275.8
Over five years AF IR 320.3 351.7
683.7 790.1

* The directors also have beneficial interests in the Company.

There are certain lease arrangements for rented premises, according
to which the Group is committed to pay minimum guaranteed
amounts and additional monthly payments determined based on
monthly sales levels.

There are concessionaire arrangements for concessionaire stores
according to which the Group is committed to pay either minimum
guaranteed amounts or concessionaire fees that are based on
prescribed rates of corresponding sales depending on product
categories, whichever is higher. The minimum guaranteed amounts
are not material and the concessionaire fees paid during the year were
all determined based on sales level.

Majority of leases with fixed rentals and concessionaire arrangement
are negotiated for terms ranging from 1 to 3 years.

¥ EENREARAMTEE -

REBETAEMENEERY  AEEAG I RERER
SREREEAHEKTEENEARIMIK

AEERBEBRAEZELH Bl AREAERTE®
BHRAEHAEERZADEINEERISREED
RARBERE) - HREEREFLTEKR  AFEXMN
2 A EME D R VIRIE I ERKFEE -

RBOBEHREELH DEERRETE B —FE2=4F
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31. Operating Lease Commitments (continued)

The Group as lessor
Property rental income earned during the year was HK$12.5 million
(2017: HK$12.5 million). All of the Group's investment properties are
held for rental purposes. All of the properties held have committed
tenants for the next year.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with
tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:

Within one year —FR

32. Capital Commitments

Capital expenditure contracted but not provided for FLUBEYIZE - E MREDTOER

in respect of the acquisition of property, BENEARRAY

plant and equipment

33. Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the group entities will be
able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank borrowings, gold
loans and equity attributable to shareholders of the Company,
comprising share capital, reserves and retained profits as disclosed in
the consolidated financial statements.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure regularly.
The Group considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital, and will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the
raising of bank borrowings and gold loans.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EARBHKELEEEGR QT

31. BEHERE

FEEEBHBAA
RENBRZMERS KA BI12.5E B 7T (20174 :
125 EEHBT) - AEEHEREYELBERE - 155
T REBMERATE—EL BB REAE S -

Rips ik - AEERAEFIAANRRRERS TR
mT

2018 2017
HK$ million HK$ million
HEET BHEET
9.6 9.6
32. EXHKIE
2018 2017
HK$ million HK$ million
HEET BEAT
262.0 429.2

33. EXEMEE
ARMEREAE ERREMERTHELE -
F S SR R T T AR TR S A B -

W35 B 4

AEBNERARBEBRTENR  E2BENARRRR
EERE(BREGEVBRRMBEEZRA - HELRE
EA)

AEEEEEERRAEARE - AKEEEREAKAE
REBEANEBNRR  TEBRVERE  HTHEK 8
SRTEFLEFSRETOREEERELRRE -



34. Financial Instruments

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted,
including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and
the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of
each class of financial assets and financial liabilities are disclosed in

note 3.

Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets
Loans and receivables
(including cash and cash equivalents)

Financial liabilities
Amortised cost
Gold loans at FVTPL

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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34. &RTH
EEFSRAERSHENENNARABAEHEER
TR (BIERERIEE - 5 8 2 b R RIX
BYEEAE) A RE S R -

EMTIRH5
2018 2017
HKS$ million HKS$ million
BHEET BEERT
SMEE
B R MO8
(BHERERHESSEY) 11,545.1 10,526.7
SWMER
BN 8,758.1 7,621.2
UATER AR EDEE 5,335.4 3,216.9
14,093.5 10,837.1
EREREEBRRBR

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and other
receivables, loan receivables, bank balances and cash, trade and other
payables, amounts due to non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries,
bank borrowings and gold loans. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in the respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (interest rate risk, currency
risk and commaodity price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate

measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk
Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to fixed-
rate loan receivables, certain trade receivables and gold loans. The
Group currently does not have any instruments to hedge against the

fair value interest rate risk.

Also, the Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk through the
impact of rate changes on interest bearing financial assets and
liabilities, mainly certain bank balances and bank borrowings at variable
interest rates. The Group currently does not have an interest rate
hedging policy. However, the management will consider hedging

significant interest rate risk should the need arise.

AEENTESHTARRERES LEMRETIE - BRE
Ko RITHEBEERS  BHREMBMNRE - BAMELQ
BIBEEERRRFIE fRITEFURFLEER - ZFL2RT
AFBERENERE Z2FeRITAZABEAREIETS
Rk (R R - E%ARKEERERRR)  FEARK
mBETER - MAREZERROBEREN T - BE
[EER R EEZFRRAER M AR ERE S G

AR

FEEB

AEEEREREENERER ETESRERELES
BEAEAFEMNERR ANEERETETHIARR
BRI R BT T A o

BN AEEEE EERMEERAB (EERE TRITER
MBS SR BRTEFO N EREHOZEMELRS
BN EEE - AEE B HIBENEREHBE - Al B
BEEENEERZEETERMNRER
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34. Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the cash flow interest
rate risk is considered insignificant and therefore no sensitivity analysis
is presented.

Currency risk

Certain group entities have sales and purchases which are
denominated in currency other than their respective functional
currencies, which expose the Group to foreign currency risk. In the
opinion of the directors of the Company, the foreign currency risk is
insignificant considering the related sales and purchases to the total
sales and purchases of the Group. The majority of the Group's foreign
currency denominated monetary items are bank balances denominated
in RMB, which are held by Group entities whose functional currencies
are not RMB, with carrying amounts of HK$642.3 million (2017:
HK$879.6 million). In addition, certain group entities whose functional
currency is HK$, have intra-group advances to their subsidiaries,
denominated in RMB.

The Group mainly exposes to currency of US$ and RMB, which are
arising from relevant group entities’ foreign currency denominated
monetary assets and liabilities for the Group's operating activities.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy
to eliminate the currency exposures. However, the management
monitors the related foreign currency exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposures should the
need arise. As at 31 March 2018, if the exchange rate of RMB had
been 2% appreciated or depreciated against HKS$, the Group's profit
after taxation for the year would increase or decrease by HK$93.4
million (2017: HK$70.0 million) and the Group's exchange reserve
would increase or decrease by HK$367.9 million (2017: HK$351.2
million) for the year.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the currency risk of
USS$ is considered insignificant.
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34. Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Commodity price risk

The Group is engaged in the sales of jewellery including gold products.
The gold market is influenced by global as well as regional supply and
demand conditions. A significant decline in prices of gold could
adversely affect the Group's financial performance. In order to reduce
the commodity price risk, the Group uses gold loans to reduce its
exposure to fluctuations in the gold price on gold inventory. Gold loans
are settled at maturity which is usually in 2 to 7 months (2017: 1 to 7
months) from date of inception and any fair value change is
immediately recognised in profit or loss.

As at 31 March 2018, if the market price of gold had been higher or
lower by 10%, the potential effect on gold loans and the resulting
impact on profit after taxation for the year would decrease or increase
approximately by HK$505.7 million (2017: HK$295.6 million).

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the
counterparties failure to perform their obligations at the end of the
reporting period in relation to each class of recognised financial assets
is the carrying amount of those assets stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debt at the end of the reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In
this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the Group's
credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk in trade and
loan receivables, with exposure spread over a number of
counterparties.

The credit risk on bank balances is minimal as such amounts are
placed in banks with good reputation.
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B mEKERE
AEENREPIEECERSNHREHEEL -TEMER
EERUA Kb @ SRR R 2 o %éfgﬁﬁﬂaﬁﬁkﬂﬁwi
Bl BRBERTHEE - AREERESRR K&
EEAESIEERERESERESHESEEN K ZER
HEEEREREEE  MURAEEEMKARN2E7
BA017F 1Z7EA) WEAFELBAZARIE
HATER °

M2018%3A31H  MEESMELARTHKI0% » =
CRERENBEXERZFENBRRRENNZE  BD 5

AP HIE N 505.7 BEET(20174F : 295.6 AEETT) ©

SE M

HWRXBEFREREMRKREETHEE  UAKERE
BEHATBEEMAYNEREERR - REEaHBR
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34. Financial Instruments (continueq) 34. T Rw)
Financial risk management objectives and policies R EREREEERBER @
(Continued)

Liquidity risk mENE & E S

The management of the Group has built an appropriate liquidity risk  AEEEBEEL AAEENEHETHESURREES
management framework for the management of the Group’s short EERATEVHENTDESRREEESLR -AEEBB
and medium-term funding and liquidity management requirements. BIRFRTHEUARSEERBARERASRERE SR
The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining banking facilities and BEZIHBER  EEAHESEAR -

by continuously monitoring forecasted and actual cash flows and the

maturity profiles of its financial liabilities.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual maturity TRAAZEEZCRBERTENIEB 2515 - ZRE
for its financial liabilities. The table has been drawn up to reflect the BREAEETHRERI oA EZETHHRE - UK
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest M&REERKUBRBRERE - ZRBBENARASR
date on which the Group can be required to pay. The table includes EHRE -

both interest and principal cash flows.

Weighted On demand Total
average or less than 3 months to undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months 1year 1to 5 years cash flows amount
T RERKDR AUERS
FES 3fEAR 3@AE1E 1Z5%F TEAE HREE
HK$ million HKS$ million HK$ million HKS$ million HKS$ million
HEERT XY HEETRT HEET BEERT
Financial liabilities SWMEE
At 31 March 2018 20183 A31H
Trade and other payables E 5 REMERNTIE - 734.6 - - 734.6 734.6
Amounts due to non-controlling &8 A 73EEE AR
shareholders of subsidiaries M B R E - 100.5 - - 100.5 100.5
Bank borrowings (note i) FATER (D 1.6% 5,827.1 - 2,195.7 8,022.8 7,923.0
Gold loans (note ii) B EE () 1.9% 3,994.0 1,360.7 - 5,354.7 5,335.4
10,656.2 1,360.7 2,195.7 14,212.6 14,093.5
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FE M BRRMEE
34. Financial Instruments continued) 34. ERIT R«
Financial risk management objectives and policies R EREREEERBER @
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) mEEEREE )
Weighted On demand Total
average or less than 3 months to undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months 1year 1to 5 years cash flows amount
REFS RERKR RUBERE
Filz 3f@AR 3EAZE1E 1255 REHE EREE
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
HEER BHEBRT BHEER HEER BEER
Financial liabilities SREaE
At 31 March 2017 M2017%3A31H
Trade and other payables B 5 REMERNZIE - 738.8 - - 738.8 738.8
Amounts due to non-controlling  JEfFHT B 2 & FEH2A%
shareholders of subsidiaries S - 89.9 - - 89.9 89.9
Bank borrowings (note i) BITER (MDD 1.4% 5,804.1 399.6 610.4 6,814.1 6,792.5
Gold loans (note ii) EoEE (i) 1.7% 3,158.9 63.0 - 3,221.9 3,215.9
9,791.7 462.6 610.4 10,864.7 10,837.1
Notes: Bt -

(i) The amounts included in above for variable rate bank borrowings are subject to change if changes in

variable interest rates differ from those estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the

reporting period.

(i) The amounts of gold loans are determined with reference to quoted market bid price of gold traded in (ii)

active liquid markets.

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

I EERSMANT R HEEBANREERMFIR G - LI RRTERE
EORESGHE -

HREENSR2RESRATSEEZHETHEEAREBET -

SMTAAFETE

(i)

(i)

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

The fair value of gold loans is determined using discounted cash
flow valuation technique reference to quoted market bid price of
gold traded in active liquid markets as a key input and is
categorised at level 2 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the model is observable.

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that
are not measured at fair value on recurring basis

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and liabilities recorded at amortised
cost in the consolidated financial statements approximate their
fair values.

(i) BREBRELDATFEIESHEERSHERE
ZATE
H5eEE A TEMNARBERS R MEAEE - H4
2REAMBMSEECEEMBEEARERETE
BAHE  UTREXANDBASBENAISEEES RS
e

(i) EFREBEEUAFEIEEHEERSR
BfEZAEE
ARRERRR PR MM IZE HAARL
SREERBEZRAEREAFERE -
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35. Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising from
Financing Activities

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising from

financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.

Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash

flows were, or future cash flows will be classified in the Group's

consolidated statement of cash flows from financing activities.

Bank

borrowings

RITER

Note 28

&t 28

HK$ million

BEBER

At 1 April 2017 M2017F4A1H 6,792.5
Financing cash flows BERERE 1,101.8
Finance costs A& R AR -
Foreign exchange translation ShE#E 28.7
Dividends declared TR E -
Fair value loss of gold loans &£ EE A FEEE -
At 31 March 2018 M2018F3 A31H 7,923.0

36. Retirement Benefit Obligations

Defined contribution scheme

The Group participates in defined contribution schemes which are
registered under the Hong Kong Occupational Retirement Scheme
Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”) and a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) established under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Ordinance in December 2000. The assets
of the schemes are held separately from those of the Group, in funds
under the control of independent trustees. Employees who were
members of the ORSO Scheme prior to the establishment of the MPF
Scheme were offered a choice of staying within the ORSO Scheme or
switching to the MPF Scheme, whereas all new employees joining the
Group on or after 1 December 2000 are required to join the MPF
Scheme.

The retirement benefit cost charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income represents
contributions payable to the funds by the Group at rates specified in
the rules of the schemes. Where there are employees who leave the
ORSO Scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions, the
contributions payable by the Group are reduced by the amount of
forfeited contributions.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EAEBHRELEEEGR QT

Gold loans

HERE
Note 29

Fif =t 29

HKS$ million
HEET

3,216.9
1,805.3

278.9

5,335.4

35. MFESEAME R

TERANAEERETHFEENEEES  HPaRER
ERFReEY - RETHEEANAREERSREER

(FHARRRERNEFG)RAEENGERERERDER

MEEBAEREREZEE -

Dividends Interest
Amounts due to payable payables
non-controlling (included in (included in
shareholders trade and trade and

of subsidiaries other payables) other payables) Total
BARE BAFE
EAHELR [€iPN-2-)1 GtAES R

FERRRRE HAECSRER) HtEARER) et
Note 27 Note 26 Note 26
Bzt 27 Fif & 26 K5t 26

HKS$ million HK$ million HKS$ million HKS$ million

BEERT BEER BEER BEET

89.9 - 5.0 10,103.3

0.9 (4,260.3) (244.6) (1,596.9)

- - 243.7 243.7

9.7 - - 317.3

- 4,260.3 - 4,260.3

- - - 36.3

100.5 - 4.1 13,363.0

36. BIKEFIFKIE

E BR T 2l

AEED 2 HBREFBBE RN NGO M & E BN
FHEI([BZRIRET BIGEPISHEI )) R 522000 F 12 AR IEE
eI DB RO IR AE ST 8 ([RE S
g  ZFFEEELEARENEESFELE  ABIR
FEARGINESTE - AR BES RS2 BRE
RRETEEDIFT BIR0 1R B Al 2 A8 B R B R KA 31 1%
PlEt3lsEmRES S MAAR2000512A1HRZ
BIMAREEOHEBRBIADMABESETE

BEeEaREMEERARNGORKENRAIEARE
BIZETEIR A J? T EENTESOER - WEENE
SRR B AR DB RN B PIGH &) REE A
FAHR B VR WA SRR ©



36. Retirement Benefit Obligations (continuea)
Defined contribution scheme (Continued)

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group contributes 5% of
relevant payroll costs to the MPF Scheme, which contribution is
matched by the employee. The maximum monthly amount of
contribution is limited to HK$1,500 per employee.

The eligible employees of the Company’s subsidiaries in Mainland
China and Macau are members of pension schemes operated by local
government of Mainland China and the Macau government,
respectively. The subsidiaries in Mainland China are required to
contribute a certain percentage of the relevant cost of the payroll of
these employees to the pension schemes to fund the benefits. The
subsidiary in Macau is required to pay a monthly fixed contribution to
the retirement benefits schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
schemes is to make the required contribution under the schemes.

Defined benefit scheme

Certain subsidiaries of the Company provide defined pension benefits
to the employees, who joined to these subsidiaries before 1995. The
amount payable is dependent on the employees’ final salary and years
of services. The Group does not set aside any assets to fund such
obligations.

Under the scheme, the employees are entitled to a pension between
25% and 40% of final salary for each year of pensionable service at an
age of 65. No other post-retirement benefits are provided. The most
recent actuarial valuations of the present value of the defined benefit
obligations were carried out in March 2018 by Roma Appraisals
Limited (“Roma”), an independent qualified professional valuer, using
the projected unit credit method. The principal place of business of
Roma is 22/F, China Overseas Building, 193 Hennessy Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong. The assumptions which have the most significant effect
on the results of the valuation are discount rate, retirement age,
turnover rate, mortality rate and the rate of increase in salaries.
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36. BRIKTEFIHRIE =
TEEMRETE )
PREEFEMNKEMS AEEERBRES
TAEMANES% 3 - HBHE
BRI BB S EABAIES 1

> 5T 8L AR RER
FEEREMHRZE R -8A
,500& T °

AR HERMFRFIMBATNAERER D AT E
WA EIBBUT FORFIBT 2B R A ST EIKE - FER
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EFEEAE
ADFEFHBA AR 1995 FAMAREHBAANE
BRHUERRASEN - EERERAREERROF S

KIRIGFEH - REBEW BB FEMEEAN BRIARE -

RiE%T 8 BENFESRSLEFIRHUATERKEMN
IRIBIEN FHIEH S 25% E40% ZTHRKE - REFEL &
REHAMRKERT SOMETERANABEREREGE
ThR2018F3 AmBU AL RGEMESH TaﬂaﬁﬁEA
AITREDIRAETENEREZEIT  BENEELE X
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36. Retirement Benefit Obligations (continuea)
Defined benefit scheme (Continued)

The main actuarial assumptions used were as follows:

Discount rate ARIR
Expected rate of salary increase TEERF @ E ML R
Turnover rate AR

Amounts recognised in comprehensive income in respect of the
defined benefit scheme are as follows:

36. BIREFIRE o
EFEEHEE
FHEAM T SEEBRNT -

2018 2017
1.9% 1.6%
3.0% 2.5%

0% 0%

BERREMNT RN 2R EERE KB

2018 2017
HK$ million HKS$ million
HEBT HEBT
Current service cost IR B AR FS A AN 3.7 3.5
Interest on obligation HEIEH RS 4.7 3.9
Components of defined benefits recognised in B SR RH T 58 @ BB 1
profit or loss 8.4 7.4
Remeasurement on defined benefit scheme REA 2 E R R E BRI
recognised in other comprehensive income: BHEE
Actuarial loss (gain) arising from changes in BRI FTE A IS E E 18 (k)
financial assumptions 5.4 (15.8)
Total R 13.8 (8.4)

The current service costs and interest on obligation for the years
ended 31 March 2018 and 2017 are included in “selling and
distribution costs” and “general and administrative expenses”
depending on the respective employee's function.

The remeasurement of the defined benefit scheme for the years

ended 31 March 2018 and 2017 is included in other comprehensive
income.
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36. Retirement Benefit Obligations (continuea)
Defined benefit scheme (Continued)

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations are

as follows:
At 1 April R4A1H
Service costs R 5K AN
Interest costs FLEALA
Actuarial loss (gain) BEEE (=)
Benefits paid B X EF|
At 31 March M3A31H

37. Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to a resolution which were passed on 17 November 2011,
the Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) for the purpose of attracting skilled and experienced
personnel, to incentivise them to remain with the Group and to
motivate them to strive for the future development and expansion of
the Group by providing them with the opportunity to acquire equity
interests in the Company. Under the Share Option Scheme, the
directors of the Company may grant options to directors (including
executive directors, non-executive directors and independent non-
executive directors), the directors of the subsidiaries and the
employees of the Group and any other persons (including consultants
or advisers) who the directors of the Company consider, in its absolute
discretion, have contributed or will contribute to the Group (the
"Participants”).

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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36. BIAREFIRE
EFEEHEE
TERAAEREZSHUT ¢
2018 2017
HK$ million HK$ million
EE-5 BEET
226.6 243.4
3.7 35
4.7 3.9
5.4 (15.8)
(8.2) (8.4)
232.2 226.6
37. RERgHESTEI
RIER2011F 11 17 BRBAIRAZER - NAFEMABER

B ([ BT 8)) - 5 ERBRHEERAR R RERN
BERS|IEREMERNAL  BENRSEBEAEE &
BHEAREENARRERLBERMB D - RIERETS
ARREEGAME2ENBERR/EANEEEHREIEL
BERNER(BEATES FFRTEEREIIFRTE
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ERAATER) ([28E )R BAE -
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37. Share Option Scheme (continued

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of
10 years commencing on 17 November 2011. An offer of the grant of
an option shall be made to a Participant by a notice of grant requiring
the Participant to undertake to hold the option on the terms on which
it is to be granted (which may include a minimum period for which the
option must be held before it can be exercised and a performance
target that must be reached before the option can be exercised in
whole or in part) and to be bound by the terms of the Share Option
Scheme. An offer of the grant of an option is deemed to be accepted
by the Participant (the “Grantee”) when the Company receives from
the Grantee the duplicate notice of grant duly signed by the Grantee.
An offer may be accepted or deemed to have been accepted in
respect of less than the number of shares in respect of which it is
offered, provided that it is accepted in respect of a board lot or an
integral multiple thereof. No amount is payable by the Grantee upon
acceptance of an offer of an option. The offer shall remain open for
acceptance for such time to be determined by the directors of the
Company, provided that no such offer shall be open for acceptance
after the expiry of the Share Option Scheme or after the termination of
the Share Option Scheme in accordance with its terms or after the
Participant to whom the offer is made has ceased to be a Participant.
To the extent that the offer is not accepted within the time period and
in the manner specified in the offer, the offer will be deemed to have
been irrevocably declined.

The exercise price shall be determined by the directors of the
Company, and shall not be less than the higher of (i) the closing price
of the Company’s shares on the date of grant, (i) the average closing
price of the shares for the five trading days immediately preceding the
date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s share on
the date of grant.

During the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017, no share options
were granted by the Company nor were there any share options of the
Company outstanding.

The Company issued to the directors and certain employees share
appreciation rights (the “"SARs"”) that the Company would pay the
intrinsic value of the SARs to the directors and certain employees as
part of the discretionary bonus. The Group recorded a total expense of
HK$31.1 million during the year ended 31 March 2018
(2017: HK$3.6 million).

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EARBHKELEEEGR QT
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38. Related Party Transactions

(i)

Other than the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in (i
the consolidated financial statements, the Group had entered

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

38. FABEA RS

into the following related party transactions during the year:

Relationship
R

Entities in which certain directors* of
the Company have beneficial interests
RRRETES* HEIHENEEE

Non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries

LRI 22l i

Entities in which a close family member of

certain directors* of the Company has control
RRRETFESE* NARRBXEEREHIRED

®iE

* The directors also have beneficial interests in the Company.

Apart from the aforementioned transactions, no other significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts to which the Company
was a party and in which a director of the Company had, directly

Nature of transactions
THME

Advertising expenses

BERX

Concessionaire fees in department stores
BEAREEDK

Rental expenses

iEEAGE

Purchase of goods and coupons and
commission expenses

BEEMREFURMEFHE

Sales of goods and coupons

HEEmRIEH

Rental income

WA

Concessionaire fees in department stores

BERFIEESK
Franchise sales
INEESHE

Engineering services fee
TiemR &

Rental expenses
HEX

Purchase of equipment
BER

Marking fee

TR B

2018
HK$ million
AEET

6.6

741

176.4

0.1

6.5

23.7

9.5

24.8

3.9

56.0

* ERTEBARANZERE -

or indirectly, a material interest at any time during the year.

bR Ll 22 SN -
ATEMAR Té%&ﬁqﬂé&iﬁaﬁz&;*ﬁikﬁ =
ZEERG THRAH -

REMBmRMEE

RAPBRENEMI T RENR S RERI - A

SBECNFRFL MBS TR

2017
HK$ million
BEATT

7.7

69.0

195.0

0.3

4.5

0.1

8.0

22.9

7.4

23.8

12.3

125

RRBRAFEE AEARRE
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38. Related Party Transactions (continued)

38.

(i)~ Remuneration paid for key management personnel includes the (ii)

directors and the chief executives of the Company as disclosed

in note 10.

The remuneration of the directors and the chief executives of

the Company is determined by the remuneration committee

having regard to the performance of individuals and market

trends.

39. Principal Subsidiaries of the Company

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at the end of the
reporting period are set out below:

Name of subsidiary

Fi A R B

Highrise Achiever Limited*
BRERRAA]

Bentley Trading Limited
BHEZERAR

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery
Company Limited
AREBEHRERITERAR

CTF Diamond Trading Company
Limited
A EBERESHAERAT

CTF Watch (HK) Limited
AREESER (BB)BRAF

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EARBHKELEEEGR QT

Place and date of
incorporation/
establishment

REMARSL, BRI B B A

BVI

20 June 2011
REEBARHE
2011466 H20H

Hong Kong

10 January 2008
BA

200841 H10H

Hong Kong

6 March 1961
BB

196143 H6H

Hong Kong

19 September 2003
9

2003F 9 A 19H

Hong Kong

7 February 2011
HE

201152 A7H

FABE AR 5 2

XNTFTEIEEBABNMESBEMEI1I0RENAR

AEERRRITHAS -

FRBEFRERITRAENNEREHHFNES
SRFEENALTHERRETISBEMEE

39. AATEFEMEAT

Issued and fully paid
share capital/
registered capital/
quota capital
ERTRBRRE
HMELR BWEELR

Share
US$1

&7
13€7T

Ordinary shares
HK$10,000
T A
10,0007 7T

Ordinary shares
HK$350,000,000
LR A
350,000,000 % 7T

Ordinary shares
HK$100
LBARA
1007 7T

Ordinary share
HK$1
LR A

18T

Proportion of
ownership interest
held by the Company

AT L REAE
L $:4e 0]

2018 2017
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

TORRBREHRAR R EEMB LR ZFFE

Principal activities

ERER

Investment holding

REER

Trading of diamond
HREE

Sales of jewellery
products
KREEMEE

Procurement of
diamond

BORE

Sales of watches
ERIHE



39. Principal Subsidiaries of the Company

(Continued)

Name of subsidiary

MEARER

Techni Development Investment

Limited
ENBERIREARAR

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery and
Watch Company (Macau)
Limited

ARIEERE fE & ORFT)
ERAF

Hearts On Fire

Beijing Chow Tai Fook
Jewellery Company Limited
ERARBREZTERAA

Chongging Chow Tai Fook
Watch Marketing Company
Limited

EEARBERIEEARAR

Chongging Flamingo Watches
Company Limited
EREASEERERLA

Chongging Meida Watch
Company Limited
EEXEHEARAR

Place and date of
incorporation/
establishment

REAR ST R 3L B B A

Hong Kong

26 May 2005
=B

200545 H26 A

Macau

17 March 2009
SR

20093 A 17H

The United States of
America

14 May 2001

EE

2001 465H14H

PRC"

13 November 2006
e

200611 A13H

PRC-

25 December 2008
e -

20084 12 A25H

PRC~

25 December 2008
HE-

2008 12 H25H

PRC-

21 May 2013
B
2013%5H21 R

Issued and fully paid
share capital/
registered capital/
quota capital
BRTRBERE
HMEASEEESR

Ordinary shares
HK$5,000,000
LBARA
5,000,000 % 7T

Quota capital
MOP5,000,000
A & 7
5,000,0002F9 7T

Capital
US$74,468,737
N
74,468,737 % 7T

Registered capital
US$30,000,000
FEE AR
30,000,000 % 7T,

Registered capital
RMB10,000,000
A E AR

AR 10,000,000 7T

Registered capital
RMB1,000,000

A ER

AR ¥ 1,000,000 70

Registered capital
RMB1,000,000
FEE AR
AEH1,000,0007T

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Proportion of
ownership interest
held by the Company

ARR SR RE
R

2018 2017
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 80%
100% 80%
100% 80%

REMBmRMEE

39. XA EEMEBAST @

Principal activities

EEEK

Procurement of
gemstones, sales of
jewellery products
and investment
holding

KEERL KREEM
HEURIEEZR

Sales of jewellery
products
KRBEmEE

Sales of jewellery
products
KREEMEE

Sales of jewellery
products and
provision of services
to franchisees

KREEMIHE RIEMH
BT T N ER RS

Sales of watches
ERIHE

Sales of watches

BERIHE

Sales of jewellery
products
KREEMEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBMRME

39. Principal Subsidiaries of the Company 39. KATEEMEBAT »

(Continued)

Name of subsidiary

Place and date of
incorporation/
establishment

Issued and fully paid
share capital/
registered capital/
quota capital

Proportion of
ownership interest
held by the Company

Principal activities

ERITREBERE AR L EEE
0] PN AL, R B R B HMEASEEESR - £:3:40]] TEEK
2018 2017
Chongging Xinhuang Watch PRC* Registered capital 51% 41%  Sales of watches
Company Limited 2 August 2013 RMB10,000,000 EERIHE
EENEEERARAR A EERIIEZ N
201348 H2H A K% 10,000,0007T
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery PRC" Registered capital 100% 100%  Sales of jewellery
(Chongging) Company Limited 23 December 2008 US$30,000,000 products and
ARBH®RERT(EE)BRAF RN EfER provision of services
20084 12 A23H 30,000,000 %7 to franchisees
KBERBEER
RAERS T IR
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery PRC~ Registered capital 100% 100%  Sales of jewellery
(Shenyang) Company Limited 2 January 2014 RMB20,000,000 products and
ARBH®RELT(ES) BRAF - [ERHIE= N provision of services
2014%1AH2H AR# 20,000,000 to franchisees
HKREEMEER
R T AR
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery PRC" Registered capital 100% 100%  Manufacturing and
(Shenzhen) Company Limited 2 April 2002 US$100,000,000 sales of jewellery
AXBHRE2TORIN) BRAF] AR EEAR products
2002564 A2 H 100,000,000 % 7L REEREERHEE
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery PRC" Registered capital 100% 100%  Sales of jewellery
(Suzhou) Company Limited 11 January 2006 US$30,000,000 products and
BAXBH®REST(FM) BRAF REN EfER provision of services
20061 A11H 30,000,000 %7 to franchisees
KEBEMBEER
GRS T INEE R
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery PRC" Registered capital 100% 100%  Sales of jewellery
(Wuhan) Company Limited 29 January 2008 US$30,000,000 products and
ARB®RERT(RZE)BRAF FEn [ERHIE=IN provision of services
200841 A29H 30,000,000t to franchisees
HKREEMEER
R T AR

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EARBHKELEEEGR QT




39. Principal Subsidiaries of the Company

(Continued)

Name of subsidiary

MEARER

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Culture
Industrial Park (Wuhan)
Company Limited

BARBHRE X EER (RE)
BRAF]

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery
Zhangjiagang Baoshui
Company Limited

AXRBHREITRRBRBE
ERAF]

Foshan Shunde Yuda Jewellery
Manufacturing Company
Limited

BT I [ A IR TS o A
ERAF

Foshan Yushunfu Jewellery and
Diamond Company Limited

BILRIEE S MO AR AR

Guangdong Chow Tai Fook
Jewellery Company Limited
BREAXBHRESITARAA

Guangdong Shunde
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery
Manufacturing Company
Limited
BRIEZEARERERIEGR AR

Shanghai Fulong
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery
Company Limited
FERERARKEHREARAR

Place and date of
incorporation/
establishment

REAR ST R 3L B B A

PRC"
16 August 2012
e
201248 H16 H

PRC-

21 April 2010
AR~
201044 A21 R

PRC*
14 March 2007
e
20073 A 14H

PRC"

9 November 1988
HE

19884 11 A9 H

PRC"

10 December 2007
e

200712 A410H

PRC-

30 July 2014
AR~
201447 B30 B

PRC*
5 January 2000
e
20001 H5H

Issued and fully paid
share capital/
registered capital/
quota capital
BRTRBERE
HMEASEEESR

Registered capital
US$140,000,000
FEE AR
140,000,000 % 7T,

Registered capital
RMB65,723,500
At E AR

AR ¥65,723,500 7T

Registered capital
US$10,639,400
At E AR
10,639,400 % 7T

Registered capital
US$18,000,000
EERliiE=¥N
18,000,000 % 7T

Registered capital
US$30,000,000
FEE AR
30,000,000 37T,

Registered capital
RMB60,000,000
A E AR

AR #60,000,000 7T

Registered capital
RMB10,000,000

A ER

A K% 10,000,0007T

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Proportion of
ownership interest
held by the Company

AT G REEE
L340

2018 2017
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

60% 60%

REMBmRMEE

39. XA EEMEBAST @

Principal activities

EEEK

Manufacturing of
jewellery products
REEGREE

Sales of jewellery
products
KRBEmEE

Manufacturing of
jewellery products
KRBEmERE

Manufacturing of
jewellery products
REEMEE

Sales of jewellery
products and
provision of services
to franchisees

KREERHEER
RALARTS T N ER R

Manufacturing of
jewellery products

KEEMEE

Sales of jewellery
products
HKREEMEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBMRME

39. Principal Subsidiaries of the Company

(Continued)

Name of subsidiary

MEARER

Shenzhen Qianhai Chow Tai Fook
Jewellery Company Limited
AIEERREBRE2TAERAR]

Shenzhen Chow Tai Fook
Jewellery Manufacturing
Company Limited

AR TEARERERERRAF

Shenzhen Chow Tai Fook Online

Media Company Limited
AINERBEREEARAF

Shenzhen CTF Watch Company

Limited
FRYNEARBEERAR DA

Shenzhen Shenfu Jewellery
Company Limited
AR BHRERITAERAR]

Wuhan Hanfu Jewellery
Company Limited
R2ERKESTERAF

Zhangjiagang Baoshui Dade
Xinfu Jewellery Company
Limited

REFBRGR A EREDT

BERAF

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EARBHKELEEEGR QT

Place and date of
incorporation/
establishment

REAR ST R 3L B B A

PRC"
31 October 2016
e
201610 A31H

PRC-
5 March 2012
e -
20123 A5H

PRC~
5 January 2017
e -
201741 HA5H

PRC"

27 June 2011
e
2011466 A27H

PRC*

19 April 2007
AR

200744 A 19 R

PRC*

26 November 2003
e

200311 H26H

PRC*

3 December 2010
A

2010612 A3 H

Issued and fully paid
share capital/
registered capital/
quota capital
BRTRBERE
HMEASEEESR

Registered capital
US$10,000,000
FEE AR
10,000,000 %7t

Registered capital
RMB50,000,000
AR #50,000,000 7T

Registered capital
RMB5,000,000
EERliiE=¥N

AR ¥ 5,000,000 70

Registered capital
HK$300,000,000
FETE AR
300,000,000 % 7T

Registered capital
RMB8,000,000
A E AR

AR #8,000,0007T

Registered capital
RMB90,000,000

A ER

AR % 90,000,0007T

Registered capital
RMB3,000,000
FEE AR
AEHE3,000,0007T

Proportion of
ownership interest
held by the Company

AT G REEE
L340
2018 2017
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 80%
50%* 50%*
70% 70%
50%* 50%*

39. XA EEMEBAST @

Principal activities

EEEK

Sales of jewellery
products
REEMMAE

Manufacturing of
jewellery products
KRBEmERE

Sales of jewellery
products
HKREEMEE

Sales of watches

Sales of jewellery
products

KEEREE

Sales of jewellery
products
HKREEMEE

Sales of jewellery
products
KREEMEE



39. Principal Subsidiaries of the Company

(Continued)

Name of subsidiary

MEARER

Zhangjiagang Baoshui Dehui
Jewellery Company Limited

REBRVBEBRE ST
BRLA

Zhangjiagang Baoshui Zhaofu
Jewellery Company Limited

RRBRTIEERKERTT
ERAF

* Directly held by the Company.

power to direct the relevant activities of these entities since their respective date of establishment/

Place and date of
incorporation/
establishment

REAR LR 3L B B A

PRC~

24 September 2012
e -

201269 A 24 H

PRC*

17 November 2011
e

2011411 A178

Pursuant to the relevant agreements entered into among shareholders of these entities, the Group has

Issued and fully paid
share capital/
registered capital/
quota capital
BRTRBERE
HMEASEEESR

Registered capital
RMB94,567,500
FEE AR

AR 94,567,500 7T

Registered capital
RMB70,000,000
AR% 70,000,000

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Proportion of
ownership interest
held by the Company
ARR SR RE
i £ a g

2018 2017

100% 100%

51% 51%

* KRAFREERSA -

acquisition, and hence these entities are classified as subsidiaries of the Company.

Being a co-operative joint venture establishment in the PRC.

Being a wholly foreign owned enterprise.

~ Being a wholly owned enterprise in the PRC.

Note:

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affect

ARPERINAAAERE -

ROEEEDE -

RTBRINEELE -

GE
FRIHEERAT BV AR MO RESAENELANBAT - WIS

the results or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries which are mainly inactive or engaged

in investment holding would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

REMBmRMEE

39. XA EEMEBAST @

Principal activities

EEEK

Sales of jewellery
products
REEMMAE

Sales of jewellery
products
KRBEmEE

#  REZSEENRRZMILNEMRGE AREALSEEE AR WE
RHARERIEEZSEBNEREE ALt SERBEALRRANMNER
e

LEe U FREERNMBARZFHE  EFURRTEFHBEBR TR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBMRME

40. Statement of Financial Position and
Reserve Movement of the Company

FABMBRARRFEES

2018 2017
HK$ million HK$ million
BEBT BEART

Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—RENBARZRE 15,387.3 15,387.3
Amounts due from a subsidiary FEM — M B R B FRIE 2,100.0 600.0
17,487.3 15,987.3

Current assets mEBEE
Amount due from a subsidiary FEM — M B R B FRIE 7,662.4 7,298.9
Bank balances RITHERR 22 1.1
7,664.6 7,300.0
Current liabilities mEAE

Other liabilities HmaE 4.3 1.6
Bank borrowings RITEXR 5,823.0 5,573.0
Gold loans H5oEE 1,688.8 1,673.1
7,516.1 7,147.7
Net current assets B EEFE 148.5 152.3
Total assets less current liabilities BEAERTBEE 17,635.8 16,139.6

Non-current liability EmEAE
Bank borrowings RITER 2,100.0 600.0
15,535.8 15,539.6

Capital and reserves e
Share capital e 10,000.0 10,000.0
Reserves G 5,5635.8 5,539.6
15,535.8 15,539.6

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EAEBHRELEEEGR QT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBmRMEE

40. Statement of Financial Position and 40. XATIMBRARREEES
Reserve Movement of the Company (continuea)
Share Share Retained
capital premium profits Total
;&N B E REHEF “@st
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEERT BEEBT BHEBT BEER
At 1 April 2016 R2016F4 A1H 10,000.0 5,498.7 40.6 15,539.3
Profit and total comprehensive F N R R ER AR
income for the year - - 5,100.3 5,100.3
Dividends % 2 - - (5,1700.0) (5,100.0)
At 31 March 2017 H2017%43 A31H 10,000.0 5,498.7 40.9 15,539.6
Profit and total comprehensive FRmAREERALLTE
income for the year - - 4,196.2 4,196.2
Dividends % 8 - - (4,200.0) (4,200.0)
At 31 March 2018 M2018F3 A31H 10,000.0 5,498.7 37.1 15,535.8
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Financial Summary
B E

The following is a summary of the published results and assets and NTAREERAEATEAMBFED HIBEEAREERS
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years. The financial Bl E - M EEHEEE FROGES I BRE -
information are extracted from the consolidated financial statements

in the annual reports.

For the year ended 31 March
BZ3A3MALEE

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million

ABBIT BEAT BEBT BEBT HEBT

Revenue = 77,4071 64,277.0 56,591.5 51,245.5 59,156.4
Gross profit E7 21,152.3 19,072.4 15,641.4 14,962.7 16,213.4
Profit for the year FEE A 7,449.2 5,635.8 2,978.9 3,151.1 4,203.3

As at 31 March

R3A318
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEET ABET BEET BEBT BEAETT
Total assets BERT 61,817.1 61,121.0 55,675.4 49,401.9 57,569.9
Total liabilities B(EEsE 23,364.7 20,580.2 19,925.5 16,900.4 23,472.3
Net assets BEFE 38,452.4 40,540.8 35,749.9 32,501.5 34,097.6

252  Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EARBHKELEEEGR AT



Glossary
B

THFY
MBFE E£F

2HFY
MBFETHEF

Articles
A

ASP
FHE(E

Board
e

CIS
JEREE

Company/Chow Tai Fook
Z VNIV EPN

Directors

5%

FY
MR

Gem-set jewellery

TRE S

Group
SEREE

Hearts On Fire

High-end luxury jewellery
HEHRE

Karat gold
K&

Listing Rules
ERA

Mainland China
A

the first half of the financial year, six months ending 30 September

FRFEEL¥F  BHEIHAB0B IEREA

the second half of the financial year, six months ending 31 March

MREETHF  HEIA31ALLREA

the articles of association of the Company (as amended from time to time)
RABEBERMAA (ETEHERT)

average selling price

FHHEER

the board of directors of the Company

AAREES

Counter-in-shop in POS
REEARENEE

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited (stock code: 1929)
BAXEHXREEEBR AT (RMHKS : 1929)

directors of the Company

ARRER

financial year, 1 April of a year to 31 March of the following year
MRFEE 4R 1BERF3A31H

jewellery products made with diamonds and gemstones

BEEANBEANENHER

the Company and its subsidiaries
RARREME A

Hearts On Fire Company, LLC.

jewellery products with a retail price of above HK$100,000 per piece
BUHTEEI0BB LA LNKREER

jewellery products made from gold alloy

A& SRR EY & HE o

Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

BRMAEXSMERARESF EHARA

the mainland of the People’s Republic of China

REARAMBE AN
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Glossary
AR

Mass luxury jewellery
FRHKRE

020
RLERT

POS
TEX

Retail Sales Valug/RSV
=EE

Same Store

Rl &

Same Store Sales/SSS
FEHE

Same Store Sales Growth/SSSG
R S

SFO

E MR D)

SIS
JEHIE

Stock Exchange
Bt 52 P

Tier |, I, Ill and other cities

—#R - R =R REMIET

jewellery products with a retail price ranging from HK$2,000 to HK$100,000 per piece
BHZTEEN T2 TELE10BBTHREE R

online-to-offline

JEERGRT

points of sale
EmZTEH

the sales at the ending price (VAT inclusive, if any), in respective functional currencies, of
products sold to customers in the POS network and other channels
REEHBERMEMRBENTPHEEERARENNEEBHENKKTEE (BERER -
WmE)HE

self-operated POS existing as at the end of the relevant financial period and which have been
operating since the beginning of the prior financial year

BRI — AV RFENEEELNEHEVERARRDAEFTNELTEN

for FY2018, the revenue from self-operated POS existing as at 31 March 2018 and which have
been opened prior to 1 April 2016, measured at constant exchange rates. Revenue from
wholesale and other channels are excluded

2018 FELEME - HN2016F4 A1 BATFHEL N 2018E3 A31 HINABHFNEETER
WEEBREREERTE) T EEREMRENEER

a comparison between Same Store Sales of a particular period and sales from comparable POS
in the previous period, measured at constant exchange rates
VAKE R BE R L B TE BAR VR E SH B BT — HA M Al b 2B B IHE

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
BBEDIE 571 BB 5 RAE KA

Shop-in-shop in POS
REERANEHE

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EBBMERXHBRAT

for the list of cities, please refer to the glossary of our FY2017/18 interim report
B MFEREL2E2017/2018 B BUF & BRSO FRE

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited EARBHKELEEEGR QT
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